

Apr. '74 Spec.Sess.  
Assembly Bill 1

Date published:  
June 28, 1974

**CHAPTER 333, Laws of 1973**  
**(Vetoed in Part)**

AN ACT to amend and revise chapter 20 of the statutes, and to make diverse other changes in the statutes relating to state finances and appropriations, constituting the budget review bill and making appropriations.

*The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:*

SECTION 1. 11.02 (8) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

11.02 (8) "State public official" means all persons appointed by the governor with the advice and consent of the senate, except trustees of any private higher educational institution receiving state appropriations, and all persons identified under s. 20.923, except officers and employes of the judiciary, trustees and employes of the investment board and teaching personnel of the university of Wisconsin system.

SECTION 1a. 11.03 (1) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

11.03 (1) All state public officials ~~included under s. 20.923 except judicial officials, and all persons appointed by the governor with the advice and consent of the senate~~ shall file the initial statement of economic interests within a time period specified by the board.

SECTION 1b. 11.08 (5) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

11.08 (5) (c) Investigations conducted under this section shall be approved by the board prior to the expenditure of any funds from the appropriation under s. 20.521 (1) (b). These expenses shall include payment of all fees and charges incurred during the course of an investigation.

SECTION 1d. 13.02 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.02 (2) The regular session of the legislature shall commence at 2 p.m. on the first Tuesday after the ~~15th~~ 8th day of January in each year unless otherwise provided under sub. (3).

SECTION 2r. 13.04 (1) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

13.04 (1) ELIGIBILITY. (a) No member of the legislature shall, during the term for which he was elected, be appointed or elected to any civil office in this state, which shall have been created, or the emoluments of which shall have been increased, during the term for which he was elected.

(b) Any former member of the legislature may, after expiration of the term for which he was elected to the legislature, be appointed or elected to any judicial office or state civil office or position and shall, if so appointed or elected, be entitled to the full compensation, expense reimbursement or other emoluments established by law for such office or position.

(c) Any incumbent member of the legislature may, during the term for which he was elected to the legislature, seek election to any judicial office or state elective office for a term commencing upon the expiration of the member's current legislative term and shall, if so elected, upon the commencement of the new term be entitled to the full compensation, expense reimbursement or other emoluments for such office or position established by law as of the date on which the term begins.

(d) Any incumbent member of the legislature who, during the term for which he was elected to the legislature, by appointment or election assumes any judicial office or state civil office or position for which the compensation or other emoluments were increased during the member's current legislative term by legislative action, or by any other official action requiring the assent of or subject to veto by the legislature, shall be entitled to the compensation or other emoluments for such office or position only at the rate in effect prior to such increase.

(e) Nothing in this subsection shall prevent the concurrent appointment of an incumbent legislator to an unsalaried part-time state position created during the legislator's current legislative term when the emoluments for such position are limited to reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance of the duties of the position and when the duties of such position are not incompatible with the legislator's duties as a member of the legislature.

SECTION 2s. 13.04 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

13.04 (2) COMPENSATION. Members of the legislature elected, appointed or employed in or to any other salaried state office, position or employment ~~under the state government~~ concurrent but not incompatible with their membership in the legislature shall be paid only such part of the salary fixed for such office or employment as is in excess of the salary paid them as members of the legislature.

SECTION 3a. 13.105 of the statutes is created to read:

**13.105 Marquette university dental school reports to governor and joint committee on finance.** The Marquette university school of dentistry shall biennially report to the governor and the joint committee on finance on the:

- (1) Number of faculty and nonfaculty positions at the dental school.
- (2) Average faculty salaries compared to national averages.
- (3) Costs per dental student.
- (4) Student-faculty ratios of the dental school.
- (5) Placement of graduates of the dental program and their rate of retention in this state.
- (6) Minority student recruitment policies and programs.
- (7) Programs and purposes for which funds appropriated by this state are spent.

SECTION 3ab. 13.106 of the statutes is created to read:

**13.106 Medical college of Wisconsin and UW Madison medical school reports to governor and joint committee on finance.** The medical college of Wisconsin and the university of Wisconsin-Madison medical school shall biennially report to the governor and the joint committee on finance on the:

- (1) Minority student recruitment policies and programs of each medical school, and the number of minority students enrolled.
- (2) Number and percentages of Wisconsin residents enrolled.
- (3) Per student costs of medical education, in a consistent format and methodology to be developed in consultation with the medical education review committee under s. 39.16.
- (4) Average faculty salaries compared to national averages.
- (5) Development of cooperative educational programs with other institutions throughout this state.
- (6) Placement of graduates of doctor of medicine and residency training programs.

SECTION 3ag. 13.83 (3) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

13.83 (3) (g) The committee shall direct that an independent study be conducted to determine the form of government best suited to provide services to the residents of Menominee county. The study shall include an assessment of the impact that restoration will have on the tax structure and a determination of the various state services to be provided and the level of such services. The cost of the study shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.765 (2) (em).

Vetoed  
in Part

~~SECTION 3ah. 13.91 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to read:~~

~~13.91 (1) (c) Sponsor a Wisconsin family forum on a suitable day during the month of November, designated as Wisconsin Family Month under s. 256.171.~~ Vetoed in Part

SECTION 3am. 13.92 (1) (d) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

13.92 (1) (d) The legislative reference bureau shall ~~coordinate~~:

1. Coordinate and administer the scheduling and use of computer programs and machine time to facilitate application of computer and other modern office machine technology by both houses of the legislature and the legislative service agencies under this subchapter.

2. Subject to review by the department of administration under s. 16.97, and approval by the joint committee on legislative organization, acquire an intermediate computer system to be interfaced with the state's central computer for legislative data processing.

~~SECTION 3a. 13.94 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

~~13.94 (1) (intro.) DUTIES OF THE BUREAU. The legislative audit bureau shall be responsible for conducting postaudits of the accounts and other financial records of state agencies to assure that all financial transactions have been made in a legal and proper manner. In connection with such postaudits, the legislative audit bureau shall review the performance and program accomplishments of the agency during the fiscal period for which the audit is being conducted to determine whether the agency carried out the policy of the legislature and the governor during the period for which the appropriations were made. If, in its review of the performance and program accomplishments of an agency, the legislative audit bureau finds that the agency has failed to provide the information required under s. 16.42, the bureau shall develop agency program objectives and the standards for evaluating the attainment of those objectives for use in the bureau's postaudit of the agency. The legislative audit bureau shall audit the fiscal concerns of the state as required by law. To this end, it shall~~ Vetoed in Part

SECTION 3p. 13.95 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

**13.95 Legislative fiscal bureau.** (intro.) There is created a bureau to be known as the "Legislative Fiscal Bureau" headed by a director. The fiscal bureau shall be strictly nonpartisan and shall at all times observe the confidential nature of the research requests received by it; however, with the prior approval of the requestor in each instance, the bureau may duplicate the results of its research for distribution. Subject to s. 16.30 (4) (a) and (f), the director or his designated employes shall at all times, with or without notice, have access to all state departments and to any books, records or other documents maintained by such agencies and relating to their expenditures, revenues, operations and structure. Vetoed in Part

SECTION 4. 14.58 (4), (11) and (13) of the statutes are amended to read:

14.58 (4) **PAY ON WARRANTS SUMS AUTHORIZED BY LAW.** Pay out of the treasury, on demand, upon the warrants of the department of administration and not otherwise such sums only as are authorized by law to be so paid, if there are appropriate funds therein to pay the same, except when in the judgment of the state treasurer bank balances are temporarily in excess of that required, the treasurer, with the concurrence of the secretary of administration, may authorize the preparation of a warrant in excess of the funds contained in the investment fund for the purpose of investment only, and, when any sum is required to be paid out of a particular fund, pay it out of such fund only; and upon each such warrant, when payment is made in currency, take the receipt indorsed on or annexed thereto, of the payee therein named or his

authorized agent or assignee. The state treasurer shall accept telephone advice believed by him to be genuine from any state depository bank stating that a specified amount of money has been deposited with such state depository bank for the credit of the state treasurer, and shall act upon such telephone advice as though it had been in writing.

(11) **MAKE CERTIFIED COPIES.** Make a certified copy of any deed, bond, document or paper filed in his office, and transcripts from the books and records kept therein, when required by any person so to do; and collect therefor ~~42~~ 25 cents per folio, and ~~25 cents~~ \$1 for such certificate.

(13) **SERVICES IN CONNECTION WITH SECURITIES HELD IN TRUST.** Upon request therefor from any company, corporation, society, order or association which has securities on deposit with him, in trust, mail to its address not to exceed 60 days before the same become due, any or all interest coupons; return to it any or all bonds, notes or other deposits as they become due and are replaced by other securities; cut all interest coupons, make any indorsement of interest or otherwise on any such securities; and collect therefor from the company, corporation, society, order or association making the request, a 25-cent fee for a single coupon cut, or for each entry of interest indorsed on a note or return of a bond, note or other security, and a 10-cent fee for each additional coupon cut, or entry of interest indorsed on a note, bond or other security, and may withhold any and all coupons cut or refuse indorsement of interest on securities until such fee ~~shall have been~~ is paid. Such fees shall be paid into the state treasury as a part of the general fund, and ~~no~~ an extra charge ~~shall~~ may be required for postage or registered mail.

**SECTION 4d.** 15.101 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

15.101 (8) **ARTS BOARD.** The arts board shall have the program responsibilities specified for the board under subch. II of ch. 44.

**SECTION 4k.** 15.105 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

15.105 (8) **ARTS BOARD.** There is created an arts board which is attached to the department of administration under s. 15.03. The arts board shall consist of 12 members appointed for staggered 3-year terms who are residents of this state and who are known for their concern for the arts.

**SECTION 4km.** 15.497 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

15.497 (2) **COUNCIL ON VETERANS PROGRAMS.** There is created in the department of veterans affairs a council on veterans programs consisting of one representative each of the state departments of the American Legion, the Disabled American Veterans, the Veterans of Foreign Wars, the Marine Corps League, the United Spanish War Veterans, the Navy Club of the U.S.A., the Veterans of World War II (AMVETS), the Veterans of World War I of the U.S.A., Inc., the Catholic War Veterans of the U.S.A., the Jewish War Veterans of the U.S.A., the Polish Legion of American Veterans, the National Association of Black Veterans, the Army and Navy Union of the United States of America and the Military Order of the Purple Heart, one representative of the American Red Cross and one representative of the Wisconsin county veterans service officers, appointed for one-year terms by the organization each represents.

**SECTION 4m.** 15.53 and 15.531 of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are repealed.

**SECTION 5.** 16.004 (7) of the statutes is created to read:

16.004 (7) CIVIL SERVICE INFORMATION SYSTEM. The secretary shall establish and maintain a management information system which shall be used to furnish the governor and the legislature with current information pertaining to authorized positions, payroll and related items covering civil service employes.

SECTION 6. 16.02 (9) of the statutes is created to read:

16.02 (9) "Position" means a group of duties and responsibilities in either the classified or the unclassified divisions of the civil service, which require the services of an employe on a part-time or full-time basis.

SECTION 7. 16.04 (1) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

16.04 (1) (f) Provide the director with the civil service information required under s. 16.004 (7).

SECTION 8. 16.08 (2) (j) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.08 (2) (j) Boys and girls employed in the youth camps created under s. 23.09 (23).

SECTION 10. 16.42 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 12, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

16.42 (1) (a) A clear statement of purpose for each ~~budgetary unit program or subprogram;~~

SECTION 10b. 16.44 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**16.44 Budget hearings.** After the filing of the compilation required under s. 16.43, the governor or governor-elect shall consider all requests and all other information which may be of value in understanding the issues and problems to be dealt with in the executive budget. He may hold such public hearings as he determines are necessary to gather further information from departments, interested citizens and others. The department of administration and all other departments shall cooperate fully with the governor or governor-elect in providing information and analyses as requested.

SECTION 10c. 16.45 of the statutes is amended to read:

**16.45 Budget message to legislature.** In each regular session of the legislature, the governor shall deliver his budget message to the 2 houses in joint session assembled. Unless a later date is requested by the governor and approved by the legislature in the form of a joint resolution, the budget message shall be delivered on or before ~~February 1~~ the last Tuesday in January. With such message the governor shall transmit to the legislature the biennial state budget report and the executive budget bills together with suggestions for the best methods for raising the needed revenues.

SECTION 10d. 16.475 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**16.475 Review in even-numbered years.** If the governor determines that the implementation of budget priorities or the fiscal condition of the state requires adjustments in expenditures or revenues, he shall, ~~on or before February 1 of the even-numbered year, or as otherwise provided by joint resolution unless a later date is requested by the governor and approved by the legislature in the form of a joint resolution, no later than the 2nd week of the legislative session in the even-numbered year,~~ submit his recommendations in bill form to the joint committee on finance which shall introduce the bill without change in either house. Upon introduction, the bill shall be referred to that committee.

SECTION 11. 16.50 (3) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

16.50 (3) **LIMITATION ON INCREASE OF FORCE AND SALARIES.** No department, except the legislature or the courts, may increase the pay of any employe, expend money or incur any obligation except in accordance with the estimate submitted to the secretary as provided in sub. (1) and which is approved by the secretary or the governor. No additional positions, above the number authorized through the biennial budget or budget review process may be granted without the approval of the board on government operations, except for positions created from funds received under s. 16.54 or 20.001 (2) (b). The secretary shall submit a quarterly report to the board on government operations of any additional positions created under s. 16.54 or 20.001 (2) (b). No pay increase may be approved unless it is at the rate or within the pay ranges prescribed in the compensation plan or as published in a collective bargaining agreement under subch. V of ch. 111.

SECTION 13. 16.54 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

16.54 (8) The governor, through the secretary, shall notify the board on government operations at least quarterly of any federal funds received or positions created, pursuant to this section, in excess of those approved in the biennial budget or budget review process.

SECTION 14. 16.76 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

16.76 (2) The department of ~~administration~~ may enter into continuing agreements and flexible contracts in anticipation of the needs of departments, which provide for deliveries of specified articles at under stated prices, which prices may be lowered through market conditions, but not increased at any time during the life of said continuing agreements or flexible contracts, except as may result from adjustments of the base price in contracts for coal let upon specifications as provided in s. 16.90 (1) terms and conditions. No such continuing agreements or flexible ~~contract shall~~ contracts may exceed one year's duration, but may be renewed twice for one year ~~contingent upon appropriation of the necessary funds.~~

SECTION 15. 16.76 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

16.76 (3) (a) Prices established in continuing agreements and term contracts may be lowered due to general market conditions, but prices shall not be subject to increase for 90 calendar days from the date of award. Any increase proposed shall be submitted to the department 30 calendar days before the proposed effective date of the price increase, and shall be limited to fully documented cost increases to the contractor which are demonstrated to be industrywide. The conditions under which price increases may be granted shall be expressed in bidding documents and contracts or agreements.

(b) The department may accept, negotiate or reject any proposed price increase. Upon rejection, the contractor may exercise any termination clause which has been incorporated into the contract.

SECTION 15t. 16.865 of the statutes is created to read:

**16.865 Department of administration; statewide risk management coordination.** The department shall:

(1) Be responsible for statewide risk management coordination in order to:

(a) Protect the state from losses which are catastrophic in nature and minimize total cost to the state of all activities related to the control of accidental loss.

(b) Place emphasis on the reduction of loss through professional attention to scientific loss control techniques and by motivational incentives, prompt claims payments and other loss prevention measures.

(2) Identify and evaluate exposure to loss to the state, its employes or injury to the public by reason of fire or other accidents and fortuitous events at state-owned properties or facilities.

(3) Recommend changes in procedures, program conditions or capital improvement for all departments which would satisfactorily eliminate or reduce the existing exposure, and coordinate state safety programs for all departments with the assistance of the state safety council.

(4) In cooperation with the commissioner of insurance, arrange appropriate insurance contracts for the transfer of the remaining risk of loss on the part of the state or its employes, to the extent such loss cannot reasonably be assumed by the individual departments, to the appropriate state insurance fund. If the commissioner of insurance concurs that coverage is not available through the state insurance fund then the department shall procure for the departments such necessary coverage from a commercial insurer. The department shall provide assistance necessary in all technical aspects of arrangements with commercial insurers. The placement of insurance may be by private negotiation rather than competitive bid, if such insurance has a restricted number of interested carriers and has been the subject of competitive bid within the preceding 6 years. All insurance purchases shall require the approval of the department.

(5) Train, upgrade and guide appropriate personnel in the departments in implementation of sound risk management practices.

SECTION 16. 16.96 (2) (c) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 37, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

16.96 (2) (c) On or before October 10 of each year, the department shall make any necessary adjustments in its population determinations for the November distribution, and shall notify the clerk of any affected municipality or county of these adjustments. The adjusted population determinations shall be consistent with the methods used statewide for population determinations, and adjustments from the August 1 population determinations shall be made only to accommodate corrected information.

SECTION 17. 16.96 (2) (dm) of the statutes is created to read:

16.96 (2) (dm) The results of special censuses conducted for municipalities and counties under contract with the U.S. bureau of the census shall be used as a basis for the respective population determinations on August 1 if the final certified results of such censuses are received by the department before July 1 in the year in which the determination is being made. The results of special censuses conducted for municipalities and counties under contract with the U.S. bureau of the census shall be used as a basis for the respective population determinations on October 10 if the final certified results of such censuses are received by the department before September 15 in the year in which the determination is made. If a municipality or county notifies the department in writing by September 15 of its intention to contract for a special census with the U.S. bureau of the census in support of a challenge to the August 1 population determination, and if the final certified results of such a special census are received by the department before June 1 in the following year, the department shall adjust the preceding October 10 population estimate to reflect the results of the special census. Upon making such population adjustments, shared tax distributions under ss.



79.02, 79.03, 79.04 and 79.06 shall be corrected according to ss. 79.065 and 79.08. Special census results for census dates occurring after the effective date of any population determination shall be prorated back to the effective date of the estimate for all municipalities. If a municipality contracts with the U.S. bureau of the census for a special census, the results of such special census shall be certified to the department for purposes of shared tax distribution. This section shall become effective for the 1974 distribution under s. 79.03 and shall apply to succeeding distributions under subch. I of ch. 79.

SECTION 18m. 20.001 (3) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

20.001 (3) (e) *Capital improvement authorizations.* The appropriations in s. 20.866 (2) are authorizations to contract public debt in accordance with ch. 18. The amount of debt repaid under each authorization shall not be construed to represent new or additional authority even though the authority is not reduced by the amount of repayment. For these appropriations whereby dollar amounts are shown in the schedule under s. 20.005, the dollar amount represents the new public debt authorizations approved by the legislature for the biennium for which they are made. The limiting dollar amount contained in the language of any appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) is the cumulative total authorization carried over from previous biennia plus any new authorization contained in the schedule.

SECTION 19. 20.002 (10) of the statutes is created to read:

20.002 (10) EXCESS STATE MATCHING FUNDS. All appropriations made to match or secure federal funds are subject to the specific provision that if such funds are in excess of the amounts required to match federal funds, state departments or agencies responsible for the administration of such programs shall promptly notify the federal aid management service of the department of administration which shall promptly notify the governor and the board on government operations of such excess matching funds. Either the governor or the board may then order that such funds be placed in unallotted reserve until approved for release by the governor and the board on government operations.

SECTION 20. At the appropriate place in the schedule in section 20.005 of the statutes, insert the following amounts for the purposes indicated:

	<b>20.115</b>	<b>Agriculture, department of</b>		1973-74	1974-75
	(4)	STATE FAIR AND RELATED PROGRAMS			
	(e)	Aids to world dairy expo, inc.	GPR A	-0-	30,000
	<b>20.235</b>	<b>Higher educational aids board</b>			
	(1)	STUDENT SUPPORT ACTIVITIES			
	(fc)	Talent incentive	GPR B	835,000	835,000
	<b>20.255</b>	<b>Public instruction, department of</b>			
	(1)	EQUAL ED. OPPORTUNITY THROUGH EDUCATION AGENCIES			
	(db)	Screening aids	GPR A	-0-	300,000
	<del><b>20.292</b></del>	<del><b>Vocational, technical and adult</b></del>			
		<del><b>Education, board of</b></del>			
Vetoed	<del>(1)</del>	<del>ED. FOR CAREER DEVELOPMENT AND COMM. IMPROVEMENT</del>			
in Part		<del>(e) State aids for exemption of manufacturing machinery and equipment</del>	<del>GPR A</del>	<del>-0-</del>	<del>1,350,000</del>
	<b>20.370</b>	<b>Natural resources, department of</b>			
	(3)	PARKS			
	(d)	Development and maintenance of Copper Culture Mounds State Park	GPR A	-0-	18,000
	(7)	OUTDOOR RECREATION PROGRAM			
	(m)	Federal aid	PR-F C	25,000	25,000

<b>20.395 Transportation, department of</b>			
(6)	AIRPORTS AND AERONAUTICAL ACTIVITIES		
(h)	State aid, airports	PR C	-0- 981,300
<b>20.435 Health and social services, department of</b>			
(2)	MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES		
(bk)	Chronic long-term patient supplementation	GPR B	600,000 1,200,000
(4)	FAMILY SERVICES		
(dn)	Institutional child care	GPR A	-0- 2,678,200
<b>20.725 Government operations, board on</b>			
(4)	MATCHING FOR FEDERAL AID		
(a)	State matching for coastal zone management planning	GPR B	-0- 80,000
(b)	Apostle island planning	GPR B	-0- 50,000
<b>20.765 Legislature</b>			
(1)	ENACTMENT OF STATE LAWS		
(d)	Legislative computer	GPR A	-0- 45,000
(2)	SPECIAL STUDY GROUPS		
(em)	Menominee restoration study	GPR C	35,000 -0-
<b>20.865 Program supplements</b>			
(1)	EMPLOYE COMPENSATION AND SUPPORT		
(dm)	Printing surcharge	GPR A	215,000 -0-
<b>20.866 Public debt</b>			
(2)	CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AUTHORIZATIONS		
(ut)	Transportation, federally aided highway facilities	BR C	10,000,000 -0-

SECTION 20m. 20.115 (4) (e) of the statutes is created to read:

20.115 (4) (e) *Aids to world dairy expo, inc.* The amounts in the schedule for aids to the world dairy expo, inc. to be used for the payment of premiums under s. 94.13.

SECTION 21. 20.115 (4) (h) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.115 (4) (h) *State fair.* All moneys received for or on account of the state fair, state fair park or other events for general program operations. Any surplus of unexpended receipts on June 30 of each year shall be transferred to the appropriation under par. (i).

SECTION 22. 20.115 (4) (j) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.115 (4) (j) *Principal repayment and interest -- state fair development.* A sum sufficient from revenues earned under par. (h) to reimburse s. ~~13.488 (7), 93.24 and 93.25~~ 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing state fair park facilities.

SECTION 23a. 20.145 (2) (m) of the statutes is created to read:

20.145 (2) (m) *Federal funds.* All federal moneys received as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 for the purposes of the program.

SECTION 24. 20.165 (3) (g) of the statutes, as created by chapter 156, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 25. 20.225 (1) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

20.225 (1) (d) *Statewide educational television and radio programming.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the purposes provided in s. 39.11 (6). Funds appropriated under this section shall be used by the educational communications board and the requesting agency for the acquisition or leasing of media programs for the state's radio and television networks, or for contracting for production of media programs.

SECTION 26. 20.235 (1) (fc) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.235 (1) (fc) *Talent incentive*. ~~A sum sufficient~~ Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to carry out the purposes of s. 39.39.

SECTION 26m. 20.255 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 307, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.255 (1) (d) *State aids for handicapped children*. A sum sufficient for the payment of aids under ~~subch. IV of ch. 115 ss. 115.88 (1) to (7) and 118.255~~.

SECTION 26t. 20.255 (1) (db) of the statutes is created to read:

20.255 (1) (db) *Screening aids*. The amounts in the schedule for local screening activities under s. 115.881. Aids to any county, agency or school district shall not be paid under this paragraph until all claims for such aids have been submitted to and approved by the state superintendent. Aids under this paragraph shall be paid during the school year in which the screening activities are conducted.

SECTION 27. 20.255 (1) (e) and (fc) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 89, 90 and 243, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

20.255 (1) (e) *Home instruction aids for handicapped children*. A sum sufficient for home instruction or extension courses under ~~s. 115.88 subch. IV of ch. 115~~.

(fc) *Cooperative educational service agencies*. The amounts in the schedule for the payment of a maximum of ~~\$35,500~~ \$35,900 in 1973-74 and ~~\$36,200~~ \$36,300 annually thereafter to each cooperative educational service agency, for the current operational expenses of these agencies and \$80,000 annually to reimburse the agencies for agency school committee expenses under s. 116.52 (3). In addition, from funds available under this appropriation, the state superintendent may provide aid to school districts and cooperative educational service agencies for the development of data processing services on a regional basis.

SECTION 28. 20.285 (1) (fb) of the statutes is created to read:

20.285 (1) (fb) *WHA and WHA-TV*. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the operation of WHA and WHA-TV under s. 36.063.

SECTION 28r. 20.285 (2) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.285 (2) (d) *Fee and tuition remissions*. The aggregate amount of nonresident remissions of tuition and fees for any fiscal year for the institutions formerly governed under ch. 36, 1971 stats., with the exception of the legislative fee remission authorized under s. 36.165, shall not exceed the aggregate amount so remitted for those institutions in the 1970-71 fiscal year, and for the institutions formerly governed under ch. 37, 1971 stats., the aggregate amount with the exception of legislative fee remissions authorized under s. 36.165 shall not exceed the aggregate amount so remitted for those institutions in the 1972-73 fiscal year. This limitation shall not restrict the granting of remissions when required under the terms of a contract or gift, or when such remissions are reimbursed as an indirect cost.

~~SECTION 28t. 20.292 (1) (e) of the statutes is created to read:~~

Vetoed  
in Part

~~20.292 (1) (e) *State aids for exemption of manufacturing machinery and equipment*. The amounts in the schedule to be distributed to vocational, technical and adult education districts under s. 38.29 to reduce the impact of the manufacturing machinery and equipment exemption on the property tax base of each district.~~

SECTION 29. 20.370 (1) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.370 (1) (e) *Development and preservation.* Biennially, from moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for lake rehabilitation, preservation and maintenance of scenic or wild rivers under s. 30.26, lake survey and classification under s. 23.09 (2) (m), and artificial lake creation under s. 23.09 (21) and Wolf river preservation.

SECTION 29b. 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes is amended to read:

20.370 (1) (u) *General program operations.* The amounts in the schedule for fish, game and law enforcement operations under ss. 22.165, 23.09 to 23.11 and ch. 29, and well disruption claims caused by Bayfield fish hatchery operations under s. 29.512.

SECTION 29m. 20.370 (3) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

20.370 (3) (d) *Development and maintenance of Copper Culture Mounds State Park.* From moneys allocated under sub. (7) (a), the amounts in the schedule for the development and maintenance of Copper Culture Mounds State Park under s. 27.011.

SECTION 30. 20.370 (5) (f) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 31. 20.370 (7) (m) of the statutes is created to read:

20.370 (7) (m) *Federal aid.* All moneys received as federal aid as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54.

SECTION 32. 20.370 (8) (wc) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

20.370 (8) (wc) *Car pool operations.* All moneys received from car pool use for the operation, maintenance and replacement of car pool vehicles and for the purchase of additional vehicles.

SECTION 33. 20.370 (8) (wd) of the statutes is created to read:

20.370 (8) (wd) *Truck and equipment pool operations.* All moneys received from the use of truck and equipment pool vehicles for the operation, maintenance and replacement of trucks and equipment pool vehicles and for the purchase of additional trucks and equipment.

SECTION 35. 20.395 (3) (z) of the statutes is created to read:

20.395 (3) (z) *Federal aids and grants.* All moneys received from the federal government as authorized by the governor under s. 16.54 for the purpose for which paid.

SECTION 36m. 20.395 (5) (qe) of the statutes is created to read:

20.395 (5) (qe) *Principal repayment and interest, federally aided highway facilities.* A sum sufficient to reimburse s. 20.866 (1) (u) for the payment of principal and interest costs incurred in financing the matching of federal aids for construction of highway facilities under s. 84.53.

SECTION 37. 20.395 (6) (g) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.395 (6) (g) *General program operations.* From those moneys received in the general fund from taxes on air carrier companies under ch. 76 and from registration of aircraft under s. 114.20, the amounts in the schedule ~~to administer the aeronautics transportation facility development and improvement program and related functions specified in ss. 114.31 and 114.34~~ for general program operations.

SECTION 38. 20.395 (6) (h) and (8) (qb) and (qc) of the statutes are created to read:

20.395 (6) (h) *State aid, airports.* From the general fund, the unallotted balance of the moneys received from the sources enumerated in par. (g) for the state's share of airport projects under s. 114.34 and for developing airmarking and other air navigational facilities.

(8) (qb) *Data processing services.* All moneys received as payment for data processing services for costs associated with the operation of the computer services center relating to equipment rental or purchase and such other direct costs as the department deems appropriate.

(qc) *Auto pool operations.* All moneys received as payment for use of auto pool vehicles for costs associated with the operation, maintenance and replacement of such vehicles and for the purchase of additional vehicles.

SECTION 39. 20.435 (2) (bk) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (2) (bk) *Chronic long-term patient supplementation.* Biennially, the amounts in the schedule for the care and treatment of chronic long-term patients served in inpatient mental health facilities. Expenditures from this appropriation shall be made to s. 51.42 boards and only after individual case review and approval by the department. Such review and approval shall be based upon a departmental determination that the individual requires care and treatment in an inpatient mental health facility. No expenditure may be made from this appropriation for care and treatment provided after June 30, 1975.

SECTION 40. 20.435 (2) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 198, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.435 (2) (d) *Aids to county institutions.* A sum sufficient for state aid to county institutions as provided in ss. 48.58 (2), 49.173, 51.08, 51.09, 51.12, 51.24, 51.26, and 51.27 (2) and 51.45, and for the purposes of remitting collections to s. 51.42 and to s. 51.437 boards made by the department in accordance with s. 46.10 (2).

SECTION 41. 20.435 (2) (k) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (2) (k) *Contracts for primary psychiatric care.* All moneys received for direct costs under contracts with s. 51.42 boards in accordance with primary care contracts under chapter 333, laws of 1973, and to be used for the provision of primary psychiatric care at state mental health institutes.

SECTION 41m. 20.435 (3) (d) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.435 (3) (d) *Purchased services for offenders.* The amounts in the schedule for the purchase of services, authorized under s. 46.03 (17) (c), for probationers,

parolees and other offenders. In addition, funds from this appropriation shall be used to reimburse programs under s. 38.04 (12).

SECTION 43. 20.435 (4) (b) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 284, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.435 (4) (b) *Foster care.* The amounts in the schedule for foster care, and institutional child care under ss. 48.48 (4) and (14) and 48.52, and for family care and related expenses provided prior to July 1, 1975, under ss. 48.48 (4), 48.52 and 51.18, and for aid to those handicapped persons under s. 47.40 who at the time they reached age 18 were students regularly attending a school, college or university or regularly attending a course of vocational or technical training designed to fit them for gainful employment, and either were removed from the home of a relative as a result of a judicial determination that continuance in the home would be contrary to their welfare or were members of families receiving or eligible for aid under s. 49.19 s. 51.18 (1).

SECTION 43d. 20.435 (4) (d) and (dh), as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, of the statutes are amended to read:

20.435 (4) (d) *Social security aids; grants and administration.* A sum sufficient to provide state aid for county administered public assistance programs under s. 49.52 and to provide for state administered programs under s. 49.50 (7) and the cost of care for children under s. 49.19 (10) (d). The joint committee on finance as part of its budget determinations in each session shall review the standard allowances for assistance in relation to the social security aid programs and the formula for state reimbursement to counties for such aid program and make recommendations to the legislature relating to changes they deem advisable. Disbursements may be made directly from this appropriation including the state and county share pursuant to s. 46.03 (19). Refunds received relating to payments made under s. 46.03 (19) shall be returned to this appropriation. Counties shall be liable for any share of such disbursements according to the rate established under s. 49.52. The receipt of the counties' payments for their share under s. 46.03 (19) shall be returned to this appropriation.

(dh) *Purchase of care and services.* The amounts in the schedule to reimburse counties for care and services including foster care under ss. 49.19 (10) and 49.50 but excluding institutional child care under ss. 46.22 (5m) and 49.51 (3) purchased by county agencies pursuant to s. 49.51 (3). Disbursements may be made directly from this appropriation including the state and county share pursuant to s. 46.03 (19). Refunds received relating to payments made under s. 46.03 (19) shall be returned to this appropriation. Counties shall be liable for any share of such disbursements according to the rate established under s. 49.52. The receipt of the counties' payments for their share under s. 46.03 (19) shall be returned to this appropriation.

SECTION 43f. 20.435 (4) (dn) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (4) (dn) *Institutional child care.* The amounts in the schedule to provide state aid to counties for 24-hour institutional child care under ss. 46.22 (5m) and 49.51 (3).

SECTION 43g. 20.435 (4) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

20.435 (4) (g) *Computer related services.* All moneys received from counties and other providers for services relating to client related payments to be used to meet the cost of providing computer related services.

SECTION 43m. 20.445 (1) (x) 8 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

20.445 (1) (x) 8. There is appropriated, from the unemployment reserve fund's employment security administrative financing account created by s. 108.161, to the administration fund created by s. 108.20, for use on employment security building projects in accordance with those sections, \$950,000 of the amounts credited to that employment security administrative financing account which are unobligated and available for obligation pursuant to s. 108.161.

SECTION 44. 20.521 (1) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

20.521 (1) (b) *Investigations*. A sum sufficient for the payment of expenses incurred by the ethics board for investigations authorized by the board under s. 11.08 which cannot be conducted within the appropriation under par. (a). The amounts provided in this paragraph shall not be utilized for the support of permanent staff.

SECTION 45. 20.525 (3) (c) and (p) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

20.525 (3) (c) *Law enforcement improvement project aid, local assistance*. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to provide matching funds to local ~~governments~~ agencies for federal project grants to improve the administration of criminal justice.

(p) *Federal aid, law enforcement improvement local assistance*. All moneys received from the federal government to be allocated to local ~~governments~~ agencies for project grants to improve the administration of criminal justice.

SECTION 48. 20.725 (3) (b) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 49. 20.725 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

20.725 (4) **MATCHING FOR FEDERAL AID**. (a) *State matching for coastal zone management planning*. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule to match other state and local funds for coastal zone management planning.

(b) *Apostle Island planning*. Biennially, the amounts in the schedule as matching funds for planning for the development of the Apostle Islands.

SECTION 49m. 20.765 (1) (d) and (2) (em) of the statutes are created to read:

20.765 (1) (d) *Legislative computer*. The amounts in the schedule for acquisition of an intermediate computer system to service legislative data processing under s. 13.92 (1) (d).

(2) (em) *Menominee restoration study*. As a continuing appropriation, the amounts in the schedule for the purposes of s. 13.83 (3) (g).

SECTION 50. 20.835 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.835 (1) (a) *Shared tax supplement*. A sum sufficient to cover any deficiency in the shared tax account under par. (g) to meet the requirements of ~~s. ss. 79.05 and 79.055~~. The general fund shall be reimbursed for any payments under this paragraph as soon as there are sufficient funds in the shared tax account to make the reimbursement.

SECTION 50m. 20.835 (1) (ab) of the statutes is created to read:

20.835 (1) (ab) *Manufacturing machinery and equipment reimbursement*. On April 20, 1975, a sum sufficient not to exceed \$16,500,000 to be transferred to the shared tax account under par. (g) for the distribution required under s. 79.055. If the amount required for the payment under s. 79.055 is less than \$31,100,000, the

appropriation under this paragraph shall be reduced by an amount equal to the difference between \$31,100,000 and the payment required under s. 79.055. This paragraph shall expire on June 30, 1975.

SECTION 52. 20.865 (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

**20.865 Program supplements.** (intro.) There is appropriated to the various state agencies from the respective funds and accounts from which their appropriations are financed such amounts as herein provided, but only after the amounts included in the respective program appropriations for the purposes indicated in this section have been exhausted. All expenditures under this section for purposes normally financed by program revenues shall be charged to the appropriate account, but if the revenues of such account are exhausted or not available such expenditures shall be charged to the general purpose revenues of the fund from which the appropriation was made. Those expenditures paid from general purpose revenues on behalf of program revenues shall be separately accounted for and the general purpose revenue of the appropriate fund shall, except as otherwise provided in s. 20.285 (1) (g), be reimbursed for such expenses as soon as funds become available in the appropriate account. Estimated supplements under this section from other than general fund general purpose revenue shall appear in the schedule as the paragraphs which correspond to the general purpose revenue paragraphs in that subsection, as follows: If general purpose revenue pars. (a), (b), (c), ~~(cm)~~, (d), ~~(dm)~~, (e) or (f) are used, the corresponding program revenue paragraphs shall be pars. (g), (h), (i), ~~(im)~~, (j), ~~(jm)~~, (k) and ~~(L)~~, respectively, and the corresponding segregated fund paragraphs shall be pars. (q), (r), (s), ~~(sm)~~, (t), ~~(tm)~~, (u) and (v), respectively. In the case of annual or biennial appropriations under this section, the amounts available from program and segregated revenues shall be limited to the dollar level specified in the corresponding general purpose revenue appropriation subject to the balances available in the respective accounts or funds.

SECTION 53. 20.865 (1) (dm), (f), (im), (jm), (L), (sm), (tm) and (v) of the statutes are created to read:

20.865 (1) (dm) *Printing surcharge.* The amounts in the schedule to supplement agency budgets to finance the department of administration surcharge to administer printing contracts for state agencies.

(f) *Insurance premiums.* A sum sufficient to pay the cost of insurance premiums assessed under s. 605.21.

(im) *Collective bargaining agreements.* See the introductory paragraph and par. (cm).

(jm) *Printing surcharge.* See the introductory paragraph and par. (dm).

(L) *Insurance premiums.* See the introductory paragraph and par. (f).

(sm) *Collective bargaining agreements.* See the introductory paragraph and par. (cm).

(tm) *Printing surcharge.* See the introductory paragraph and par. (dm).

(v) *Insurance premiums.* See the introductory paragraph and par. (f).

SECTION 54. 20.865 (2) (b) of the statutes, as created by chapter 117, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 55. 20.866 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:



20.866 (1) (u) *Principal repayment and interest.* A sum sufficient from moneys appropriated under ss. 20.115 (4) (j), 20.225 (1) (c), 20.255 (2) (c), 20.285 (1) (d) and (gb), 20.370 (5) (d) and (7) (b) and (em), 20.395 (5) (qa), (qb), (qc) ~~and~~, (qd) ~~and~~ (qe), 20.435 (2) (ee) and (3) (e), 20.485 (1) (f) and 20.710 (1) (a) and (3) (a), (b) and (g) for the payment of principal and interest on public debt acquired in accordance with ch. 18.

SECTION 55m. 20.866 (2) (tm) and (ug) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

20.866 (2) (tm) *Natural resources; water pollution abatement and sewage collection facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule to the department of natural resources to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve water pollution abatement ~~and sewage collection~~ facilities. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$144,000,000 for this purpose. Of this amount, \$5,000,000 is allocated for water pollution abatement and sewage collection facilities pursuant to s. 144.23.

(ug) *Transportation; accelerated bridge improvements.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve intrastate bridges under s. 84.11 and interstate bridges under s. 84.12. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed ~~\$35,000,000~~ \$46,849,800 for this purpose.

SECTION 56m. 20.866 (2) (ut) of the statutes is created to read:

20.866 (2) (ut) *Transportation; federally aided highway facilities.* As a continuing appropriation from the capital improvement fund, the amounts in the schedule to acquire, construct, develop, enlarge or improve highway facilities as provided by s. 84.53. The state may contract public debt in an amount not to exceed \$10,000,000 for this purpose.

SECTION 60. 20.914 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 61. 20.914 (3) of the statutes is renumbered 20.914 (2).

SECTION 61b. 20.916 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 51, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

20.916 (4) (a) Whenever any state agency determines that the duties of any employe require the use of an automobile, it may authorize such employe to use his personal automobile in his work for the state, and reimburse him for such at a rate of 11 cents per mile for the first 500 miles per month and 7 cents per mile for each mile over 500 miles per month. Effective July 1, 1974 the first day of the first month occurring after the effective date of this act (1973), the reimbursement rate shall be 11 cents per mile for the first 600 miles per month and 7 cents per mile for each mile over 600 miles per month.

SECTION 61d. 20.923 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 61g. 20.923 (2) (a) (intro.), 7 and 10 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

20.923 (2) (a) (intro.) The annual salary for each of the following positions shall be set at the midpoint of the assigned salary range for its respective executive salary group in effect at the time of taking the oath of office, except as provided in pars. (b) ~~and~~, (c) ~~and~~ (d) and shall become effective immediately for all incumbent constitutional and other elected state officials, subject to ~~the provisions of~~ Article IV,

Section 26 of the Wisconsin Constitution and for any subsequently elected official who takes his oath of office following ~~the effective date of this act (1973)~~ August 5, 1973.

7. Public instruction, state superintendent: executive salary group 6 7.

10. Supreme court, justice: executive salary group 7 8.

SECTION 61h. 20.923 (2) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

20.923 (2) (d) The annual salary for the chief justice of the supreme court shall be set at the maximum of executive salary group 8.

~~SECTION 61i. 20.923 (3) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:~~

~~20.923 (3) CIRCUIT AND COUNTY JUDGES. The annual salary for any circuit or county judge, including county supplements paid pursuant to ss. 252.016 (2), 252.071 and 253.07 (2), shall not exceed 90% of the midpoint of the salary range for executive salary group 8.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 61m. 20.923 (4) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 156, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

20.923 (4) DEPARTMENT AND AGENCY POSITIONS. Department and agency heads, commission chairmen and members, unclassified division administrators and higher education administrative positions shall be identified and limited in number in accordance with the standardized nomenclature contained in this subsection, and shall be assigned to the following executive salary groups:

(a) Positions assigned to executive salary group 1:

1. Agriculture, department of; division of general laboratories: administrator.
2. Arts board: executive secretary.
3. Business development, department of; division of business development plans and programs: administrator.
4. Law library, state: librarian.
5. Local affairs and development, department of; division of emergency government: administrator.

(b) Positions assigned to executive salary group 2:

1. Agriculture, department of; division of administration: administrator.
2. Agriculture, department of; state fair board: state fair park director.
3. Executive office: highway safety coordinator.
4. Health and social services, department of; division of aging: administrator.
5. Judicial council: executive secretary.
6. Regulation and licensing, department of: secretary.
7. Regulation and licensing, department of; bingo control board: executive secretary.

(c) Positions assigned to executive salary group 3:

1. Agriculture, department of; divisions of meat inspection, food and standards, marketing, plant industries and trade: administrators.

2. Business development, department of; division of business development services: administrator.

3. Credit unions, commissioner of.

4. Higher education aids board: executive secretary.

5. Savings and loan, commissioner of.

6. Transportation, department of; division of aeronautics: administrator.

(d) Positions assigned to executive salary group 4:

1. Administration, department of; tax appeals commission: chairman and members. The chairman of the commission and the governor, at the time a new member is appointed, shall jointly determine the salary of the new member at an hourly rate within the range for this group, and shall also establish the minimum number of hours per week the new member is expected to serve.

2. Agriculture, department of; division of animal health: administrator.

3. Banking, commissioner of.

4. Educational communications board: executive director.

5. Employee trust funds, department of: secretary.

6. Executive office; council on criminal justice: executive director.

7. Executive office: executive secretary.

8. Historical society: director.

9. Legislature, statutory revision bureau: director.

10. Military affairs: adjutant general.

11. Securities, commissioner of.

12. State manpower planning council: executive director.

13. Supreme court: public defender.

14. Transportation, department of; division of motor vehicles: administrator.

15. Transportation, department of; highway commission: member.

16. Veterans affairs, department of: secretary.

(e) Positions assigned to executive salary group 5:

1. Business development, department of: secretary.

2. Employment relations commission: chairman and members.

3. Health and social services, department of; divisions of vocational rehabilitation, family services, corrections and business management: administrators.

4. Industry, labor and human relations commission: member.

5. Insurance, commissioner of.

6. Legislature; legislative council: executive secretary.

7. Legislature; legislative audit bureau: director.

8. Legislature; legislative fiscal bureau: director.

9. Legislature; legislative reference bureau: chief.
10. Public service commission: chairman and members.
11. Transportation, department of; highway commission: chairman.
12. University of Wisconsin system: 2 vice presidents.

(f) Positions assigned to executive salary group 6:

1. Administration, department of; division of health policy and planning: administrator.
2. Agriculture, department of: secretary.
3. Health and social services, department of; division of health: administrator.
4. Industry, labor and human relations commission: chairman.
5. Investment board: executive director.
6. Local affairs and development, department of: secretary.
7. Supreme court: administrative director of courts.
8. Vocational, technical and adult education, board of: director.

(g) Positions assigned to executive salary group 7:

1. Health and social services, department of; division of mental hygiene: administrator.
2. Natural resources, department of: secretary.
3. Revenue, department of: secretary.
4. Transportation, department of: secretary.
5. University of Wisconsin system; Eau Claire, Green Bay, La Crosse, Oshkosh, Parkside, Platteville, River Falls, Stevens Point, Stout, Superior, Whitewater campuses: chancellors.
6. University of Wisconsin system; Madison campus center for health sciences: vice chancellor.
7. University of Wisconsin system; center system: vice provost.
8. University of Wisconsin system; extension system: vice provost.
9. University of Wisconsin system; outreach: provost.

(h) Positions assigned to executive salary group 8:

1. Administration, department of: secretary.
2. University of Wisconsin system; Milwaukee campus: chancellor.

(i) Positions assigned to executive salary group 9:

1. Health and social services, department of: secretary.
2. University of Wisconsin system; Madison campus: chancellor.
3. University of Wisconsin system: 2 senior vice presidents.

(j) Positions assigned to executive salary group 10:

1. University of Wisconsin system: president.

SECTION 61p. 20.923 (5), (8) and (13) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 243, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

20.923 (5) UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM POSITIONS. Except for those positions designated in sub. (4), associate and assistant vice presidents of the university of Wisconsin system; vice chancellors not identified in sub. (8), assistant chancellors, associate and assistant vice chancellors and assistants to the chancellors, along with administrative directors and associate directors of activities coded as physical plant, general operations and services and auxiliary enterprises or their equivalent, of the several campuses of the university of Wisconsin system shall be assigned to specific executive salary ranges by the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system in whatever manner the board determines. The salaries for such positions shall be limited only by the maximum of the respective salary range. No position under this subsection may be assigned to a salary group higher than executive salary group 5. Any official affected by this subsection whose salary exceeds the maximum of group 5 ~~on the effective date of this section (1973) August 5, 1973,~~ shall remain at his current rate of pay as provided in sub. (16). This subsection shall take effect upon its enactment and the assignments to the respective salary ranges shall be completed and reported to the governor and the legislature as soon as practicable but not later than ~~July 1, 1974~~ January 1, 1975. Thereafter, the board of regents shall annually review the assignment of the positions under this subsection and report any changes therein to the governor and the legislature.

(8) DEPUTIES. Salaries for deputies appointed pursuant to ss. 15.05 (2) and 15.16, shall be set by the appointing authority. The salary shall not exceed the maximum of the salary range one range below the salary range of the executive salary group to which the department or agency head is assigned. The positions of assistant secretary of state, assistant state treasurer ~~and~~, associate director of the historical society, and the deputy or vice chancellor of any university of Wisconsin campus who is clearly serving in a line capacity as a deputy responsible for assisting the chancellor in directing all campus programs shall be treated as unclassified deputies for pay purposes under this subsection.

(13) OTHER BOARD OF VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION POSITIONS. The salary of unclassified positions in the board of vocational, technical and adult education, other than the director ~~and the deputy~~, shall not exceed the salary range maximum for executive salary group 2.

SECTION 61s. 20.923 (16) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is renumbered 20.923 (16) (a).

SECTION 61t. 20.923 (16) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

20.923 (16) (b) Effective the first Monday of January, 1979, and thereafter, the pay of any incumbent of a position assigned to an executive salary group under this section shall not equal or exceed that amount paid the governor.

~~SECTION 61w. 20.923 (17) of the statutes is created to read:~~

Vetoed  
in Part

~~20.923 (17) "INCREASE" DISTINGUISHED. It is the sense of the legislature that an economic adjustment of compensation or other emoluments within the guidelines of s. 16.085, for the purpose of preserving the effective rate of compensation or other emoluments for the office or position, shall not be considered an increase of such compensation or other emoluments in the interpretation of sections 12 and 26 of article IV of the constitution, s. 13.04 (1) (c) or this section.~~

SECTION 63. 23.09 (23) of the statutes is amended to read:

23.09 (23) (title) YOUTH CAMPS. The department may establish and operate youth conservation camps for boys and girls. The camps shall be operated in areas suitable for constructive employment in conservation projects, and boys and girls employed shall be deemed to be in the unclassified service. The department may acquire by fee or by lease all lands and facilities necessary for the establishment of camps.

SECTION 64. 25.17 (3) (bf) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.17 (3) (bf) 1. Subject to subd. 2, make sums available, at the request of the higher educational aids board, for the purpose of making additional loans to needy students under s. 39.32. Such sums shall be made available notwithstanding sub. (61) and shall not exceed ~~\$40,000,000~~ \$45,000,000 outstanding at any one time of the balances of the general fund. Such loans shall initially be made by the higher educational aids board from the appropriations under s. 20.235 (1) (g). Despite the specific provisions of sub. (1), the responsibility for collection of the interest and principal on such loans to students shall rest in the higher educational aids board and the function of the investment board shall be limited to advancing funds to the higher educational aids board, based upon the certificates of the higher educational aids board as to the current status of the student loans made, due and collectible under s. 39.32, and to periodically receiving from the appropriations made by s. 20.235 (1) (fa), (g), (h) and (m) payments of principal and interest on the advances made to the higher educational aids board, interest to be computed monthly at 4% per annum on the unpaid principal balance of the advances, made prior to July 1, 1966, and at the maximum rate allowable under P.L. 89-329 and P.L. 89-287, or 4%, whichever is the greater, on all loans made on or after July 1, 1966, computed as of January 1 and July 1 of each year and payable within 90 days thereafter.

2. A cumulative total of not more than ~~\$40,000,000~~ \$45,000,000 may be advanced under this section upon the request of the higher educational aids board. However, the investment board shall advance such funds only when the board on government operations determines that the liquidity of the general fund is not in danger to a point which will not permit this state to pay its obligations as they arise, and subsequently approves advance of such funds based upon such determination.

SECTION 64m. 25.40 (1) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

25.40 (1) (e) All moneys paid into the state treasury by any local unit of government or other source for highway purposes except for those which are received to match or supplement federal aid authorized and received for extensions of the federal aid primary and federal aid secondary systems within urban areas and for the federal aid urban system;

SECTION 65. 27.011 of the statutes is amended to read:

**27.011 Copper Culture Mounds State Park.** The department of natural resources shall accept a grant of lands in the city of Oconto, Oconto county, ~~to be developed and~~ shall develop and maintain it as a state park to be known as Copper Culture Mounds State Park.

SECTION 65a. 27.075 of the statutes is created to read:

**27.075 County exercise of municipal park powers.** (1) The county board of any county with a population of less than 500,000 is hereby vested with all powers of a local, legislative and administrative character for the purpose of governing, managing, controlling, improving and caring for public parks, parkways, boulevards and pleasure drives; and to carry out these powers in districts which it may create for different purposes, or throughout the county, and for such purposes to levy county taxes, to issue bonds, assessment certificates and improvement bonds, or any other evidence of

indebtedness. The powers hereby conferred may be exercised by the county board in any town, city or village, or part thereof located in such county upon the request of any such town, city or village, evidenced by a resolution adopted by a majority vote of the members-elect of its governing body, designating the particular park function, duty or act, and the terms, if any, upon which the same shall be exercised by the county board. Such resolution shall state whether the authority or function is to be exercised exclusively by the county or jointly by the county and the town, city or village, and shall also state that the exercise of such power by the county is in the public interest. Upon the receipt of the resolution, the county board may, by a resolution adopted by a majority vote of its membership, elect to assume the exercise of such authority or function, upon the terms and conditions set forth in the resolution presented by the town, city or village.

(2) The county board of any such county may, by a resolution adopted by a majority of its membership, propose to the towns, cities and villages located in such county, or any of them, that it offers to exercise such powers and functions therein in order to consolidate municipal park services and functions in said county. Such resolution shall designate the particular function, duty or act and the terms and conditions, if any, upon which the county board will perform the same. The powers conferred in sub. (1) and designated in such resolution may thereafter be exercised by the county board in each such town, city or village which shall accept such proposal by the adoption of a resolution by a majority vote of the members-elect of its governing body.

(3) After the adoption of resolutions by the county board, the county board shall have full power to legislate upon and administer the entire subject matter committed to it, and among other things, to determine, where not otherwise provided by law, the manner of exercising the power thus assumed.

(4) The town, city or village concerned may enter into necessary contracts with the county, and appropriate money to pay the county for the reasonable expenses incurred in rendering the park services assumed. Such expenses may be certified, returned and paid as are other county charges, and in the case of services performed pursuant to a proposal for the consolidation thereof initiated by the county board and made available to each town, city and village in the county on the same terms, the expenses thereof shall be certified, returned and paid as county charges; but in the event that each and every town, city and village in the county shall accept such proposal of the county board the expenses thereof shall be paid by county taxes to be levied and collected as are other taxes for county purposes. Said towns, cities and villages are vested with all necessary power to do the things herein required, and to do all things and to exercise or relinquish any of the powers herein provided or contemplated. The procedure herein provided for the request or acceptance of the exercise of the powers conferred on the county board in cities and villages is hereby prescribed as a special method of determining the local affairs and government of such cities and villages pursuant to section 3 of article XI of the constitution.

(5) The powers conferred by this section shall be in addition to all other grants of power and shall be limited only by express language.

SECTION 65b. 29.48 (3) and (4) of the statutes are created to read:

29.48 (3) The eggs from trout and salmon lawfully taken and possessed, when removed from the fish are exempted from this section.

(4) The tails and skin of any squirrel lawfully killed, when severed from the rest of the carcass are exempted from this section.

SECTION 65c. 29.512 of the statutes is created to read:

**29.512 Well disruptions caused by Bayfield hatchery operations.** (1) Upon complaint in writing by an owner or lessee of land to the department that operation of the well by the department at the Bayfield fish hatchery has caused damage through disruption of well operations located within 10,000 feet of the fish hatchery well, the department shall inquire into the matter. If it appears to the department that the facts stated in the complaint are true, the department shall pay to the claimant the amount of such damages, as determined by the department.

(2) If the department determines not to pay the claim or if the amount of damages cannot be agreed upon, the claimant may present his claim to the claims board in accord with s. 16.007.

SECTION 66. 35.19 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**35.19 Pamphlet laws.** Editions of parts of the statutes in pamphlet form may be produced for official use and for public sale by the department. Pamphlet laws produced for official use shall be charged to the requisitioning agency.

SECTION 68. 36.063 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**36.063 Broadcasting station WHA and WHA-TV, experimental television.** The board of regents, as licensee, shall manage, operate and maintain broadcasting station WHA and WHA-TV and shall enter into an affiliation agreement with the educational communications board pursuant to s. 39.14 to provide that the board of regents shall grant the educational communications board the part-time use of equipment and space necessary for the operations of the state educational radio and television networks.

SECTION 68g. 36.16 (1) (d) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

36.16 (1) (d) Within the limits established by s. 20.285 (2) (d), the board may remit nonresident tuition either in whole or in part at each institution, but not other fees:

1. To a number of needy and worthy nonresident students upon the basis of merit, to be shown by suitable tests, examinations or scholastic records and continued high standards of scholastic attainment. The aggregate amount of these nonresident remissions of tuition shall not exceed an amount equal to full remissions for 8% of the number of nonresident students registered at that institution in the preceding year, excluding those students participating in interstate agreements under s. 39.42.

2. To additional individual students who, in the judgment of the board, are deserving of relief from the assessment of nonresident tuition because of extraordinary circumstances. The aggregate amount of these nonresident remissions of tuition shall not exceed an amount equal to full remissions for 2% of the number of nonresident students registered in the preceding year, excluding those students participating in interstate agreements under s. 39.42.

SECTION 68k. 36.165 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 96, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

**36.165 Scholarships, legislative.** In addition to the number of remissions of nonresident tuition authorized under this section, each state senator and each representative to the assembly may recommend a nonresident whose scholastic qualifications entitle such person to attend a university or center and whose nonresident tuition for a semester or the school year for which recommended shall be remitted by the board. Not more than one such remission per semester shall be made for any one legislator and each nonresident whose tuition shall have been remitted



under this paragraph shall be entitled to continue in attendance for the period for which recommended if the nonresident continues to meet the system's general standards for continuance therein as a student. Such recommendations shall be submitted either annually or each semester to the board in such manner as the board designates not later than the end of the first week of instruction for the semester in which the remission of tuition is to be effective. A legislator who assumes office during a school year may make a recommendation for the 2nd semester of that year only when a recommendation of the legislator's predecessor is not effective for that term. Should any nonresident student who is recommended fail to matriculate for any semester a successor for such semester may be recommended by such legislator.

SECTION 69. 36.33 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 71e. 38.04 (12) of the statutes is created to read:

38.04 (12) PRISON INMATE EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM. The board may establish vocational educational programs for inmates within the state correctional system and contract with the department of health and social services for reimbursement of that portion of the district program costs which exceeds amounts received as state and federal aid.

SECTION 72. 38.06 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**38.06 District boundaries.** (1) Each district shall include one or more counties, municipalities or school districts in any contiguous combination.

(2) In this section, "reorganization" means any alteration, dissolution, creation or merger of any district.

(3) (a) Upon its own motion or upon approval of a petition filed under sub. (4), the board may issue a district reorganization order. Prior to issuing an order under this subsection, the board shall conduct such studies, investigations and hearings as it deems necessary.

(b) Any reorganization order issued by the board shall take effect on the July 1 next succeeding the date of such order except that no order for reorganization of any district shall become effective before July 1, 1976.

(c) Three months prior to the effective date of any reorganization order, the board shall report to the joint committee on finance the fiscal and educational impact of the reorganization order upon the affected districts.

(4) (a) The governing body of a county, municipality or school district may file a petition with the board requesting that its territory be detached from the district in which it lies and attached to a district to which such territory is contiguous, or if portions of its territory lie in more than one district, by requesting that all such portions be placed within one of such districts.

(b) Immediately upon receipt of the petition, the board shall notify each district board affected of the receipt of the petition and the boundary reorganization requested therein. Such district boards shall within 45 days notify the board of their recommendations on the petition.

(c) Within 90 days of the receipt of the petition, the board shall notify the governing body filing the petition and the district boards affected of its approval or disapproval of the proposed detachment and attachment of territory.

(5) If school district boundaries are changed in accordance with chs. 115 to 121, the board may act to change district boundaries to coincide with school district boundaries without holding a public hearing.

~~SECTION 73. 38.29 of the statutes is created to read:~~

~~38.29 State aid for exemption of manufacturing machinery and equipment. (1) On or before April 20, 1975, the board shall pay each district from the appropriation under s. 20.292 (1) (e) an amount equal to the May 1, 1974, value of manufacturing machinery and equipment exempted in each district under s. 70.11 (27), as determined by the department of revenue, multiplied by the tax rate of each such district as applied to the May 1, 1974, assessment of all taxable property within the district.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

~~(2) If the appropriation for state aid under s. 20.292 (1) (e) in fiscal year 1974-75 is insufficient to pay the full amount under sub. (1), the state aid payments shall be prorated among the districts entitled thereto.~~

SECTION 75. 39.11 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.11 (6) Furnish leadership in securing adequate funding for state-wide statewide joint use of radio and television for educational and cultural purposes, including funding for media programming for broadcast over the state networks. The educational communications board may submit joint budget requests with state agencies and other nonstate organizations or corporations for the purposes stated above;

SECTION 76. 39.14 of the statutes is created to read:

**39.14 Affiliation agreement.** (1) The educational communications board may enter into an affiliation agreement with broadcast radio and television licensees for the purpose of furthering its responsibilities under s. 39.11 (2), (4), (7), (13) and (14). An affiliation agreement shall include the minimum amount of programming of the Wisconsin educational radio or television network to be carried by the affiliated radio and television station.

(2) Any amendment to an agreement under sub. (1) in the amount of programming to be carried by the affiliated licensee which is offered by the Wisconsin educational radio or television network may be made by mutual agreement between the affiliated licensee and the educational communications board.

(3) Any nonprofit affiliated licensee of the Wisconsin educational radio or television network shall be required to submit to the educational communications board an annual report of their operating and capital budgets, plans for future development and expansion, schedules of weekly broadcast programming, and all other information deemed reasonable and appropriate by the contracting parties.

(4) The educational communications board shall negotiate an affiliation agreement under s. 36.063 with the university of Wisconsin system.

SECTION 76b. 39.155 of the statutes is created to read:

**39.155 Medical college of Wisconsin; state aid and tuition policies.** (1) Effective July 1, 1975, all funds appropriated to the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. under s. 20.250, shall be based on a per capita formula for an amount for each Wisconsin resident student enrolled at the college. A student's qualification as a resident of this state shall be determined under s. 36.16, so far as applicable.

(2) Effective for the fall semester, 1975, the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. shall charge a tuition to students who are residents of this state, not to exceed the first

Vetoed  
in Part

Vetoed in Part ~~year~~ medical student tuition charged at the university of Wisconsin-Madison medical school for that same academic year. The state may appropriate to the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. under s. 20.250 an amount equal to the difference between tuition actually charged to residents of this state, and the tuition charged to nonresidents, for each state resident student enrolled.

SECTION 76e. 39.16 of the statutes is created to read:

**39.16 Medical education review committee.** There is created a medical education review committee consisting of 9 members as follows. Five members shall be appointed by the governor for staggered 5-year terms, and shall be selected from citizens with broad knowledge of medical education who are currently not associated with either of the medical schools of this state. The remaining members of the committee shall be the president of the board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system or his designee, the president of the university of Wisconsin system or his designee, a representative designated by the board of trustees of the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. and the president of the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. or his designee.

(2) The medical education review committee shall:

(a) Stimulate the development of cooperative programs by the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. and the university of Wisconsin-Madison medical school, and advise the governor and legislature on the viability of such cooperative arrangements.

(b) Develop basic information on the potential resources for medical education in this state.

(c) Study the resources available and needs for hospital affiliations throughout the state, and approve hospital affiliations after developing a statewide plan in consultation with the 2 medical institutions and various hospitals.

(d) Encourage the development of continuing education programs for practicing physicians in this state, including communication links with outlying regions of the state that would allow practitioners to have access to their medical schools.

(e) Encourage the development of training programs in primary care.

(f) Encourage the development of joint or cooperative programs for training of allied health personnel and the development of accelerated bachelor of science and doctor of medicine training programs.

(g) Encourage the development of systems for cross registration of students for specialized courses.

(h) Stimulate the development of joint research and patient care programs that would most effectively apply the resources of both schools and avoid duplication of expensive equipment and personnel, and help attract resources for such developments and projects.

(i) Draw upon existing executive, legislative and agency personnel for the provision of staff services to the committee. Any necessary and reasonable expenses incurred by the committee shall be paid from the appropriation under s. 20.505 (5) (a).

SECTION 77. 39.39 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

39.39 (1) (b) ~~There shall be 500 grants~~ The board shall determine the number of grants to be awarded to new students for each academic year beginning in September 1972. All students who maintain a satisfactory academic record shall have their grants renewed for the equivalent of one additional academic year.

SECTION 78. 39.43 (4) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

39.43 (4) Loans made to students under this section shall be forgiven at the rate of one-fifth the sum total of the amount borrowed plus accrued interest for each year the recipient practices, or is otherwise employed in the critical manpower occupation in this state.

SECTION 78a. 39.44 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is renumbered 39.15 and amended to read:

**39.15 Aid for medical education.** As a condition to the release of funds under s. 20.250, one-third of the members of the board of trustees of the medical college of Wisconsin, inc., shall be nominated by the governor, and with the advice and consent of the senate appointed, for staggered 6-year terms expiring on May 1 and the college shall give first preference in admissions to residents of this state. The legislative audit bureau shall biennially ~~post-audit~~ postaudit expenditures under s. 20.250 so as to assure the propriety of expenditures and compliance with legislative intent. State affirmative action policies, rules and practices shall be applied to the medical college of Wisconsin, inc. consistent with their application to state agencies.

SECTION 78p. 40.11 (2) (g) of the statutes is created to read:

40.11 (2) (g) For purposes of this subchapter a person who becomes an employe of the state of Wisconsin pursuant to chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 546, as affected by chapter 333, laws of 1973, section 189b, may use service as a member of the employe's retirement system of the county of Milwaukee to meet any service requirement under this subchapter.

SECTION 80p. 41.13 (2) (a) 2a of the statutes is created to read:

41.13 (2) (a) 2a. A participant who becomes an employe of the state of Wisconsin pursuant to chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 546, as affected by chapter \_\_\_\_\_ (this act), laws of 1973, section 189b, may consider service as a member of the employes' retirement system of the county of Milwaukee as service for a predecessor employer for purposes of subd. 2.

SECTION 84. 45.37 (2) (f) and (g) and (9) (a) and (c) of the statutes are amended to read:

45.37 (2) (f) ~~Assets. Reports~~ Prior to the effective date of this act (1973) reports or has total assets under \$1,000, unless prior to admission to the home the applicant turns over all assets in excess of \$1,000 to the department in prepayment for care and maintenance actually provided by the home during the period of residence. After the effective date of this act (1973) a veteran may be admitted to the home if he reports or has total assets of less than the maximum permitted under ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder, unless prior to admission to the home the applicant turns over all assets in excess of such maximum to the department in prepayment for care and maintenance actually provided by the home during the period of residence. Property or any interest therein conveyed or disposed of by the applicant within 5 years immediately prior to application for admission by gift or for less than adequate consideration shall be considered assets upon admission to the extent of the value of the gift or to the extent consideration therefor was inadequate unless such assets were conveyed to the state or unless it is determined by the department that the conveyance or disposal of such assets had no relation to prospective entrance into the home. All such assets turned over to the department shall be converted to cash as soon as practicable after the applicant is admitted to membership but, ~~in the event if~~ the applicant's homestead is occupied by his legal dependents as their sole residence, the

department shall make such homestead and household furniture and fixtures therein available to them for as long as it is so occupied, and such legal dependents shall be responsible for all expenses incidental to such occupancy and use. ~~In the event~~ If such expenses incidental to such occupancy and use are not paid by such legal dependents, including without limitation because of enumeration, real estate taxes, special assessments, insurance premiums, mortgage instalment payments, and payment for repairs, in its sole discretion the department may pay such expenses from the appropriation in s. 20.485 (1) (h).

(g) *Satisfaction of lien.* If a member whose homestead has not been sold and whose legal dependents are occupying such homestead dies, the department shall quitclaim its interest in such homestead to such legal dependents either upon payment to the department of an amount equal to all expenditures made by it on such homestead pursuant to par. (f) or upon execution by such legal dependents of a promissory, instalment payment note, to the department in such amount within 6 months after the member's death. Such note shall bear interest at the rate of 7% per annum on unpaid balances of principal and shall be secured by a real estate mortgage on such homestead. Any quitclaim deed executed by the department under this subsection shall include household furniture and furnishings in the homestead. If such payment is not made or such note and mortgage executed within 6 months of the member's death, ~~his~~ such member's legal dependents shall be divested of all right, title and interest in and to such homestead. Any quitclaim deed executed under this paragraph or under sub. (16) (e) reconveying a member's homestead to the member upon discharge from the home or to the member's legal dependents upon such member's death shall be subject to any lien rights acquired under sub. (12).

(9) (a) *Maximum retention.* Each member of the home, ~~regardless of the date of his admission~~ admitted to the home prior to January 1, 1974, may ~~either elect to retain from his monthly income an amount not exceeding the greater of the maximum income allowed under ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder or \$40.50 of his monthly income,~~ plus an amount equal to the payment made to him or which would otherwise be due him for services rendered the home under its work therapy program and income received by him from the sale of products or services through the hobby shop, and shall pay all of his remaining income into the general fund of the state. Each member of the home admitted to the home on or after January 1, 1974, may retain monthly income in an amount not exceeding the maximum income allowed under ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder and shall pay all remaining income into the general fund of the state.

(c) *Work therapy program compensation.* The board shall establish a pay plan for compensation of members for services rendered to the home under its work therapy program. A member admitted to the home prior to January 1, 1974, who is participating in such program, and whose monthly income is insufficient to permit him to retain the amount set forth in par. (a), shall receive direct payment thereunder from the department on the basis of the amount due him for such services or on the basis of the difference between his total monthly income and the amount he would be permitted to retain under par. (a) if his income was sufficient to permit maximum retention, whichever is less. A member admitted to the home after December 31, 1973, may receive payment for such services only if such payment conforms with the requirements in ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder.

SECTION 85. 45.37 (9b) of the statutes is created to read:

45.37 (9b) ASSESSMENT OF MEMBERS' ACCOUNTS. If the assets of a member admitted to the home after December 31, 1973, exceed the asset maximums permitted under ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder, the amount in excess of such

maximum shall be paid into such member's prepaid care account by the department, but in accord with the above statutes and rules.

SECTION 86. 45.37 (17) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

45.37 (17) **ADDITIONAL ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS.** Any person admitted to the home ~~for nursing or intermediate care after December 31, 1973,~~ shall meet during his residence at the home the eligibility requirements under ~~s. ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder.~~ Any person admitted to the home for domiciliary care shall meet the income and resource requirements under ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder, except that:

(a) Persons with sufficient income and resources to meet the expenses of care for one or more months may be admitted ~~for nursing, intermediate or domiciliary care, to~~ or remain in membership at the home but shall apply income and resources to costs to the extent required by ~~s. ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder; or~~

(b) Persons who meet all the requirements of this section but whose degree of physical disability does not meet the minimum requirements in ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder may be admitted to or remain in membership at the home but shall apply income and resources to costs to the extent required by ss. 49.45 and 49.46 and rules adopted thereunder.

SECTION 86b. 45.71 (1) (intro.), (b) and (c) of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

45.71 (1) (intro.) "Anticipated annual shelter payment" means the total annual payments anticipated for the following, as determined by the department or authorized lender on the basis of the loan applied for under s. 45.79 or 45.80:

(b) Insurance premiums for coverage required under s. 45.79 (3) (b) or 45.80 (4) (b).

(c) Required payments on principal and interest on all mortgages placed or to be placed against the home of an eligible person.

SECTION 86d. 45.72 (intro.), (3) and (9) (intro.) of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

45.72 (title) **Powers of the department.** (intro.) In ~~providing financial assistance respect to loans made by and mortgages and mortgage notes executed or properties mortgaged to the department or to authorized lenders~~ under this subchapter or s. 45.352, 1971 stats., the department may:

(3) Compromise indebtedness due on mortgage notes ~~held by the department under this subchapter.~~

(9) (intro.) ~~In regard to mortgages held by the department under this subchapter,~~ upon ~~Upon~~ application by the mortgagor and agreement in writing executed by the parties:

SECTION 86e. 45.72 (5) and (6) of the statutes are created to read:

45.72 (5) Exercise the rights of a mortgagee generally including but not limited to, the right to:

(a) Acquire or take possession of such mortgaged property and in so doing the department may accept voluntary surrender and conveyance of title to such property in

full satisfaction of a mortgage debt or may bid for and purchase such property at a sheriff's sale or replevin such property.

(b) Commit itself to execute and execute subordination agreements, partial releases and other necessary instruments.

(c) Set up and follow procedures to assure proper disbursement of the proceeds of insurance checks covering damages sustained on mortgaged properties.

(d) Pay the principal and interest on any obligations incurred in connection with such mortgages on such property including real estate taxes, insurance premiums, attorney fees and obligations created as a result of its exercise of powers vested in it under this subchapter.

(e) Exercise such other powers as may be necessary for the efficient administration of this subchapter.

(6) In contracts entered into pursuant to s. 45.79 (5) (a) 1, empower authorized lenders to exercise any of the powers vested in the department under this subchapter.

SECTION 86f. 45.76 (1) (intro.) of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

45.76 (1) PRIMARY AND SECONDARY MORTGAGE LOAN PROGRAM. (intro.) An authorized lender may, with the approval of the department ~~and with funds provided by the authority~~, make loans under s. 45.79 and the department may make loans under s. 45.80 for:

SECTION 86g. 45.79 (1), (3) (a) 1 and (4) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

45.79 (1) LOANS AUTHORIZED. An authorized lender may, as agent for and with the approval of the department ~~and with funds provided by the authority~~, make loans to eligible persons for qualified purposes in the manner provided under this section.

(3) (a) 1. Each loan made under this section shall be evidenced by a promissory instalment note and secured by a mortgage on the real estate in respect to which the loan is granted which names the ~~authority~~ authorized lender involved as mortgagee and payee. Such mortgage and note shall be assigned by the authorized lender to the authority immediately upon execution. Such mortgage must have priority over all liens against the mortgaged premises and the buildings and improvements thereon, except tax and special assessment liens filed after the recording of the mortgage.

(4) (a) The department shall determine the interest rate on loans made under this section. The interest rate so determined shall not be increased during the term of the loan. The interest rate shall not exceed 1.25% plus the rate necessary to fully repay interest on bonds issued by the authority to provide moneys for loans made under this section. ~~All revenues resulting from interest rates, except for such revenues as are necessary for the purposes set forth in subd. 2, shall be paid to the authority to be deposited in the veterans housing bond redemption fund and shall be disbursed therefrom as provided in s. 234.43 (2).~~

SECTION 86h. 45.79 (4) (a) 2 of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 86i. 45.79 (5) (a) 1 and 8 and (c) of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

45.79 (5) (a) 1. Enter into contracts with authorized lenders throughout this state authorizing such lenders to process applications, ~~act as the closing agent for the department and close~~ and service loans made under this section. The contracts shall include the responsibilities of the authorized lender with respect to credit evaluations, financial eligibility determinations, valuation of the home for which the loan is to be made, collection procedures in the event of delinquent loan repayments and other functions which the department may require. Such contracts shall authorize the lender to retain an amount from the monthly payments for servicing loans made by this section. The rate of the service fee shall be negotiated by the department with the lender in accordance with current practices under similar programs, and shall be stated in the contracts. A maximum length of time between receipt of monthly mortgage payments by the lender and transmittal of such payments to the ~~department~~ authority shall be established by the department with respect to all loans to be purchased by the authority and specified in the contracts.

8. The department may exercise all of the powers vested in it under this subchapter in relation respect to any applications for loans and loans approved under this section and in respect to any mortgages and mortgage notes executed to authorized lenders and assigned to and purchased by the authority under this section and the properties securing such mortgages. The department is specifically authorized in its discretion to exercise or authorize such powers to be exercised in its own name.

(c) Appropriation of funds. Loans ~~granted~~ made under this section shall be ~~paid~~ purchased by the authority from the veterans housing loan fund under s. 234.41. All receipts of interest, except ~~interest allocation for the purposes of s. 45.79 (4) (a) 2~~ amounts retained as servicing fees by the authorized lenders servicing such loans, and principal on such loans, payments of losses by insurers not used for restoration of the property securing such loans, and any other collections, shall be ~~remitted by the department to the authority to be deposited by the authority~~ in the veterans housing bond redemption fund under s. 234.43 and shall be disbursed therefrom as provided in s. 234.43 (2).

SECTION 86j. 45.80 (6) of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

45.80 (6) ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS. Loans granted under this section shall be paid out of the appropriation in s. 20.485 (2) (y). All receipts of interest and principal on such loans, payments of losses by insurers not used for restoration of the property securing such loans, and any other collections, shall be deposited in the veterans trust fund. All payments necessary to protect the state's investment shall be made from the appropriation in s. 20.485 (2) (y). The department may write off indebtedness on mortgage loans made under this section or s. 45.352, 1971 stats., which it deems uncollectable.

SECTION 86m. 46.013 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.013 (2) SECRETARY; ELIGIBILITY. The secretary's appointment shall be made on the basis of recognized and demonstrated interest in and knowledge of the problems of public welfare and a demonstrable awareness of tolerable limits of the burden of taxation acceptable therein to the citizens of this state. ~~His salary shall be fixed by the board at not to exceed \$2,500 more than the maximum of the highest classified salary range in the department.~~ The board shall consider, among other qualifications, his interest in and knowledge of the treatment phases of public welfare programs. Racial, religious, national or political affiliations shall not be considered in the selection of the secretary.



SECTION 87. 46.03 (18) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

46.03 (18) UNIFORM FEE SCHEDULE, LIABILITY AND COLLECTIONS. (a) The department shall establish a uniform system of fees for services provided or purchased by the department, a county department of public welfare or a board under s. 51.42 or 51.437, except for services provided to courts, or for outreach, information and referral services, or where as determined by the department, a fee is administratively unfeasible or would significantly prevent accomplishing the purpose of the service.

(b) Any person receiving services provided or purchased under par. (a) or the spouse of such person and, in the case of a minor child, the parents of the person, shall be liable for such services in the amount of the fee established under par. (a).

(c) The department shall make collections from the person who in the opinion of the department is best able to pay, giving due regard to the present needs of the person or of his lawful dependents. The department may bring action in the name of the department to enforce the liability established under par. (b). This paragraph does not apply to the recovery of fees for the care and services specified under s. 46.10.

(d) The department may compromise or waive all or part of the liability for services received. The sworn statement of the collection and deportation counsel appointed under s. 46.10 (7) or the department secretary, shall be evidence of the services provided and the fees charged for such services.

(e) The department may delegate to county departments of public welfare and providers of care and services under sub. (17) such powers and duties vested in the department by par. (c) as it deems necessary to efficiently administer this subsection, subject to such conditions as the department deems appropriate.

SECTION 87f. 46.03 (20) of the statutes is created to read:

46.03 (20) CHECK WRITING. (a) The department may make payments directly to recipients of public assistance or to such persons authorized to receive such payments in accordance with law and rules of the department for those counties which have contracted to have such payments made on their behalf.

(b) The department may make social service payments directly to recipients, vendors or providers in accordance with law and rules of the department from those counties which have contracts to have such payments made on their behalf.

(c) The county agency shall provide the department with information which the department shall use to determine each person's eligibility and amount of payment. The county agency shall provide the department all necessary information in the manner prescribed by the department.

(d) The department shall disburse from state or federal funds or both the entire amount and charge the county for its share under s. 49.52.

SECTION 88. 46.036 (3) (c) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

46.036 (3) (c) The department shall establish allowable profits and indirect and supportive services including payments to clients necessary to provide the direct services established in the contract.

SECTION 89. 46.064 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

**46.064 Client wages, allowances and release payments.** The department may pay a wage or an allowance and a release payment to clients at its institutions. The

department shall prescribe the amounts of pay and such hours, health and other conditions in connection with employment as are reasonable.

SECTION 90. 46.10 (title), (1) and (2) of the statutes are repealed and recreated to read:

**46.10 (title) Cost of care and maintenance, liability; collection and deportation counsel; collections; court actions; recovery.** (1) Liability and the collection and enforcement of such liability for the care, maintenance, services and supplies specified in this section is governed exclusively by this section.

(2) Any patient receiving care, maintenance, services and supplies provided by any charitable or curative institution in this state including Wisconsin general hospital, in which the state is chargeable with all or part of the patient's maintenance, except tuberculosis patients under ch. 50 and ss. 51.27 and 58.06 (2), and any person receiving care and services under boards or facilities established under ss. 49.175, 51.42 and 51.437, and his property and estate, including his homestead, and the spouse of such patient, and his property and estate, including the homestead, and, in the case of a minor child, the parents of such patient, and their property and estates, including their homestead, shall be liable for the cost of the care, maintenance, services and supplies in accordance with the fee schedule established by the department under s. 46.03 (18). The department may bring action for the enforcement of such liability. If a spouse, widow or minor, or an incapacitated person may be lawfully dependent upon such property for their support, the court shall release all or such part of the property and estate from such charges that may be necessary to provide for such persons. The department shall make every reasonable effort to notify the relatives liable as soon as possible after the beginning of the maintenance, but such notice or the receipt thereof is not a condition of liability of the relative.

SECTION 91. 46.10 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

46.10 (6) ~~The per capita cost of maintenance shall be computed by the department. The sworn statement of the superintendent of the institution in which such patient is or was maintained, or of the collection and deportation counsel, or of the secretary, shall be evidence of such cost, the fee and of the time spent care and services received by the patient in the institution.~~

SECTION 92. 46.10 (8) (g) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

46.10 (8) (g) Make adjustment and settlement with boards established under s. 51.42 or 51.437 or with counties of all moneys collected by the department on or after January 1, 1974, for care furnished at a state institution, county hospital or any other provider of service authorized under s. 49.175, 51.42 or 51.437 at the percentage rate of state contribution and county contribution for such agencies in effect at the time such collections are received. Beginning January 1, 1975, the state shall return 70% of collections made by the state for services provided by s. 51.42 or 51.427 boards to the respective s. 51.42 or 51.437 board.

SECTION 93. 46.10 (8) (h) and (i) of the statutes are created to read:

46.10 (8) (h) Ensure that all moneys collected under sub. (12) on and after January 1, 1974, be credited pursuant to ss. 46.036 (3) (g) and 51.42 (8) (c).

(i) Pay quarterly from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (d) the collection moneys due boards established under ss. 51.42 and 51.437. Payments shall be made as soon after the close of each quarter as is practicable.

SECTION 93f. 46.10 (16) of the statutes is created to read:

46.10 (16) The department shall delegate to boards established under ss. 51.42 and 51.437 or the local providers of care and services meeting the standards established by the department under s. 46.036, the responsibilities vested in the department under this section for collection of patient fees for services other than those provided at state facilities if such boards or providers meet the conditions deemed appropriate by the department. The department may delegate to boards established under ss. 51.42 and 51.437 the responsibilities vested in the department under this section for collection of patient fees for services provided at the state facilities if the necessary departmental conditions are met.

SECTION 94. 46.22 (4) (j) of the statutes is created to read:

46.22 (4) (j) To submit annually a contract to cover its program plan and budget for the services authorized in this section except for the administration of and cost of aid granted under ss. 49.02 and 49.03 in the form and manner prescribed by the department. The contract shall specify the care and services to be provided and shall indicate the number of staff and costs for each service and program of the agency. The department shall review and approve each county's annual contract, program plan and budget and shall ensure the efficient management and administration of those programs and services and that the contracted expenditure of funds complies with federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit such contracts to the committee for review and approval. The department shall not make any payments to a county for programs included in the contract which is under review by the committee. The approved contract shall not exceed the available amount of federal or state funds. The department shall reimburse each county for such approved contract from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (4) (df) and (p) according to s. 49.52.

SECTION 95. 46.22 (5m) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

46.22 (5m) (c) County agencies shall submit to the department plans and contracts for care and services to be purchased. Such contracts shall be developed under s. 46.036. The department shall review such contracts and approve them if they are consistent with s. 46.036 and to the extent that state or federal funds are available for such purposes. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit such contracts to the committee for review and approval. The department shall not make any payments to a county for programs included in the contract which is under review by the committee. The department shall reimburse each county for such approved contracts from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (4) (dh) and (p) according to s. 49.52, or from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (b) or (c).

SECTION 95m. 47.40 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 284, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

47.40 (3) (a) "Handicapped person" means any person who, by reason of a physical or mental defect or infirmity, whether congenital or acquired by accident, injury or disease, or any nondisabled person who, by reason of economic, educational, experiential, sociocultural or other deficiency or inadequacy, is or may be expected to be totally or partially incapacitated for remunerative occupation, or who may

reasonably be expected to be fit to engage in a remunerative occupation after receiving vocational rehabilitation service ~~or any nondisabled person who, at the time he reached age 18 was a student regularly attending a school, college or university or regularly attending a course of vocational or technical training designed to fit him for gainful employment, and either was removed from the home of a relative as a result of judicial determination that continuance in the home would be contrary to his welfare or was a member of a family receiving aid under s. 49.19.~~

SECTION 96. 48.48 (4m) of the statutes is created to read:

48.48 (4m) To continue to provide appropriate care, training and services to any person who:

- (a) Was at least 18 years of age on March 23, 1972;
- (b) Is in legal custody of the department or a county agency established under ss. 48.56 and 48.57 on March 23, 1972;
- (c) Is less than 21 years of age on the effective date of this act (1973); and
- (d) Is determined by the department to be in need of care and services designed to fit such person for gainful employment and has requested and consented to receive such aid.

SECTION 97. 48.48 (14) of the statutes is created to read:

48.48 (14) To pay maintenance, tuition and related expenses from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (4) (b) for persons who when they reached 18 years of age were students regularly attending a school, college or university or regularly attending a course of vocational or technical training designed to fit them for gainful employment, and who when reaching such age were in legal custody of the department as a result of a judicial decision.

SECTION 98. 48.525 (intro.) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**48.525 Treatment plan for institutional care of children.** (intro.) The department shall establish a child placement review program which shall review the need of children ~~who are in legal custody of the department or a public or private agency authorized to provide child welfare services, to be placed in or committed to public or private child caring facilities, mental hospitals, or any other institution~~ institutions licensed or authorized under this chapter and chs. 46, 49 and 51 for the care and treatment of children under 18 years of age. The department shall also establish and ~~periodically~~ annually review a statewide plan for child caring institutions and facilities available on a regional basis for the placement of children under this section.

SECTION 99. 48.525 (4) (intro.) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

48.525 (4) (intro.) Approval for continued placement or commitment, for additional periods of a child in a facility or institution may be granted based on a review every 6 months after initial placement or commitment contingent on the following conditions:

SECTION 100. 48.55 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 103m. 49.01 (11) of the statutes, as created by chapter 147, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

49.01 (11) "Accommodated person" means any person in a hospital or in a skilled nursing facility or intermediate care facility, as defined in Title XIX of the social security act, who would have been eligible for benefits under s. 49.177 or 49.19 or federal title XVI if he were not in such a hospital or facility, and any person in such an institution who can be found eligible for Title XIX under the social security act.

SECTION 103p. 49.046 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 147 and 330, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

49.046 (2) The department shall adopt rules establishing eligibility requirements and the uniform administration of such eligibility requirements and the amounts of aid under this section. Grants to a person under this section shall be equal to what would be granted under s. 49.19 if such person were eligible for grants under s. 49.19. Such grants shall begin on the first day of the month following the effective date of this act (1973).

SECTION 104. 49.175 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

**49.175 Residential care institution; establishment.** (1) Any county or combination of counties may establish and staff a county residential care institution for the reception and care of dependent persons which shall be governed by the county board. The institution shall be licensed under s. 146.32 by the department before receiving or caring for any dependent person.

(2) Residential care institutions may be established and staffed by private vendors for the reception and care of dependent persons. The institution shall be licensed under s. 146.32 by the department before receiving or caring for any dependent persons.

(3) Any county operated or private residential care facility not certifiable as a Title XIX facility shall be licensed and governed under s. 146.32 by the department before receiving or caring for any dependent persons. State aid shall be provided according to subs. (4) and (5) for those patients presently in private facilities who were receiving a public assistance grant under s. 49.18, 49.20 or 49.61, 1971 stats., as of December 31, 1973, or for those patients who were in county-operated facilities on that date.

(4) The cost of care of such patients shall be determined by multiplying the per day patient rate for such facility as determined by applying the formula under s. 49.45 (6m) (a) 1 and 3 to 7, except that interest on capital expenditures which are reimbursable under s. 51.40 shall be excluded, times the number of days of care of such patients in the time period being considered. Any amounts received by the facility from the patient or resident shall be deducted from the costs determined under this subsection. This section shall not be construed to require that as a condition of reimbursement any facility must meet any skilled or intermediate care standards established by the department.

(5) Beginning January 1, 1974, the state shall pay 50% of the costs determined under sub. (4) if the patient has legal settlement in this state and the county of legal settlement shall pay 50% of such costs. For private residential care facilities the county of legal settlement shall pay the facility 100% of such costs under sub. (4) and shall bill the state for its 50% share under this section. State payment shall be 100% of such costs if the patient does not have legal settlement in the state. Beginning January 1, 1975, the state shall pay 100% of such costs. State payments shall be made from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (4) (d).

(6) Liability, and the collection and enforcement thereof, for care, services and supplies provided under this section, and the adjustment and settlement with the several counties for their proper share of all moneys collected under s. 46.10, shall be governed exclusively by s. 46.10.

SECTION 105. 49.19 (10) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 328, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

49.19 (10) (d) Aid may also be paid under this section to a foster home or to a child-care institution by the state when the child is in the custody or guardianship of the state or when the child was removed from the home of a relative specified in sub. (1) (a) as a result of a judicial determination that continuance in the home of a relative would be contrary to the child's welfare for any reason and the child is placed by the department. ~~The county of legal settlement shall be liable for its pro rata share pursuant to s. 49.52 of any such aid paid, except that if the child is without legal settlement, there shall be no county liability.~~

SECTION 105m. 49.30 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 147, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**49.30 Funeral expenses.** On the death of a beneficiary of benefits under Title XVI or s. 49.177 ~~or 49.46~~, if the estate of the deceased is insufficient to defray the funeral and burial expenses, reasonable funeral and burial expenses shall be paid to such persons as the county agency directs. Expenses so paid shall not exceed \$300, exclusive of and in addition to the actual cemetery charges. Such expenses and charges shall be paid by the county responsible for the burial of the recipient. The state shall reimburse counties fully for expenses and charges paid under this section.

SECTION 106g. 49.45 (6m) (f) of the statutes is created to read:

49.45 (6m) (f) The conditions specified under s. 46.036 (4) shall not be conditions of reimbursement under this section. For the purposes of this subsection and as a condition of reimbursement under this subsection, every skilled nursing home and intermediate care facility shall:

1. Adopt the uniform reporting system prescribed by the department under s. 46.036 (1);
2. Provide the department with a confidential annual balance sheet; and
3. Cooperate with the department in establishing costs for reimbursement purposes.

SECTION 106h. 49.45 (8) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 106j. 49.45 (11) (h) of the statutes is created to read:

49.45 (11) (h) "In-patient psychiatric hospital services for individuals 21 years of age or for individuals under 22 years of age who are receiving such service immediately prior to reaching age 21" has the same meaning as provided in section 1905 (h) of the federal social security act.

SECTION 106m. 49.47 (6) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 147, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

49.47 (6) **BENEFITS.** (a) The department shall audit and pay charges made in accordance with s. 49.45 (11) (a) for medical assistance to beneficiaries for those services enumerated under s. 49.46 (2), but no payment shall include care for services rendered earlier than 3 months preceding the month of application.

(b) In no event may payments be made for medical assistance rendered during a period when the beneficiary would not have been eligible for benefits under this section.

(c) Benefits shall not include any payment with respect to:

1. Care or services in any private or public institution, unless the institution has been approved by a standard-setting authority responsible by law for establishing and maintaining standards for such institution.

2. That part of any service otherwise authorized under this section which is payable through 3rd party liability or any federal, state, county, municipal or private benefit systems, to which the beneficiary may otherwise be entitled.

3. Care or services for an individual who is an inmate of a public institution, except as a patient in a medical institution or a resident in an intermediate care facility.

SECTION 107. 49.51 (3) (c) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

49.51 (3) (c) County agencies shall submit to the department plans and contracts for care and services to be purchased. Such contracts shall be developed under ~~the guidelines and provisions of~~ s. 46.036. The department shall review such contracts and approve them if they are consistent with ~~the provisions of~~ s. 46.036 and ~~to the extent that if state and or federal funds are available for such purposes.~~ The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit such contracts to the committee for review and approval. The department shall not make any payments to a county for programs included in a contract under review by the committee. The department shall reimburse each county for such approved contracts from the appropriations under ss. 20.435 (4) (dh) and (p) according to ~~rate of aid established under~~ s. 49.52.

SECTION 108. 49.51 (4) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

49.51 (4) ANNUAL PROGRAM BUDGETS. The county agency shall submit annually a contract to cover its program plan and budget for the services authorized in this section except for the administration of and cost of aid granted under ss. 49.02 and 49.03 in the form and manner prescribed by the department. The contract shall specify the services to be provided and shall indicate the number of staff and cost for each service and program of the agency. The department shall review and approve the county's annual contract, program plan and budget. The department shall ensure the efficient management and administration of those programs and services so that the contract for programs and services and the expenditure of funds comply with federal and state statutes, rules and regulations. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit such contracts to the committee for review and approval. The department shall not make any payments to a county for programs included in a contract under review by the committee. The approved contracts shall not exceed the available amount of federal and state funds. The department shall reimburse each county for such approved contracts from the appropriations under ss. 20.435 (4) (df) and (p) according to s. 49.52.

SECTION 109. 49.52 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 147, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

**49.52 Reimbursement to counties.** (1) The department shall reimburse each county from the appropriations under s. 20.435 (4) (d), (dc), (df), (dh) and (p) for 100% of the cost of aid to families with dependent children granted pursuant to s.

49.19, the administration of public assistance, medical assistance and social services as approved by the department pursuant to ss. 46.22 (4) (j) and (5m) (c) and 49.51 (2) (a), (3) (c) and (4), and funeral expenses paid for recipients of aid pursuant to s. 49.30, except that no reimbursement shall be made for the administration of or aid granted under ss. 49.02 and 49.03.

(2) (a) The county treasurer and county agency administrator of each county shall monthly certify under oath to the department in such manner as the department prescribes the claim of the county for state reimbursement under this section and if the department approves such claim it shall certify to the department of administration for reimbursement to the county for amounts due under this subsection and payment claimed to be made to the counties monthly. The department may make advance payments prior to the beginning of each month equal to one-twelfth of the contracted amount.

(b) To facilitate prompt reimbursement the certificate of the department may be based on the certified statements of the county officers filed pursuant to par. (a). Any necessary audit adjustments for any month of current or prior fiscal years may be included in subsequent certifications.

SECTION 112. 51.002 of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is renumbered 51.002 (1) and amended to read:

51.002 (1) Any person committed ~~to an institution~~ under this chapter shall be committed under the care and custody of a board established under s. 51.42 or 51.437, or the department if the department finds such person to be a nonresident of this state.

SECTION 113. 51.002 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

51.002 (2) Voluntary admission under this chapter shall be through a board established under s. 51.42 or 51.437 or through the department if the department finds such person to be a nonresident of this state.

SECTION 114. 51.09 (5) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 198, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

51.09 (5) TREATMENT OF DRUG ADDICTS AND ALCOHOLICS. The department may provide for treatment for drug addicts and alcoholics at the mental health institutes and such treatment shall not exceed the scope of service authorized by law at the mental health institutes.

SECTION 114m. 51.12 (8) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.12 (8) The superintendent of any state hospital or county hospital referred to in s. 51.13 (1) may ~~pay the cost of transportation and~~ provide sufficient funds, ~~not to exceed \$15,~~ for incidental expenses for patients who are discharged, placed on conditional release or paroled in accordance with ss. 51.11 (5), 51.12 (4), 51.13 (1) and 51.21 (6). Such funds shall be given under rules promulgated by the department.

SECTION 115. 51.18 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

**51.18 Family care.** (1) The department, with the approval of the appropriate s. 51.42 or 51.437 board, may place an institute or colony patient in a suitable family boarding home upon such terms and conditions as it determines, if it considers that such course would benefit the patient. The cost of the supervision and maintenance of any patient so boarded out shall not exceed the average per capita cost of his maintenance in the institute or colony. Beginning July 1, 1975, such costs less applicable collections shall be charged to the respective s. 51.42 or s. 51.437 board. The



department may visit and investigate such home and may return the patient to the institute or colony or place him in another home when deemed advisable.

(2) A board established under s. 51.42 or 51.437 may, with the approval of the department, place any patient in a suitable family boarding home upon such terms and conditions as it determines, if it considers that such course would benefit the patient. Such board will be charged with the costs of care in accordance with s. 46.036. The department may visit and investigate such home and may, with the approval of the appropriate board, cause the patient to be placed in another facility when deemed advisable.

SECTION 118. 51.37 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

**51.37 Outpatient services.** (1) The department may establish a system of outpatient clinic services in any institution operated by the department.

(2) It is the purpose of this section to:

(a) Provide outpatient diagnostic and treatment services for patients and their families.

(b) Offer precommitment and preadmission evaluations and studies.

(3) The department may provide outpatient services only to patients contracted for with s. 51.42 and s. 51.437 boards in accordance with s. 46.03 (18), except for those patients whom the department finds to be nonresidents of this state. The full and actual cost less applicable collections of such services contracted for shall be charged to the respective s. 51.42 or s. 51.437 board. The state shall provide the services required for patient care only if no such services are funded by the department in the county or combination of counties served by the respective board.

SECTION 118m. 51.42 (8) (b) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

51.42 (8) (b) The department shall review each budget to assure uniform costing of services and shall not approve any services that duplicate or are inconsistent with services being provided or purchased by the department or other county agencies receiving grants-in-aid or reimbursement from the department. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit contracts between boards established under this section and providers of service to the committee for review and approval.  
~~The department shall not make any aid payments to such a board for programs included in a contract which is under review by the committee.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 119. 51.42 (8) (c) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

51.42 (8) (c) 1. The department shall provide from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (b) a grant-in-aid to boards under this section. The department shall, during the fiscal year, review the budgets approved under par. (b) and sub. (10) and the expenditures of the various programs, and if funds are not needed for a program to which they were allocated, and, after reasonable notice and opportunity for hearing, the department may withdraw such funds as are unencumbered and reallocate them to other programs, or withdraw funds from any program which is not being administered in accordance with its approved plan and budget.

2. The grant-in-aid shall be 60% of the total cost of the approved budget after deducting from such cost the amounts received by the board or a provider of service

under contract with the board as fees from clients and patients and after deducting from such cost the amounts received from federal funds or other state programs.

3. a. Beginning January 1, 1975, the state shall fully fund, within the limits of the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (b), a basic level of services for mental illness, developmental disability, alcoholism and drug abuse to meet minimum standards of service quality and accessibility established by the department.

b. The board may expand programs and services above the level provided in subd. 3.a with county and other local public or private funds at the discretion of the board.

c. Thirty percent of all nonstate revenues, except those in subd. 3.b, which shall include but not be limited to federal funds that are not specifically assigned to particular programs and patient fee collections, shall be applied to additional services and programs under this section above the level provided in subd. 3.a, and 70% of such revenues shall apply to the cost of basic services in subd. 3.a.

d. Thirty percent of patient fees, excluding federal medical assistance and medicare funds, collected by the state for services under this section shall be retained by the state. Seventy percent of patient fees collected by the state for services under this section shall be credited to the respective s. 51.42 board.

SECTION 120. 51.42 (8) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

51.42 (8) (d) Liability, and the collection and enforcement thereof, for care, services and supplies provided under this section, and the adjustment and settlement with the several counties for their proper share of all moneys collected under s. 46.10, shall be governed exclusively by s. 46.10.

SECTION 120m. 51.42 (9) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

51.42 (9) CARE IN OTHER FACILITIES. Authorization for all care of any patient in a state, local or private facility shall be provided under a contractual agreement between the board and the facility, unless the board governs such facility. The need for inpatient care shall be determined by the clinical director of the program prior to the admission of the patient to the facility. The board shall reimburse the facility for the actual cost of care and services less applicable collections, according to s. 46.036, unless the department determines that a charge is administratively infeasible, such as transfers from state correctional institutions and interstate compact clients, or unless the department, after individual review, determines that the charge is not attributable to the cost of basic care and services. The exclusionary provisions of s. 46.03 (18) shall not apply to direct and indirect costs which are attributable to care and treatment of the client.

SECTION 121. 51.42 (10) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

51.42 (10) DEPARTMENTAL DUTIES. The department shall:

(a) Review requests and certify boards created under sub. (4) to assure that the boards are in compliance with the respective subsections.

(b) Review and approve annual program plans and budgets required under sub. (8) (a).

(c) Periodically review and evaluate boards and programs to assure compliance with this section. Such review shall include a periodic assessment of need which shall separately identify elements of service required under this section.

(d) Provide consultative staff services to communities to assist in ascertaining local needs and in planning, establishing and operating programs.

SECTION 123m. 51.437 (8) (b) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

51.437 (8) (b) The department shall review each budget to insure uniform costing of services and shall not approve any services that duplicate or are inconsistent with services being provided or purchased by the department or other county agencies receiving grants-in-aid or reimbursement from the department. The joint committee on finance may require the department to submit contracts between boards established under this section and providers of service to the committee for review and approval.  
Vetoed in Part ~~The department shall not make any aid payments to such a board for programs included in a contract which is under review by the committee.~~

SECTION 124m. 51.437 (8) (c) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

51.437 (8) (c) 1. The department shall provide from the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (c) a grant-in-aid to boards under this section. The department shall, during the fiscal year, review the budgets approved under s. 51.435 (1) (c) and the expenditures of the various programs, and if funds are not needed for a program to which they were allocated, and, after reasonable notice and opportunity for hearing, the department may withdraw such funds as are unencumbered and reallocate them to other programs, or withdraw funds from any program which is not being administered in accordance with its approved plan and budget.

2. The grant-in-aid shall be 60% of the total cost of the approved budget after deducting from such cost the amounts received by the board or a provider of service under contract with the board as fees from clients and patients and after deducting from such cost the amounts received from federal funds or other state programs.

3. a. Beginning January 1, 1975, the state shall fully fund, within the limits of the appropriation under s. 20.435 (2) (c), a basic level of services for developmental disabilities, to meet minimum standards of service quality and accessibility established by the department.

b. The board may expand programs and services above the level provided in subd. 3.a with county and other local public or private funds at the discretion of the board.

c. Thirty percent of all nonstate revenues, except those in subd. 3.b, which shall include but not be limited to federal funds that are not specifically assigned to particular programs and patient fee collections, shall be applied to additional services and programs under this section above the level provided in subd. 3.a, and 70% of such revenues shall apply to the cost of basic services in subd. 3.a.

d. Thirty percent of patient fees, excluding federal medical assistance and medicare funds, collected by the state for services under this section shall be retained by the state. Seventy percent of patient fees collected by the state for services under this section shall be credited to the respective s. 51.437 board.

SECTION 125. 51.437 (8) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

51.437 (8) (d) Liability, and the collection and enforcement thereof, for care, services and supplies provided under this section, and the adjustment and settlement with the several counties for their proper share of all moneys collected under s. 46.10 shall be governed exclusively by s. 46.10.

SECTION 126. 51.437 (9) (a) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

51.437 (9) (a) Authorization for all care of any patient in a state, local or private facility shall be provided under a contractual agreement between the board and the facility, unless the board governs such facility. The need for inpatient care shall be determined by the clinical director of the program prior to the admission of the patient to the facility. The board shall reimburse the facility for the actual costs of care and services less applicable collections, according to s. 46.036, unless the department determines that a charge is administratively infeasible, such as transfers from state correctional institutions and interstate compact clients or unless the department, after individual review, determines that the charge is not attributable to the cost of basic care and services. The exclusionary provisions of s. 46.03 (18) shall not apply to direct and indirect costs which are attributable to care and treatment of the client.

SECTION 128d. 57.06 (1) (a), as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

57.06 (1) (a) The department may parole an inmate of the Wisconsin state prisons or any felon or any person serving at least one year or more in the Milwaukee county house of correction or a county reforestation camp organized under s. 56.07, at any time if there is no minimum prescribed for the offense, or when he has served one-half of the minimum term prescribed by statute for the offense, or when he has served 20 years of a life term, less the deduction earned for good conduct as provided in s. 53.11. Parole eligibility shall be computed according to this paragraph for all persons incarcerated on or after the effective date of this act (1973). The district attorney and judge who tried the inmate shall be notified in writing at least 10 days before the first application for parole is acted upon and if they so request be given like notice of each subsequent application.

~~SECTION 128g. 59.07 (93) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

~~59.07 (93) SENIOR CITIZEN GROUPS; APPROPRIATION. Appropriate funds for the purpose of promoting and assisting family life programs and senior citizens clubs and organizations within the county in their organization and activities. A county may cooperate with any private agency or group in such work.~~ Vetoed  
in Part

~~SECTION 128h. 59.07 (94) of the statutes is created to read:~~

~~59.07 (94) COUNTY COUNCILS ON HOME LIFE AND FAMILY ENVIRONMENT. Create a county council on home life and family environment as a select committee of the county board, composed of such county supervisors and public members as the county board may designate. Public members shall include parents, educators, government personnel and representatives of religious denominations and organizations. The county boards of 2 or more counties comprising a contiguous territory and having an aggregate population of less than 150,000 may create a joint council. The council shall advise governmental bodies and citizens in the county on matters affecting the stability and dignity of the family as the foundation of civil society, promote principles of marital responsibility and unity, strengthen all areas of family life and implement the objectives of the family code.~~ Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 128m. 59.69 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

59.69 (2) AID TO FAIRS. The board of any county ~~having a population of 30,000 or more may vote an amount not exceeding \$20,000 and in all other counties the board may vote an amount not exceeding \$5,000 in the aggregate for all societies in the county in any year~~ which it deems sufficient to aid in the purchase of, or to make improvements upon the fairgrounds for any organized agricultural society, or to aid any organized agricultural society or any incorporated poultry association in any of its public exhibitions held or to be held; and any amount so voted shall be paid upon

CHAPTER 333

1002

demand by the treasurer to the treasurer of such organized agricultural society, who shall keep an accurate record of the expenditure thereof by such society, and file a verified copy of such record with the clerk within one year after the receipt of such amount.

SECTION 129. 60.175 of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 135. 61.46 (3) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 136. 62.12 (4m) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 137. 65.07 (2) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 139. 66.021 (8) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 37 and 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

66.021 (8) (a) The clerk of a city or village which has annexed territory shall file immediately with the secretary of state a certified copy of the ordinance, certificate and plat and one copy to each company that provides any utility service in area annexed plus one such copy with the register of deeds and one copy with the clerk of any affected school district, signed by the clerk, describing the territory which was annexed and the associated population. Failure to file shall not invalidate the annexation and the duty to file shall be a continuing one. The information filed with the secretary of state shall be utilized in making recommendations for adjustments to entitlements under the federal revenue sharing program, and distribution of funds under ch. 79 and computation necessary under s. 66.033. The clerk shall certify annually to the secretary of state and to the register of deeds a legal description of the total boundaries of the municipality as those boundaries existed on December 1, unless there has been no change in the 12 months preceding.

SECTION 140. 66.033 of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

~~SECTION 140d. 70.032 of the statutes is created to read:~~

Vetoed  
in Part

~~70.052 Local assessment cost sharing. (1) Commencing with the year following certification under s. 73.03 (2) of an assessor of a town, village or city, the state shall pay the lesser of 50% of the actual cost of the operation of the town, village or city assessment system or 50% of the sum of two-tenths of one mill multiplied by the full value of a town, village or city and \$3.95 multiplied by the total number of all land parcels in the town, village or city (but in either case not including any expense of any town, village or city civil service examination, any examination given by the bureau of personnel, any expense of the town, village or city board of review or any expense of developing basic computer programs available from the state free of charge). The town, village or city treasurer shall, on or before February 15 of the year following the first year in which the town, village or city assessment was conducted by a certified assessor, and every February 15 thereafter, certify to the department of revenue the expense of operating the town, village or city assessor system for the preceding calendar year and such other information as is necessary on forms prescribed by the department. When satisfied with the correctness of the information submitted, the department of revenue shall compute the state's share of the expense of operating the town, village or city assessor system and shall certify that amount to the department of administration for payment to the town, village or city under s. 20.566 (2) (c) not later~~

than July 1. No town, village or city whose assessor system fails to meet one or more of the requirements in sub. (2) shall be eligible for any payment under this section.

(2) (a) 1. The department of revenue shall prescribe the due dates, the blanks and forms and the format of information transmitted by the town, village or city assessor to the department as to the assessment of property and such other information as may be needed in its work as well as the forms of assessment rolls, blanks, books and returns required for the assessment and collection of general property taxes by the town, village or city.

2. The department of revenue shall design and make available to any town, village or city, basic computer programs for the preparation of assessment rolls, tax rolls and tax receipts which are deemed necessary by the secretary of revenue to the utilization of automatic data processing in the administration of the property tax.

Vetoed  
in Part

3. As a prerequisite to any payment under sub. (1) the town, village or city shall timely submit the information required by subd. 1 and upon such forms and in such format as are prescribed by subd. 1; and shall use the forms and assessment rolls, tax rolls, blanks, books and returns as are prescribed under subd. 1.

(b) The department of revenue shall prescribe minimum specifications for assessment maps. Any town, village or city whose assessment maps do not meet the department's specifications at the time of becoming eligible for payment under sub. (1) shall have 4 years from the first May 1 assessment date to bring its maps in conformance with the department's specifications. If a town, village or city fails to bring its maps in conformance with the department's specifications within the 4-year period, or fails to maintain them at that level thereafter, the town, village or city shall be ineligible to receive any payment under sub. (1).

(c) 1. The department of revenue shall determine the minimum number of staff required for each town, village or city assessor's office and the level of certification required for each position.

2. No town, village or city shall be eligible for any payment under sub. (1) unless the town, village or city assessor's office employs the minimum number of persons at the appropriate level of certification as determined by the department of revenue. Appraisal personnel of a town, village or city assessor's office who are on the staff at the time the assessor becomes certified under s. 73.03 (2) who are not certified must successfully pass an examination conducted by the bureau of personnel for the appropriate level of certification within 2 years to retain their positions. Appraisal personnel of a town, village or city assessor's office who are hired after a town, village or city becomes eligible for payment under sub. (1) without certification shall be considered at the appropriate level of certification for purposes of this paragraph during their first and second years of employment, and must successfully pass an examination conducted by the bureau of personnel for the appropriate level of certification within 2 years to retain their positions.

SECTION 141. 70.62 (4) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 141m. 70.99 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

Vetoed  
in Part

70.99 (1) A county assessor system may be established for any county by passage of a resolution or ordinance adopting such a system by an approving vote of ~~60%~~ two-thirds of the entire membership of the county board. After passage of such enabling resolution or ordinance by the county board, the county executive, or the county administrator, or the chairman of the county board with approval of the county board,

Vetoed  
in Part

~~shall appoint a county assessor from a list of candidates provided by the department of revenue that have passed an examination and have been certified by the department of revenue as qualified for performing the functions of his office. All deputies and assistant assessors selected by the county assessor shall within 2 years of the date of employment be certified by the department of revenue. Certification shall be granted to all persons demonstrating proficiency by passing an examination administered by the department. The persons selected for such listing shall first have been given a comprehensive examination, approved by the department of revenue, relating to the work of county assessor. A person appointed as county assessor shall thereafter have permanent tenure, after successfully serving the probationary period in effect in such county, and may be removed or suspended only for the reasons named in s. 17.14 (1) or for such cause as would sustain the suspension or removal of a state employe under state civil service rules. If employes of a county are under a county civil service program, the county assessor may, and any person appointed as a member of his staff shall, be incorporated into such county civil service program but tenure is dependent on the foregoing provision.~~

SECTION 142. 70.995 (1) (d) 7 and 26 of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are repealed.

SECTION 143. 70.995 (1) (d) 8 to 25, 27 and 28 of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are renumbered 70.995 (1) (d) 7 to 24, 25 and 26, respectively.

SECTION 143d. 70.995 (2) (intro.) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

70.995 (2) (intro.) FURTHER CLASSIFICATION. In addition to the criteria set forth in sub. (1), ~~to be classified as property shall be deemed prima facie~~ manufacturing property and eligible for assessment under this section, ~~the property must be if it is~~ included in one of the following major group classifications set forth in the standard industrial classification manual, 1972 edition, published by the U.S. printing office. For the purposes of this section any other property described in this subsection shall also be deemed manufacturing property and eligible for assessment under this section:

SECTION 143m. 70.995 (2) (x) of the statutes is created to read:

70.995 (2) (x) Scrap processors using large machines processing iron, steel or nonferrous scrap metal and whose principle product is scrap iron and steel or nonferrous scrap metal for sale for remelting purposes.

SECTION 144. 70.995 (2) (w) of the statutes is created to read:

70.995 (2) (w) 7395 -- Photofinishing laboratories.

SECTION 144f. 70.995 (7) (am) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 144m. 70.996 (1) (a) (intro.) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

70.996 (1) (a) (intro.) On or about April 20, 1975, counties, towns, villages and cities shall be paid by the state an amount equal to the May 1, 1974, value of manufacturing machinery and equipment exempted from local taxation under s. 70.11 (27) multiplied by the local or county tax rate as the case may be. The "value of manufacturing machinery and equipment" shall be the value determined according to s. 70.995 equated to the May 1, 1974, general level of assessment of all other property

within the taxation district. Payments to towns, villages and cities shall be determined using the local tax rate that was applied to the May 1, ~~1973~~ 1974, assessment of all taxable property within the taxation district. Payments to counties shall be determined using the county tax rate that was applied to the May 1, ~~1973~~ 1974, assessment of all taxable property within the county. Subsequent payments shall be made annually on or before April 20 according to the following schedule:

SECTION 144p. 71.11 (24) (d) of the statutes is created to read:

71.11 (24) (d) In preparing income tax returns for taxable year 1974 and thereafter, the department of revenue shall provide a space for identification of the school district in which the taxpayer resides.

~~SECTION 145. 73.03 (2) (b) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:~~

~~73.03 (2) (b) To establish by rule under ch. 227 the level of certification required of the appointed or elected assessor or assessment personnel to obtain state cost-sharing funds under s. 70.052 of each unit of local government in the state. There shall be 4 levels of certification commensurate with the degree of complexity of the various classes of property within each taxation district.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 146. 73.11 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 243, laws of 1973, is repealed.

SECTION 146m. 76.16 of the statutes is amended to read:

**76.16 (title) Separate valuation of docks, piers, wharves, ore yards, elevators, car ferries and pipeline terminal facilities.** After the property of a company is first valued as a whole, if any docks, ore yards, piers, wharves, grain elevators or car ferries used in transferring freight or passengers between cars and vessels or transfer of freight cars located on car ferries, or if any terminal storage facilities, docks, pipelines and pumping equipment used in transferring oil from pipelines to vessels shall be included in such valuation, then for the purpose of accounting to the proper taxation districts, the department shall make a separate valuation of each such dock, ore yard, pier, wharf, grain elevator, including the approaches thereto, or car ferries and of each such terminal storage facility, dock, pipeline and pumping equipment. As used herein, an approach shall be an immediate access facility commencing at the switching point which leads primarily to the terminal facility. For the purpose of defining the pipeline terminal facilities affected by this section, such facilities shall begin where the incoming pipeline enters the terminal storage facility site used in the transfer of oil to vessels.

SECTION 146p. 76.24 (1) (a), and (3) as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, of the statutes are amended to read:

76.24 (1) (a) All taxes paid by any company defined in s. 76.02 derived from or apportionable to docks, ore yards, piers, wharves, grain elevators, and their approaches, or car ferries or terminal storage facilities, docks, pipelines and pumping equipment used in transferring oil from pipelines to vessels on the basis of the separate valuation provided for in s. 76.16, shall be distributed annually to the towns, villages and cities in which they are located, pursuant to certification made by the department of revenue on or before July 10.

(3) Of taxes paid by any light, heat and power company, conservation and regulation company or pipeline company, defined by s. 76.02, except taxes on property valued separately under s. 76.16, 83%, except that beginning July 1, 1974, and thereafter 93.3%, before reduction by the credit provided in s. 79.10 (1a) (b), shall be



entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and distributed under subch. I of ch. 79.

SECTION 147. 77.51 (7) (o) of the statutes is created to read:

77.51 (7) (o) A person selling medicine for animals to a veterinarian. As used in this paragraph, "animal" includes livestock, pets and poultry.

SECTION 147m. 78.12 (4) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

78.12 (4) COMPUTATION OF TAX. (intro.) Each wholesaler at the time of making his monthly report shall compute and pay to the depository bank if one has been designated pursuant to s. 78.84, but otherwise directly to the department, the full amount of the motor fuel tax for the next preceding month, which shall be computed as follows:

SECTION 148. 78.12 (5) of the statutes is created to read:

78.12 (5) DEPOSITORIES OF TAXES. The requirements of this section with respect to filing of reports and payment of taxes to the department may be waived and, in lieu thereof, the investment board, under the authority granted to it by s. 25.17 (61), upon consultation with the department, may designate a Wisconsin bank with which such reports and taxes may be filed and deposited. Upon not less than 6 months' notice to the depository bank, the secretary of revenue may direct that taxes required to be reported and remitted on and after a date specified be reported and remitted directly to the department of revenue.

SECTION 148c. 78.13 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

78.13 (2) FINAL REPORTS. Every wholesaler shall, upon the discontinuance, sale or transfer of his business or upon the cancellation or revocation of his license except as otherwise provided in s. 78.68, make a report as required under s. 78.12 and pay all motor fuel taxes and penalties due the state. Such payment shall be to the depository bank if one has been designated pursuant to s. 78.84, but otherwise to the department.

SECTION 148g. 78.49 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

78.49 (3) COMPUTATION OF TAX. Each special fuel licensee at the time of making his monthly report shall compute and pay to the depository bank if one has been designated pursuant to s. 78.84, but otherwise directly to the department, the full amount of the special fuel tax for the next preceding month, which shall be computed as follows: the number of gallons of special fuel delivered or placed by such special fuel licensee into the fuel supply tanks of motor vehicles shall be multiplied by seven one-hundredths and the resulting figure expressed in dollars.

SECTION 148k. 78.50 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

78.50 (2) FINAL REPORT. Every special fuel licensee shall, upon such cessation, sale or transfer of his business or upon the cancellation or revocation of his license, except as otherwise provided in s. 78.68, make a report as required in s. 78.49 and pay all special fuel taxes and penalties due the state. Such payment shall be to the depository bank if one has been designated pursuant to s. 78.84, but otherwise to the department.

SECTION 148n. 78.68 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

78.68 (1) (b) If any licensee fails, neglects or refuses to make tax payment for any calendar month when due, the department shall send a written demand for payment to the licensee by registered mail addressed to said licensee at the address of the principal place of business of said licensee ~~within 10 days after said payment was due.~~ A

penalty of \$10 is hereby imposed for the first failure, neglect or refusal within a calendar year to make such tax payment when due and a penalty of 2 ~~per cent~~ % of the amount of tax due but not less than \$10 is hereby imposed for each successive failure, neglect or refusal to make such tax payment when due within the same calendar year. If tax remittance was made when due but by a defective bank check, the department may waive the penalty if it appears to the department that the defect was not intentional and the defect is corrected promptly. If such tax and penalty are not paid within 20 days from the date when due, the license of said licensee shall be automatically revoked and the department shall determine the amount of tax due and shall proceed to collect such motor fuel or special fuel tax and penalty as provided in this chapter.

SECTION 148r. 78.84 of the statutes is created to read:

**78.84 Depository bank.** Each wholesaler shall pay motor fuel taxes and each special fuel licensee shall pay special fuel taxes directly to such bank in this state as the investment board designates therefor under s. 25.17 (61), to the credit of the state highway fund, if such bank, prior to such designation, agrees to supply the department of revenue with such deposit reports at such times as the department deems necessary for the proper administration of this chapter. Upon not less than 6 months' notice to a depository bank designated under this section, the secretary of revenue may determine that the taxes required to be remitted by wholesalers and special fuel licensees on and after a date specified be remitted directly to the department of revenue.

SECTION 152. 79.055 of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**79.055 Distribution to counties and municipalities.** Beginning April 20, 1975, and annually thereafter, there shall be paid from the shared tax account an amount necessary for making payments under s. 70.996. Prior to April 1 of each year, the department of revenue shall estimate the amount of shared tax supplement which will be required under s. 20.835 (1) (aa). The amount so estimated shall be transferred from the general fund to the shared tax account prior to the April 20 distribution. Errors in the estimate shall be corrected with the November certification under s. 79.03 (1). The amount of any overestimate shall be returned to the general fund. If there is insufficient money in the shared tax account to make the April 20 distribution, the balance shall be supplied from the general fund under s. 20.835 (1) (a).

SECTION 153. 79.065 of the statutes, as created by chapter 158, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**79.065 Minimum payments; corrections.** With respect to the November 1973 distribution under s. 79.06 or any distribution under that section thereafter, any overpayment or underpayment made in any certification by the department of revenue or resulting from populations changed as a result of a final court determination or special census conducted in accordance with s. 16.96 (2) (dm) or in the distribution by the department of administration shall be corrected. Corrections shall be made as provided in this section if the department of administration or the department of revenue has determined within 3 years after the distribution that there was an overpayment or underpayment. Upon certification by the department of revenue any overpayment shall be corrected by reducing a subsequent payment under s. 79.02, 79.03 or 79.04 by the amount of the overpayment. Upon certification by the department of revenue, any underpayment shall be corrected by the department of administration in a subsequent distribution under s. 79.02, 79.03, 79.04 or 79.06 by distributing the amount necessary to correct the underpayment from the appropriation under s. 20.835 (1) (b). Such corrections shall be without interest.

SECTION 154. 79.08 of the statutes, as created by chapter 158, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**79.08 Other distributions; corrections.** With respect to the July 1973 distribution under s. 79.02 or any distribution thereafter under that section or with respect to the November 1973 distributions under s. 79.03 or 79.04 or any distribution under either such section thereafter, any underpayment or overpayment made in any certification by the department of revenue or resulting from populations changed as a result of a final court determination or special census conducted in accordance with s. 16.96 (2) (dm) or in the distribution by the department of administration shall be corrected by the department of administration upon certification by the department of revenue, and appropriate adjustments to reduce or increase subsequent distributions to municipalities or counties under those sections shall be made to correct for any such underpayment or overpayment. Such corrections shall be made if the department of administration or the department of revenue determines within 3 years after the distribution that there was an overpayment or an underpayment. Such corrections shall be without interest. When the department of revenue determines that delay in correcting for any underpayment in distributions under s. 79.02, 79.03 or 79.04 will withhold 10% or more of the funds due to the municipality or county in that payment, it shall upon the request of the municipality or county, without delay, certify to the department of administration for payment the amount which will correct the error. Within 10 days thereafter, the department of administration shall pay from the then existing balance in the "Municipal and County Shared Tax Account", to any such municipality or county the amount so certified. In the absence of such an advance payment, corrections shall be made as adjustments at the time of the distributions provided in ss. 79.02, 79.03 and 79.04.

SECTION 155. 79.20 (2) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

79.20 (2) "Crimes" are the number of "index crimes" as last reported by the department of justice's report of crimes and arrests not including the number of thefts of less than \$50.

~~SECTION 155f. 84.30 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:~~

~~84.30 (3) (c) Signs advertising activities conducted on the property premises on which they are located if such signs comply with rules of the highway commission, sub. (4) (b) and s. 86.191, but such rules shall not be inconsistent with, nor more restrictive than, applicable federal laws and regulations and guidelines contained in the federal highway administration policy and procedure memorandum on outdoor advertising control dated July 9, 1973.~~

Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 155m. 84.52 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

84.52 (2) It is the intent of the legislature that state debt not to exceed ~~\$35,000,000~~ \$46,849,800 may be incurred for the construction or reconstruction of intrastate bridges as provided by s. 84.11 and interstate bridges as provided by s. 84.12. Construction under this subsection shall be in accordance with the bridge needs of the state as determined by the divisions of highways and of planning of the department of transportation. The original list of priorities shall be submitted to the highway advisory committee of the legislative council for its prior approval.

SECTION 158m. 84.53 of the statutes is created to read:

**84.53 Matching of federal aid.** (1) The highway commission, with the approval of the secretary of transportation and the governor, subject to the limits of s. 20.866 (2) (ut), may direct that state debt be contracted for the matching of federal aid as set

forth in sub. (2) and subject to the limits set therein. Said debt shall be contracted in accordance with ch. 18.

(2) It is the intent of the legislature that state debt not to exceed \$10,000,000 may be incurred for the purpose of matching federal aid for the construction of highway facilities.

SECTION 158t. 85.05 (1) (a) and (3) (b) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

85.05 (1) (a) "Eligible recipient" means any county, municipality or town, or agency thereof, providing financial assistance to or operating an urban mass transit system in operation on ~~the effective date of this act (1973) August 5, 1973, or an urban mass transit system which has received aid under s. 85.06.~~

(3) (b) To make and execute contracts with any eligible recipient to ensure the continuance of quality urban mass transit service at reasonable fares. Payments under such contracts to eligible recipients shall not exceed two-thirds of the total operating deficit of the urban mass transit system involved, and, in the case of counties having a population of 500,000 or more, shall not exceed two-thirds of any contributions by county government to a privately-owned urban mass transit system to allow a reduction in fares during daytime non-peak hours of transit operations for purposes of stabilizing fares. No such contract shall be effective for a period of more than one year in length and shall not be enforceable against the state unless eligible recipients pay the total operating deficit of the urban mass transit system involved on a schedule approved by the department or the total cost of eligible fare reductions. Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 159. 86.35 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**86.35 Distribution of privilege highway tax.** From the appropriation made by s. 20.395 (1) (qd), the department of transportation shall pay annually beginning October 15, to the state treasurer a privilege highway tax in the amount set forth in this section. Such amount shall be entered in the municipal and county shared tax account and distributed under subch. I of ch. 79. Such The amount for each fiscal year of the biennium shall be determined by the department of transportation prior to publication of the biennial budget act by estimating and allocating an amount equal to 11% of the estimated net registration and title fees, to be derived from vehicles registered under s. 341.25 (1) (c), (d) or (e) and 20% of the estimated net registration and title fees to be derived from all other vehicles registered under ch. 341, in each fiscal year, excluding the estimated fees to be collected from nonresidents pursuant to reciprocity agreements. The department of transportation shall not, after publication of the biennial budget act, reestimate any amounts determined under this section for that biennium.

SECTION 159e. 93.24 (1) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

93.24 (1) (b) The board shall exercise police supervision over state fair park, and its duly appointed agents or representatives may arrest, with or without warrant, any person within such park area, committing an offense against the laws of the state or the rules of the board, and except as provided in par. (c) deliver such person to a proper court in the county and execute a complaint charging such person with the offense committed.

SECTION 159g. 93.24 (1) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

93.24 (1) (c) 1. The board shall promulgate rules governing the use of state fair park and establish a bond deposit schedule for purposes of subd. 2. The board may not

establish any bond deposit in an amount exceeding \$200. Any person violating such rules shall forfeit not more than \$200 which may be recovered by civil action as provided by ch. 288 and when collected shall be paid directly into the state treasury. The action shall be commenced by the attorney general or by the district attorney in the county court for Milwaukee county.

2. When any person is arrested for violation of a rule promulgated under this paragraph, the duly appointed agent or representative of the board shall accept from such person a bond, in the amount established by rule of the board for such violation, with sufficient sureties, or his own personal bond upon depositing the amount thereof in money, for his appearance in the court having jurisdiction of such offense. A receipt shall be issued therefor.

3. If the person so arrested and released fails to appear, personally or by an authorized attorney or agent, before the court at the time fixed for hearing of the case, then the bond and money deposited, or such portion thereof as the court determines to be an adequate penalty, plus the costs, may be declared forfeited by the court or may be ordered applied upon the payment of any penalty which may be imposed after an ex parte hearing together with the costs. In either event, the surplus, if any, shall be refunded to the person who made such deposit.

SECTION 159m. 94.13 of the statutes is created to read:

**94.13 World dairy expo.** (1) The secretary shall approve any plans for the expenditure of appropriations under s. 20.115 (4) (e) to the world dairy expo, inc. for the payment of premiums for dairy products or livestock or upon articles relating to the production or manufacture of such products or the raising of such livestock.

(2) Any moneys received by world dairy expo, inc. under this section shall be used only for premiums described in sub. (1).

(3) Not later than 30 days after the close of the exposition each year world dairy expo, inc. shall file with the department, on forms provided by it, an itemized account verified on oath, showing net premiums actually paid or to be paid at the preceding exposition. The verified account shall correspond with the plans approved by the secretary under sub. (1). On or before December 31 of the year in which the exposition is held, world dairy expo, inc. shall furnish the department with a statement of receipts and disbursements, attendance and such other information relating to the exposition as the department may require. Upon receipt of such statement the department shall pay world dairy expo, inc. the aid due for the preceding year.

SECTION 159n. 95.26 (7) of the statutes is amended to read:

95.26 (7) For each animal condemned and slaughtered, unless otherwise provided by law, the owner shall receive and, upon certificate of the department, the state shall pay ~~one-third~~ two-thirds of the difference between the net salvage and the appraised or agreed value of the animal, but such payment shall not exceed ~~\$200 for a registered animal and \$100 for an unregistered one~~ \$300 for an animal. With the consent of the owner the department may condemn, in infected herds, animals which have been exposed and which are suspected of being infected, although such animals have not reacted to the brucellosis tests.

SECTION 159q. 97.24 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

97.24 (5) **INSPECTION FEES.** The department shall collect uniform fees for inspecting grade A milk and milk products and grade A dairy farms and plants. Such fees shall be paid annually ~~only~~ by dairy plants which are under the continuous grade A inspection of the department, and shall be determined as follows: \$300 for each

dairy plant and \$20 for each milk producer from whom milk is received, except that the plant fee shall be \$200 for each receiving station and each transfer station. A producer who does not sell or deliver milk to a dairy plant licensed under s. 97.20 shall pay the \$20 farm inspection fee on or before April 30 each year, unless the fee has been paid by the out-of-state plant receiving his milk. A producer regularly pasteurizing and selling any of his milk to consumers at the farm, and who is not licensed as a dairy plant shall pay an additional equipment and product inspection fee of \$50 annually. Payment shall be made at the time of license application or, if such inspection is requested during a license year, payment shall accompany such request. When the period of inspection remaining in a license year is 6 months or less, one-half the fee shall be paid. The department shall revoke or deny the license of any dairy plant for which such fees have not been paid when due.

SECTION 159r. 115.31 (6) of the statutes is created to read:

115.31 (6) FAMILY AND CONSUMER EDUCATION. The department shall develop guidelines to be used by public high schools in providing family and consumer education under s. 118.01 (11).

SECTION 159s. 115.76 (11) of the statutes is created to read:

115.76 (11) "Institutional resident" means any person who has been admitted and is domiciled or cared for in or by a private or parochial special purpose residential care center.

SECTION 159v. 115.85 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 89, laws of 1973, is renumbered 115.85 (1) (a) 1 and amended to read:

~~115.85 (1) (a) 1. Each school district shall ensure that appropriate special education program are available to children with exceptional educational needs who have attained the age of 3 years and who reside in the school district except for those children who are full- or part-time institutional residents of private or parochial special purpose residential care centers specializing in the care and treatment of those children described in s. 115.76 (3).~~ Vetoed in Part

SECTION 159w. 115.85 (1) (a) 2 of the statutes is created to read:

115.85 (1) (a) 2. A school district may make available appropriate special education programs to children with exceptional educational needs who have attained the age of 3 years and who reside in the school district and are full- or part-time institutional residents of private or parochial special purpose residential care centers specializing in the care and treatment of those children described in s. 115.76 (3) if the school district has provided such programs to such children prior to the effective date of this act (1973).

SECTION 160. 115.87 (3) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 89, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

115.87 (3) Tuition shall be charged for nonresidents admitted to special education programs in accordance with this section. For each part of a program, the tuition for a nonresident child shall be determined on the basis of costs, aids and children in such part for the preceding year by adding together the total cost of items reported under s. 115.88 (1) and the actual cost of operation and maintenance not so reported, and amounts expended as principal and interest on long-term indebtedness on those facilities used by such part of a program, by subtracting from such sum federal, state and county aids and then dividing this amount difference by the number of children in average daily membership.

SECTION 161. 115.88 (7) (intro.) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 89, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

115.88 (7) **ADVANCEMENT OF AID FOR NEW OR EXPANDED PROGRAMS.** (intro.) Any school district, board of control of a cooperative educational service agency or county handicapped children's education board whose application under s. 115.77 (4) to establish or expand a special education program has been authorized may request, and upon a determination of need by the state superintendent, shall receive in advance, for the first year of operation not more than:

SECTION 161g. 115.881 of the statutes is created to read:

**115.881 Aid for local screening activities.** (1) From the appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (db) there shall be paid a sum equal to 70% of the amount not to exceed \$7.50 per pupil expended by the county, agency or school district in conducting screening in order to determine if the child has exceptional educational needs as provided in s. 115.80 (2). Costs incurred may include the purchase of screening materials, salaries of personnel conducting the screening or contracted services related to the scoring or evaluation of data obtained in the screening process. This aid formula shall apply only to children of preschool (ages 3-4) and kindergarten through grade 2 level being screened for suspected exceptional educational needs.

(2) If the appropriation under s. 20.255 (1) (db) in any one year is insufficient to pay the full amount under sub. (1), aid payments shall be prorated among the counties, agencies or school districts entitled thereto.

SECTION 162m. 116.08 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

116.08 (1) An amount not to exceed ~~\$35,500~~ \$35,900 in 1973-74 and ~~\$36,200~~ \$36,300 annually thereafter shall be paid to each agency for the maintenance and operation of the office of the board of control and agency coordinator. No state aid may be paid unless the agency submits by August 1 an annual report which includes a detailed certified statement of its expenses for the prior year to the state superintendent, and such statement reveals that the state aid was expended as provided by this section. In no case may the state aid exceed the actual expenditures for the prior year as certified in such statement.

SECTION 163m. 118.01 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

118.01 (5) **MORALS.** Every public school shall provide instruction in morality and the individual's responsibility as a social being, including the value of frugality and other basic qualities and principles specified or referred to in section 22 of article I of the constitution of this state insofar as such qualities and principles directly or indirectly affect family and consumer education.

SECTION 163n. 118.01 (11) of the statutes is created to read:

118.01 (11) **FAMILY AND CONSUMER EDUCATION.** Every public high school shall provide instruction, as part of one or more existing courses developed by the school district in which the school is located and approved by the state superintendent, on the rights and responsibilities of the family and consumer, including, without limitation because of enumeration, the consumer and the economy; consumer behavior and decision-making; contracts; credit alternatives; budgeting and family finances, with emphasis on frugality and thrift; savings and investments; insurance; profit and loss; the responsibility and morality of family living; and other societal concerns for instilling qualities of integrity and fiscal competence in young persons during their

formative family years in accord with sub. (5). At the option of the school district, such instruction may also be provided in a separate course.

SECTION 163p. 119.04 of the statutes, as affected by chapters 89, 90, 188, 243, 254, 290 and 307, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**119.04 Public instruction laws applicable.** Subchapter I of ch. 121 and ss. 66.03 (3) (c), 115.01 (1) and (2), 115.76, 115.77, 115.79 to ~~115.895~~ 115.94, 118.03, 118.04, 118.06, 118.07, 118.10, 118.12 (1), 118.125, 118.14, 118.15, 118.16 (1), (2) and (4) to (6), 118.18, 118.19 (7), 118.20, 118.24 (2) to (5), 118.255, 120.13 (1) and (19), 120.16 (6), 120.49 (6), 120.61, 121.52, 121.53, 121.54 (1), (3) and (4), 121.55, 121.58 (2) (b), (4) and (6), 121.77 (1), 121.79, 121.80, 121.81 (2), 121.82 (1), 121.83 and 121.84 (1) are applicable to the board of school directors and to schools in cities of the 1st class. The board shall exercise the powers, perform the functions and be entitled to all school aid therein provided insofar as the same are relevant to cities of the 1st class. The board and the schools in cities of the 1st class shall be governed in all matters by the general laws of the state, except as altered or modified by express amendments.

SECTION 164. 121.02 (1) (f) and (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

121.02 (1) (f) It shall operate, or be part of a cooperative, or otherwise make provision for ~~special~~ education programs for ~~handicapped students~~ children with exceptional educational needs as identified in s. 115.76 (3).

(2) A school district, in order to be eligible for state aids under s. 121.08, shall be in compliance with at least one-third of the standards established in this section by July 1, 1973, except as provided in sub. (3). A school district, in order to be eligible for state aids under s. 121.08, shall be in compliance with at least two-thirds of the standards in this section by July 1, ~~1974~~ 1975, except as provided in sub. (3). A school district, in order to be eligible for state aids under s. 121.08, shall be in compliance with all standards established in this section by July 1, ~~1975~~ 1976 [1975], except as provided in sub. (3). Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 165m. 121.07 (4) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 61 and 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

121.07 (4) SCHOOL DISTRICT EQUALIZED VALUATION. "School district equalized valuation" is the full value of the taxable property of the territory in the school district as certified for the prior year under s. 121.06 (2) ~~through aids paid for 1973-74 after which it is for the current year.~~

SECTION 165p. 121.07 (7) (a), (8) (a) and (9) (a) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

121.07 (7) (a) The primary guaranteed valuation shall be \$71,200 in the 1973-74 school year and ~~\$74,800~~ \$75,500 thereafter.

(8) (a) The primary guaranteed valuation shall be \$68,200 in the 1973-74 school year and ~~\$71,600~~ \$83,300 thereafter.

(9) (a) The primary guaranteed valuation shall be \$170,500 in the 1973-74 school year and ~~\$179,100~~ \$208,300 thereafter.

SECTION 166. 121.14 (2) (c) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 89, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

121.14 (2) (c) For the purpose of computing state aid, the total number of pupils enrolled in summer classes determined under par. (b) shall be added to the number of



pupils enrolled in the school district as reported under s. 121.05 or 115.84 where applicable or enrolled in a program operated by a county handicapped children's education board as reported under s. 115.84. ~~For nonresident high school pupils in summer classes, school districts shall be paid the amounts set forth in ss. 121.09 (3), 121.10 (3), 121.12 (3) and 121.13 (3).~~ School districts shall be paid the sum of \$70 for each nonresident elementary school pupil and \$88 for each nonresident high school pupil in summer classes under this section. For nonresident students who are receiving the substantial equivalent of a high school or elementary education, the county handicapped children's education board shall be paid the amounts set forth in s. 121.135.

SECTION 168. 121.54 (9) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 107, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

121.54 (9) TRANSPORTATION IN AREAS OF UNUSUAL HAZARDS. In school districts in which unusual hazards exist in walking to and from school for pupils who reside less than 2 miles from the school where they are enrolled, the school board may develop a plan which shall show by map and explanation the nature of the unusual hazards to pupil travel and propose a plan of transportation which will provide proper safeguards for the school attendance of such pupils. Copies of the plan shall be filed with the sheriff of the county in which the principal office of the school district is located. The sheriff shall review the plan and may make suggestions for revision that he deems appropriate. He shall investigate the site and plan and make a determination as to whether unusual hazards exist which cannot be corrected by local government. He shall report his findings in writing to the school board concerned. Any person aggrieved by the determination made by the sheriff may appeal the determination to the state superintendent who shall make a determination upon which the school board shall act. If the findings support the plan and the determination that unusual hazards exist which seriously jeopardize the safety of the pupils in their travel to and from school, the school board may put the plan for transportation into effect, but no part of the costs resulting from the transportation of pupils under this subsection may be reimbursed from state funds. Any city, village or town board ~~board~~ may reimburse, in whole or in part, a school district for costs incurred in providing transportation under this subsection for pupils who reside in the city, village or town.

SECTION 168m. 121.58 (2) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

121.58 (2) (a) A school district which provides transportation to and from a school under ss. 121.54 (1) to (3), (5) and (6) and 121.57 shall be paid state aid for such transportation at the rate of \$24 per school year per pupil so transported whose residence is at least 2 miles and not more than 5 miles from the school attended, ~~and~~ \$36 per school year per pupil so transported whose residence is at least 5 miles and not more than 8 miles from the school attended ~~and~~, \$48 per school year per pupil so transported whose residence is ~~more than at least 8 miles and not more than 12 miles~~ from the school attended and \$54 per school year per pupil so transported whose residence is more than 12 miles from the school attended. Such state aid shall be reduced proportionately in the case of a pupil transported for less than a full school year because of nonenrollment. State aid for transportation shall not exceed the actual cost thereof. No state aid of any kind may be paid to a school district which charges the pupil transported or his parent or guardian any part of the cost of transportation provided under ss. 121.54 (1) to (3), (5) and (6) and 121.57 or which wilfully or negligently fails to transport all pupils for whom transportation is required under s. 121.54.

SECTION 168r. 140.85 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 90 and 243, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

140.85 (1) In this section, "in-patient health care facility" means any hospital, nursing home, residential care facility except a halfway house as defined in the Wis. Adm. Code, section H31.02 (5) which has the characteristics specified under Wis. Adm. Code section H31.02 (2) (a) to (d), county home, county mental hospital, tuberculosis sanatoria or other place, without restriction because of enumeration, licensed or approved by the department under ss. 49.14, 49.16, 49.171, 50.01, 50.02, 51.24, 51.25, 58.06, 140.26, 146.30 and 146.32.

SECTION 168s. 140.85 (2) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

140.85 (2) FEES. The annual fee for an in-patient health care facility shall be based on bed capacity as follows:

Number of beds	Annual license fee
3-25	<del>\$250</del> \$125
26-50	<del>\$500</del> \$250
51-100	<del>\$750</del> \$375
101-150	<del>\$1,000</del> \$500
151-200	<del>\$1,250</del> \$625
201-250	<del>\$1,500</del> \$750
251-300	<del>\$1,750</del> \$875
<del>300-301</del> & Over	<del>\$2,000</del> \$1,000

(a) Such fees shall be paid to the department by the in-patient health care facility on or before May October 1 of each for the ensuing year to the department, beginning October 1, 1974. A new in-patient health care facility shall pay the fees under this subsection within 30 days before the opening of the facility.

(b) Any person who fails to submit the annual fee prior to May October 1, or within 30 days prior to the opening of a new in-patient health care facility subject to this section shall pay an additional fee of \$10 per day for every day after the deadline.

SECTION 168v. 144.23 of the statutes is created to read:

**144.23 Financial assistance program; sewerage systems.** (1) The financial assistance program established under this section is to be used only if the applicant is unable to receive assistance in a timely manner from the federal government and supplementary funding program established under s. 144.21. Receipt of aid under this section makes the applicant ineligible for aid under s. 144.21.

(2) There is established a state program of assistance to municipalities and unincorporated areas for the purpose of financing the construction of water pollution abatement and sewage collection systems. The program shall be administered by the department which shall make such rules as are necessary for the proper execution of the program.

(3) (a) The department shall establish criteria to determine those municipalities and projects which are eligible for the state program and to determine appropriate priorities by rule among the projects.

(b) All municipalities having a population of less than 10,000 are eligible for agreements under sub. (6) based on the criteria in this paragraph. The criteria shall consider the health hazards of existing conditions, the adequacy of the existing water pollution abatement system, per capita costs of the project, property valuation of the municipalities as equalized by the state, income of the residents in the municipalities, the availability of federal funds for the project and the borrowing capacity of the municipality. Highest priority shall initially be given to projects which have completed all necessary planning and engineering and any other factors which the department considers important. Municipalities commencing projects not completed prior to the effective date of this act (1973) are eligible for agreements under sub. (6).

(4) Municipalities which desire to participate in the state program shall submit application for participation to the department. The application shall be in such form and include such information as the department prescribes.

(5) The department shall review applications for participation in the state program. It shall determine those applications which meet the criteria it established under sub. (3) and shall arrange the applications in appropriate priority order.

(6) (a) Upon approval of an application, the department may enter into an agreement with the municipality to pay from the appropriation under s. 20.866 (2) (tm) an amount not to exceed 50% of the estimated reasonable costs of the approved project. The agreement shall be for such duration and subject to such terms as the department may prescribe. The department shall not grant any municipality more than 10% of the funds available under s. 20.866 (2) (tm) for a given year.

(b) In this subsection "estimated reasonable costs" include the costs of preliminary planning to determine the economic and engineering feasibility of a proposed sewerage system, the engineering, architectural, legal, fiscal and economic investigations and studies, surveys, designs, plans, working drawings, specifications, procedures and other action necessary to the construction of the project and the erection, building, acquisition, alteration, remodeling, improvement or extension of system facilities and the inspection and supervision of the construction of such facilities.

(7) The department shall review and approve the plans and specifications of all facilities designed and constructed by agreement under this section.

SECTION 169. 144.415 of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 169d. 146.30 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

146.30 (2) STANDARDS. The department may develop, establish and enforce standards ~~(a)~~ for the care, treatment, health, safety, welfare and comfort of patients in nursing homes and ~~(b)~~ for the construction, general hygiene, maintenance and operation of nursing homes, which, in the light of advancing knowledge, will promote safe and adequate accommodation, care and treatment of such patients in nursing homes; and promulgate and enforce rules consistent with this section. Such standards and rules shall provide that intermediate care facilities, as defined under volume 45, Code of Federal Regulations, part 249, which have 15 or fewer beds shall, if exempted from meeting certain physical plant, staffing and other requirements of the federal regulations, be exempted from meeting the corresponding provisions of the state's standards and rules. The standards and rules shall provide that if such an intermediate care facility meets the sanitation and safety requirements of the federal regulations, the facility shall be deemed to have met the sanitation and safety requirements of the state's nursing home regulations.

SECTION 169f. 146.30 (6) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 327, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

146.30 (6) (a) The department shall issue a license if nursing home facilities meet the requirements established by this section. Facility requirements shall be determined annually by inspection within ~~45~~ 120 days prior to license issuance or renewal. The department, or its designated representatives, shall make such inspections and investigations as are necessary to determine the conditions existing in each case and file written reports. The department may designate and use full-time city or county health departments as its agents in making such inspections and investigations, including such subsequent inspections and investigations as are deemed necessary or advisable; but provided that when such designation is made and such services are

furnished, the department shall reimburse the city or county furnishing such service at the rate of \$25 per year per license issued in such municipality.

SECTION 169fa. 146.32 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 323, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

146.32 (2) LICENSING AND STANDARD SETTING AUTHORITY. The department of health and social services shall license, develop, establish and enforce standards for the care, treatment, health, safety, welfare and comfort of persons in residential care institutions, and for the construction, general hygiene, maintenance and operation of such institutions, and shall adopt and enforce rules for such purposes. These standards shall be developed by program specialists in the department knowledgeable about the needs of prospective residents of residential care institutions. Such standards and rules shall provide that intermediate care facilities, as defined under volume 45, Code of Federal Regulations, part 249, which have 15 or fewer beds shall, if exempted from meeting certain physical plant, staffing and other requirements of the federal regulations, be exempted from meeting the corresponding provisions of the state's standards and rules.

SECTION 169fb. 160.03 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

160.03 (4) The annual fee for a vending machine operator is \$10. The annual fee for a vending machine commissary is \$40. The annual ~~fees~~ fee for each vending machines are as follows: ~~one machine, is \$4; 2 machines, \$8; 3 machines, \$12; 4 machines, \$16; 5 machines, \$20; 6 to 10 machines, \$40; 11 to 15 machines, \$60; 16 to 20 machines, \$80; 21 to 25 machines, \$100; 26 to 50 machines, \$200; 51 to 75 machines, \$300; 76 to 100 machines, \$400; and for machines in excess of 100, \$400 plus \$100 for each additional 25 machines or fraction thereof.~~

SECTION 169ft. 165.25 (6) of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

165.25 (6) ATTORNEY FOR STATE EMPLOYEES. At the request of the head of any department of state government, the attorney general may appear for and defend any state officer or employe of the department in any civil action or civil proceeding brought against such officer or employe for or on account of any act growing out of or committed in the lawful course of the officer's or employe's duties. Witness fees or other expenses determined by the attorney general to be reasonable and necessary to the defense in such action or proceeding shall be paid as provided for in s. 885.07. The attorney general may compromise and settle such action as he may determine to be in the best interest of the state.

SECTION 169g. 165.55 (1) and (4) of the statutes are amended to read:

165.55 (1) The chief of the fire department or company of every city ~~and~~ village ~~and town in which a fire department or company exists, the president of every village in which and where no fire department or company exists, and every the city mayor, village president or town clerk~~ may shall investigate or cause to be investigated the cause, origin and circumstances of every fire occurring in his city, village or town by which property has been destroyed or damaged when the damage exceeds ~~\$25~~ \$500, and on fires of unknown origin he ~~may shall~~ especially investigate ~~as to whether such the fire was the result of carelessness~~ negligence, accident or design. Where any investigation discloses that ~~such the~~ fire may be of incendiary origin, he shall report the same to the state fire marshal.

(4) The state fire marshal shall assign at least one deputy fire marshal exclusively to fire marshal duties for counties having a population of 500,000 or more.

SECTION 169r. 165.55 (12) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 169rm. 165.85 (4) (b) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

165.85 (4) (b) No person shall be appointed as a law enforcement officer, except on a temporary or probationary basis, unless such person has satisfactorily completed a preparatory program of law enforcement training approved by the board and has been certified by the board as being qualified to be a law enforcement officer. The program shall include at least 240 hours of training. The period of temporary or probationary employment established at the time of initial employment shall not be extended by more than one year for an officer lacking the training qualifications required by the board. The total period during which a person may serve as a law enforcement officer on a temporary or probationary basis without completing a preparatory program of law enforcement training approved by the board shall not exceed 2 years, except that the board shall permit part-time law enforcement officers to serve on a temporary or probationary basis without completing a program of law enforcement training approved by the board to a period not exceeding 6 years. For purposes of this section, a part-time law enforcement officer is a law enforcement officer who routinely works not more than one-half the normal annual work hours of a full-time employe of the employing agency or unit of government. Law enforcement training programs including municipal, county and state programs meeting standards of the board shall be acceptable as meeting these training requirements.

SECTION 169s. 174.06 (1) and (2) (intro.) of the statutes, as amended by chapter 90, laws of 1973, are amended to read:

174.06 (1) Every town, village and city shall annually ascertain by diligent inquiry the dogs owned, harbored or kept within the assessment district or county. In the case of a town, the town board shall designate a person to list the dogs in the town. Any municipal clerk or town board designee shall receive as compensation therefor 15 cents for each dog listed by him, to be audited and allowed by the county board as other claims against the county and to be paid out of the dog license fund. Every person shall answer frankly and fully all questions which are put to him by the clerk or town board designee relative to the ownership or keeping of dogs within the district or county. Such clerk or town board designee shall enter in his records for personal property assessments, or in a separate record for the town, all dogs in his district or county subject to tax, to whom they are assessed, the name, number, sex, spayed or unspayed, breed and color of each such dog. Such clerk or town board designee shall make in triplicate a list of the owners of all dogs assessed.

(2) (intro.) The clerk or town board designee shall make in triplicate a list of the names of persons owning and operating kennels and the number of dogs kept in each.

SECTION 169u. 174.06 (3) of the statutes is amended to read:

174.06 (3) The town, board designee or village or city clerk shall deliver one copy of the list under sub. (1) or (2) to the county clerk, one copy to the town, village or city treasurer, and retain one copy for his files.

SECTION 169x. 174.06 (4) of the statutes, as created by chapter 90, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

174.06 (4) Dog licenses need not be entered on any assessment or tax roll other than the lists prepared by the clerk or town board designee under subs. (1) and (2). Such lists may be deemed property assessment and tax rolls for all tax collection purposes.

SECTION 169z. 192.56 (7) of the statutes, as created by chapter 157, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

192.56 (7) A railroad company may not abandon any station within this state or remove the depot therefrom or withdraw agency service during an energy emergency under s. 340.01 (15s) without the approval of the commission.

SECTION 170. 200.26 (6) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 198 and 308, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

200.26 (6) REQUIRED COVERAGE OF CERTAIN TREATMENTS. (a) *Definitions*. In this subsection:

1. "Outpatient treatment facility" means a facility whose outpatient services meet the standards established in s. 51.42 (12) and provides at a minimum those services, except inpatient services, enumerated in s. 51.42 (5) (b) to (d) for the prevention and amelioration of mental disabilities, including but not limited to mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse.

2. "Hospital" has the meaning set forth in s. 140.24 (1) (a) and (c) which are licensed under s. 140.26, including an approved public or private treatment facility for the treatment of alcoholics as defined in s. 51.45 (2) (b) and (c).

3. "Physician" means a person licensed to practice medicine and surgery under ch. 448.

(b) *Requirement*. 1. Every contract issued by an organization and providing coverage for hospital treatment shall provide coverage for:

a. Inpatient and outpatient hospital treatment of alcoholism.

b. Inpatient hospital treatment of mental and nervous disorders and drug abuse.

c. Inpatient and outpatient dialysis treatment for kidney disease including home dialysis and kidney transplantation expenses, in an amount not less than \$30,000 annually, and including protection for both the recipient and donor of any transplant organ, as provided in s. 49.48 (3) (b). No insurer shall be required to duplicate coverage available under the federal medicare program.

2. Except as provided in this subsection, coverages under this paragraph may not be subject to exclusions or limitations which are not generally applicable to other conditions covered under the contract.

(c) *Limitation*. Coverages under par. (b) 1. a and b may not provide less than 30 days' confinement in any calendar year.

(d) *Outpatient treatment*. Every contract issued by an organization and providing coverage for outpatient treatment shall provide coverage for outpatient services provided by, under supervision of, or on referral from a physician for mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse including but not limited to partial hospitalization services, prescribed drugs and collateral interviews with patients' families in an amount not less than the first \$500 in any 12-month period in a hospital or outpatient treatment facility, or by a physician at any location. The department of health and social services may by rule adopted under ch. 227 adjust this amount at 2-year intervals to reflect changes in the cost of medical care.

(e) *Exclusion*. This subsection does not apply to contracts underwritten for a specific individual or members of his family.

(f) The department of health and social services may by rule impose reasonable standards for the treatment of kidney diseases required to be covered under this subsection which shall not be inconsistent with or less stringent than applicable federal standards.

SECTION 171. 204.321 (2) (d) of the statutes, as affected by chapters 12 and 308, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

204.321 (2) (d) 1. In this subsection:

a. "Outpatient treatment facility" means a facility whose outpatient services meet the standards established under s. 51.42 (12) and provides at a minimum those services, except inpatient services, enumerated in s. 51.42 (5) (b) to (d) for the prevention and amelioration of mental disabilities, including but not limited to mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse.

b. "Hospital" has the meaning set forth in s. 140.24 (1) (a) and (c).

c. "Physician" means a person licensed to practice medicine and surgery under ch. 448.

2. Each group accident and sickness policy providing hospital treatment coverage shall provide coverage for:

a. Inpatient hospital treatment of mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse.

b. Hospital treatment for kidney disease, as defined by the department of health and social services under s. 200.26 (6) (f). Kidney disease coverage shall include dialysis treatment approved by the department under s. 49.48 (2) (a), in an amount not less than \$30,000 annually. No insurer shall be required to duplicate coverage available under the federal medicare program.

3. Except as provided in this paragraph, coverages under subd. 2 may not be subject to exclusions or limitations which are not generally applicable to other conditions covered under the policy.

4. Coverages under subd. 2. a may not provide less than 30 days' confinement in any calendar year.

5. Each group accident and sickness policy providing coverage for outpatient treatment shall provide coverage for outpatient services provided by, under the supervision of, or on referral from a physician for mental and nervous disorders, alcoholism and drug abuse including but not limited to partial hospitalization services, prescribed drugs and collateral interviews with patients' families in an amount not less than the first \$500 in any 12-month period, in a hospital or outpatient treatment facility, or by a physician at any location. The department of health and social services may by rule adopted under ch. 227 adjust this amount at 2-year intervals to reflect changes in the cost of medical care.

SECTION 172b. 234.03 (13m) of the statutes is created to read:

234.03 (13m) To purchase and enter into commitments for the purchase of veterans housing loans made pursuant to s. 45.79.

SECTION 172d. 234.40 (3) of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

234.40 (3) It is the intent of the legislature that the authority be used to finance the veterans housing program. Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to supersede the ~~responsibilities designated in s. 45.79~~ of powers vested by subch. II of ch. 45 in the department of veterans affairs ~~in~~ for carrying out program responsibilities for which debt has been incurred by the authority.

SECTION 172m. 234.41 (2) of the statutes, as created by chapter 208, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

234.41 (2) ~~the~~ The authority shall use ~~money~~ moneys in the fund for the purpose of purchasing loans representing veterans housing loans pursuant to s. 45.79. All disbursements of funds under this section for purchasing mortgage loans shall be made in the form of checks payable to authorized lenders as defined in s. 45.71 (2) and eligible persons as defined in s. 45.71 (6). Such checks shall be transmitted to the department of veterans affairs to be mailed pursuant to s. 45.79 (5)(a) 4. Vetoed  
in Part

~~SECTION 173. 245.15 of the statutes is renumbered 245.15 (1) and amended to read:~~

~~245.15 (1) STANDARD FEE. Each county clerk shall receive as a fee for each license granted the sum of \$4.50, of which \$3, which shall become a part of the funds of the county, and \$1.50 shall be paid into the state treasury. The clerk shall also receive a standard notary fee of 50 cents for each license granted which may be retained by him if operating on a fee or part fee basis, but which otherwise shall become part of the funds of the county.~~ Vetoed  
in Part

~~SECTION 173b. 245.15 (2) of the statutes is created to read:~~

~~245.15 (2) SUPPLEMENTAL FEE AUTHORIZED. If the county has a council on home life and family environment created under s. 59.07 (94), the county board may direct the county clerk to charge a supplemental marriage license fee of \$1.50 to defray the expense of the council.~~ Vetoed  
in Part

SECTION 173c. 255.25 of the statutes is amended to read:

**255.25 Juror's fees and mileage.** Every grand and petit juror summoned upon any venire shall receive not less than \$4 nor more than \$16, as fixed by the county board, for each day's actual attendance upon any circuit or county court, and 10 cents an amount determined by the county board for each mile actually traveled each day in going and returning by the most usual route; but shall be paid for no day when the court is not in session unless specially ordered by the presiding judge.

SECTION 173d. 256.17 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 140, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**256.17 Legal holidays.** January 1, the 3rd Monday in February (which shall be the day of celebration for February 12 and 22), the last Monday in May (which shall be the day of celebration for May 30), July 4, the 1st Monday in September which shall be known as Labor Day, the 2nd Monday in October, November 11, the 4th Thursday in November (which shall be the day of celebration for Thanksgiving), December 25, the day of holding the September primary election, and the day of holding the general election in November are legal holidays. On Good Friday the period from 11 a.m. to 3 p.m. shall uniformly be observed for the purpose of worship. In every city of the 1st class the day of holding any municipal election is a legal holiday, and in every such city the afternoon of each day upon which a primary election is held for the nomination of candidates for city offices is a half holiday and in counties having a population of 500,000 or more the county board may by ordinance provide that all county employes shall have a half holiday on the day of such primary election and a holiday on the day of such municipal election, and that employes whose duties require that they work on such days be given equivalent time off on other days. Whenever any of said days falls on Sunday, the succeeding Monday shall be the legal holiday.

SECTION 173e. 256.171 of the statutes is created to read:



**256.171 Wisconsin family month.** The month of November, in which the celebration of Thanksgiving occurs, is designated as Wisconsin Family Month and the first Sunday of that month as Family Sunday. In conjunction therewith appropriate observances, ceremonies, exercises and activities may be held under state auspices to focus attention on the principles of family responsibility to spouses, children and parents, as well as on the importance of the stability of marriage and the home for our future well-being; and the chief officials of local governments and the people of the state are invited either to join and participate therein or to conduct like observances in their respective localities.

SECTION 173p. 270.58 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

270.58 (1) Where the defendant in any action or special proceeding is a public officer or employe and is proceeded against in his official capacity or is proceeded against as an individual because of acts committed while carrying out his duties as an officer or employe and the jury or the court finds that ~~he acted in good faith~~ such defendant was acting within the scope of his employment the judgment as to damages and costs entered against the officer or employe shall be paid by the state or political subdivision of which he is an officer or employe. Regardless of the results of the litigation the governmental unit, when it does not provide legal counsel to the defendant officer or employe, shall pay reasonable attorney's fees and costs of defending the action, unless it is found by the court or jury that the defendant officer or employe did not act ~~in good faith, when it does not provide legal counsel to the defendant officer or employe~~ within the scope of his employment. Failure by the officer or employe to give notice to his department head of action or special proceeding commenced against him as soon as reasonably possible shall be a bar to recovery by the officer or employe from the state or political subdivision of reasonable attorney's fees and costs of defending the action. Such attorney's fees and expenses shall not be recoverable if the state or political subdivision offers the officer or employe legal counsel and such offer is refused by the defendant officer or employe. Deputy sheriffs in those counties where they serve not at the will of the sheriff but on civil service basis shall be covered by this subsection, except that the provision relating to payment of the judgment shall be discretionary and not mandatory. In such counties the judgment as to damages and costs may be paid by the county if approved by the county board.

SECTION 174. 340.01 (5) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 182, laws of 1973, is repealed and recreated to read:

340.01 (5) "Bicycle" means every device propelled by the feet acting upon pedals and having wheels any 2 of which are not less than 14 inches in diameter.

SECTION 174g. 341.25 (2) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

341.25 (2) (intro.) The following schedule shall be used in determining fees based on gross weight, but each fee shall be increased by \$2 to be estimated and allotted as ~~provided in s. 20.395 (2) (vw) and (wd) and (3) (u)~~ so that 20% of the estimated total amount shall be allotted to s. 20.395 (1) (qd) and 80% of the estimated total amount shall be allotted to s. 20.395 (4) (q) 6, and such \$2 shall not be considered a portion of the net registration fee under s. 86.35:

SECTION 174j. 341.26 (3) (a) and (g) (intro.) of the statutes are amended to read:

341.26 (3) (a) For each farm truck having a gross weight of 10,000 pounds or less, a fee of \$12, of which \$2 is to be estimated and allotted as ~~provided in s. 20.395 (2) (vw) and (wd) and (3) (u) so that 20% of the estimated total amount shall be allotted to s. 20.395 (1) (qd) and 80% of the estimated total amount shall be allotted to s. 20.395 (4) (q) 6,~~ and such \$2 shall not be considered a portion of the net registration fee under s. 86.35. For each farm truck having a gross weight of more than 10,000 pounds, a fee which is one-fourth of the fee prescribed by s. 341.25, without regard to the \$2 additional fee prescribed in s. 341.25 (2) ~~(intro. par.)~~ (intro.), for a motor truck of the same gross weight, plus \$2, which \$2 shall be estimated and allotted as ~~provided in s. 20.395 (2) (vw) and (wd) and (3) (u) so that 20% of the estimated total amount shall be allotted to s. 20.395 (1) (qd) and 80% of the estimated total amount shall be allotted to s. 20.395 (4) (q) 6,~~ and such \$2 shall not be considered a portion of the net registration fee under s. 86.35;

(g) (intro.) The following schedule shall be used in determining fees for vehicles registered pursuant to par. (c), (d) or (e), but each fee shall be increased by \$2 to be estimated and allotted as ~~provided in s. 20.395 (2) (vw) and (wd) and (3) (u) so that 20% of the estimated total amount shall be allotted to s. 20.395 (1) (qd) and 80% of the estimated total amount shall be allotted to s. 20.395 (4) (q) 6,~~ and such \$2 shall not be considered a portion of the net registration fee under s. 86.35:

SECTION 174m. 341.29 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 200, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**341.29 Registration for vehicles other than private automobiles and taxicabs.** (1) Annual ~~The annual~~ registration period for all vehicles other than private automobiles, taxicabs, those eligible for quarterly registration under s. 341.30 and driver education vehicles, shall be ~~for the calendar year and expire on December 31 of the year for which the vehicle is registered. The division shall take the necessary action to make the change not later than January 1, 1963 determined by the administrator.~~

(2) If an application for registration of a vehicle subject to registration on a ~~calendar year basis is received after November 30~~ an annual basis is received less than 2 months prior to the beginning of any registration period and the vehicle is not registered in this state at the time of application and the applicant desires to register for the succeeding registration period as well as for the remainder of the current period, the division upon registering the vehicle shall issue registration plates designed for the succeeding registration period rather than for the current period. Such plates also serve during the remainder of the current registration period as lawful evidence of the registration of the vehicle. This subsection does not affect computation of fee payable by the applicant.

SECTION 174p. 346.60 (2) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 182, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

346.60 (2) Except as provided in sub. (5), any person violating s. 346.57 (4) (d) to ~~(h)~~ (hm) or (5) or 346.58 may be required to forfeit not less than \$20 nor more than \$200.

SECTION 174r. 346.81 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 182, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

346.81 (1) No person may operate a bicycle upon a highway, bicycle lane or bicycle way during hours of darkness unless such bicycle is equipped with or the operator is wearing a lamp emitting a white light visible from a distance of at least 500

feet to the front of such bicycle. Such bicycle shall also be equipped with a red reflector that has a diameter of at least ~~2-1/2~~ 2 inches of surface area on the rear so mounted and maintained as to be visible from all distances from 50 to 500 feet to the rear when directly in front of lawful upper beams of headlamps on a motor vehicle. A lamp emitting a red light visible from a distance of 500 feet to the rear may be used in addition to but not in lieu of the red reflector.

SECTION 174s. 348.25 (8) of the statutes is created to read:

348.25 (8) A permit issuance fee of \$1 for each permit under s. 348.26 and a permit issuance fee of \$3 for the first permit and each subsequent or revalidated permit under s. 348.27 may be charged by the officer or agency authorized to issue such a permit. In addition, the officer or agency may require any applicant for a permit under s. 348.26 to pay the cost of any special investigation undertaken to determine whether a permit should be approved or denied.

SECTION 174t. 409.405 (1) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 215, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

409.405 (1) A financing statement may disclose an assignment of a security interest in the collateral described in the financing statement by indication in the financing statement of the name and address of the assignee or by an assignment itself or a copy thereof on the face or back of the statement. On presentation to the filing officer of such a financing statement the filing officer shall mark the same as provided in s. 409.403 (4). The uniform fee for filing, indexing and furnishing filing data for a financing statement so indicating an assignment is \$2 if the statement is in the standard form prescribed by the secretary of state and otherwise shall be \$4 an additional \$1 per page, plus in each case an additional fee of \$1 for each name more than one against which the financing statement is required to be indexed. In the case of a filing under s. 409.401 (1) (c), s. 409.403 (1) controls as to fees.

SECTION 175. 551.52 (1) and (2) of the statutes are amended to read:

551.52 (1) There shall be a minimum filing fee of ~~\$100~~ \$200 for every registration statement filed under s. 551.25 or 551.26. There shall be an additional fee of one-tenth of one per cent of the maximum aggregate offering price at which the registered securities are to be offered in this state, and the maximum filing fee shall in no case be more than ~~\$300~~ \$400. If the registration statement relates to redeemable securities issued by an open-end management company or unit investment trust, as defined in the investment company act of 1940, the additional fee shall be one-twentieth of one per cent of the maximum aggregate offering price at which the registered securities are to be offered in this state, and there shall be ~~no~~ a maximum fee of \$750. When a registration statement is withdrawn before the effective date or a pre-effective stop order is entered under s. 551.28, the minimum fee shall be retained.

(2) Every applicant for an initial or renewal license under s. 551.32 shall pay a filing fee of \$100 in the case of a broker-dealer, ~~\$10~~ \$20 in the case of an agent or person representing an investment adviser, and ~~\$50~~ \$100 in the case of an investment adviser. A broker-dealer maintaining any office within this state shall pay an additional filing fee of ~~\$20~~ \$30 for each office. When an application is denied or withdrawn, the filing fee shall be retained.

SECTION 176. 551.52 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 551.52 (5).

SECTION 177. 551.52 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

551.52 (4) The commissioner may by rule require the payment of prescribed fees for delinquent or materially deficient filings of information or documents required to be filed with the commissioner under this chapter.

SECTION 178. 553.72 (title) and (1) to (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

**553.72 (title) Fees and expenses.** (1) The fee for filing an application for registration of the ~~sale offer~~ of franchises under s. 553.26 is ~~\$200~~ \$400.

(2) The fee for filing an application for renewal of a registration under s. 553.30 is ~~\$100~~ \$250.

(3) The fee for filing an amendment to the application filed under s. 553.31 is ~~\$50~~ \$100.

SECTION 179. 553.72 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 553.72 (5).

SECTION 180. 553.72 (4) of the statutes is created to read:

553.72 (4) The commissioner may by rule require the payment of prescribed fees for delinquent or materially deficient filings of information or documents required to be filed with the commissioner under this chapter.

SECTION 181. 605.01 of the statutes, as created by chapter 117, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

**605.01 Definitions.** In this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise, "local governmental unit" means any city, county, town or village board or common council ~~or~~, school or library board, or board of control of a cooperative educational service agency.

SECTION 182. 605.21 (1) of the statutes, as created by chapter 117, laws of 1973, is amended to read:

605.21 (1) **STATE PROPERTY.** The person or board having charge of property described in s. 605.02 (1) shall furnish to the manager a list of all such property under his charge with estimates of its insurable value based on such data and standards as the manager reasonably prescribes. The manager shall compute the premium, and he may consider the rates suggested by rate service organizations in this state for the perils against which the fund insures, with such deviations and other departures from those rates as he considers sound. He shall submit to the department of administration a statement of the amount of required insurance on the property and the premium payable therefor. The amount due for insurance shall be paid to the property fund ~~under s. 20.865 (2) (b).~~

SECTION 182c. 895.45 of the statutes is created to read:

**895.45 Timeliness, definition of claimant, notice and limited liability.** (1) No civil action or civil proceeding may be brought against any state officer or employe for or on account of any act growing out of or committed in the course of the discharge of such officer's or employe's duties, unless within 90 days of the event causing the injury, damage or death giving rise to such civil action or civil proceeding, the claimant in such action or proceeding serves upon the attorney general written notice of a claim stating the time, date, location and the circumstances of the event giving rise to the claim for such injury, damage or death and the names of persons involved, including the name of the state officer or employe involved.

(2) In this section, "claimant" means the person or entity sustaining the damage or injury or his agent, attorney or personal representative.

(3) The notice under sub. (1) shall be sworn to by the claimant and shall be served upon the attorney general at his office in the capitol by certified mail. Notice shall be considered to be given upon mailing for the purpose of computing the time of giving notice.

(4) The amount recoverable by any person or entity for any damages, injuries or death in any civil action or civil proceeding against a state officer or employe under this section shall not exceed \$100,000. No punitive damages shall be allowed or recoverable in any such action.

SECTION 182d. Chapter 201, laws of 1937, section 21a is created to read:

(Chapter 201, laws of 1937) Section 21a. Notwithstanding section 21, any member of the retirement system who becomes an employe of the state of Wisconsin pursuant to chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 546, as affected by chapter 333, laws of 1973, section 189b, shall be eligible for a deferred vested pension without regard to the length of service as a member of the retirement system.

SECTION 182f. Chapter 52, laws of 1973, section 1m is created to read:

(Chapter 52, laws of 1973) Section 1m. If section 20.916 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended during the term of this agreement to provide for increased mileage reimbursement, the agreement ratified by SECTION 1 of this act shall be deemed amended accordingly and shall be subject to the terms and conditions specified in section 20.916 (4) (a) of the statutes as amended, but at no time during the terms of this agreement shall the rate of mileage reimbursement be less than the rate negotiated in this agreement.

SECTION 182n. Chapter 53, laws of 1973, Section 1m is created to read:

(Chapter 53, laws of 1973) Section 1m. If section 20.916 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended during the term of this agreement to provide for increased mileage reimbursement, the agreement ratified by SECTION 1 of this act shall be deemed amended accordingly and shall be subject to the terms and conditions specified in section 20.916 (4) (a) of the statutes as amended, but at no time during the term of this agreement shall the rate of mileage reimbursement be less than the rate negotiated in this agreement.

SECTION 182o. Chapter 56, laws of 1973, Section 1m is created to read:

(Chapter 56, laws of 1973) Section 1m. If section 20.916 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended during the term of this agreement to provide for increased mileage reimbursement, the agreement ratified by SECTION 1 of this act shall be deemed amended accordingly and shall be subject to the terms and conditions specified in section 20.916 (4) (a) of the statutes as amended, but at no time during the term of this agreement shall the rate of mileage reimbursement be less than the rate negotiated in this agreement.

SECTION 183. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, Section 537m (10) to (14) are created to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 537m (10) To achieve economies in construction, accelerate project completion and permit close coordination of the 2 phases of construction for the university of Wisconsin medical center in Madison, construction contracts for portions of the work may be awarded prior to the completion of all final plans with the prior approval of the building commission. This subsection shall supersede section 13.48 (10) of the statutes as it relates to the construction of the university of Wisconsin medical center in Madison.

(11) To provide a contingency to offset the effects of inflation, unavailability of materials, cost of living increases, energy shortages or other cost increase factors the building commission is authorized to approve the use of not more than \$3,000,000 of residual academic bonding authority to supplement the \$32,000,000 project budget for phase II of the university of Wisconsin medical center in Madison. This authority may be used by the commission if the engineering news record building cost index exceeds 1205 at the time of bidding. The commission may increase the project budget within the \$3,000,000 limit if after a review of the bids the commission determines this to be the most appropriate action.

(12) The building commission may use available building trust funds to purchase all or any of the parcels of land in Fond du Lac which were originally acquired with federal employment security funds for a site to construct an employment security building. The building commission may further dispose of these parcels by sale, lease or gift as it determines will best meet the interests of the state. The proceeds of these dispositions shall be returned to the building trust fund to help off-set the initial purchase expenditure.

(13) Employment security buildings may be constructed in the Fond du Lac area employment security district at a total cost of \$400,000, in the Ashland area employment security district at a total cost of \$200,000 and in the Milwaukee area employment security district at a total cost of \$350,000. Financing for these projects shall be wholly from federal funds. The amounts appropriated by section 20.445 (1) (x) 8 of the statutes and this subsection for the construction of employment security buildings are available for obligation solely within the 2 years beginning on its date of enactment.

(14) The building commission may approve up to \$1,761,800 of ORAP supported general obligation bonding for the development of Heritage Hill State Park in the town of Allouez, Brown county.

SECTION 186. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 541j (2) is repealed and recreated to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 541j (2) (a) When awarding grants-in-aid for care and treatment provided between January 1, 1975, and December 31, 1975, the department of health and social services and the boards created under sections 51.42 and 51.437 of the statutes shall give priority to existing county programs meeting minimum standards of need and service quality established under section 51.42 of the statutes.

(b) On or before August 1, 1974, the department of health and social services shall prepare a statement informing each board authorized under sections 51.42 and 51.437 of the statutes of a minimum tentative allocation of grants-in-aid for calendar year 1975.

SECTION 187. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 541j (3), is amended to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 541j (3) For care and aid provided as of January 1, 1975, the department of health and social services shall assume the cost of the entire nonfederal share of federally aided programs of aid to families with dependent children under section 49.19 of the statutes, and the cost of county administration as defined in section 49.51 of the statutes except for the administration of and aid granted under sections 49.02 and 49.03 of the statutes. The department shall assume the entire nonfederal costs but shall continue to contract with county agencies for the administration of public assistance and related services and for county purchase of care and services. The department shall specify the services to be provided

under the contracts and assure the efficient management of the programs as provided in section 49.51 of the statutes. In negotiating such contracts during calendar year 1975 the department may not require changes in the administration of public assistance related services and program budgets except those which are necessary to comply with federal laws and regulations and those which are necessary to comply with existing statutory provisions and the fiscal limitations established in chapter 90, laws of 1973.

SECTION 188. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 542e is amended to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 542e. **Foster care funding.** It is the intent of the legislature in providing the amounts included in the schedule for foster care and institutional child care expenditures by the division of family services in the department of health and social services that the level of funding provided shall not be construed as creating a requirement upon the department to freeze or otherwise restrict increases in rates charged by child care institutions. However, no increase in rates above the levels in effect on April 1, 1973, may be granted until March 1, 1974 or until the department and the individual institution affected have established establishes a child placement review program as required under section 48.525 of the statutes, whichever comes first.

SECTION 188m. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 542v (1) (a), is amended to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 542v (1) (a) Three members of the senate ~~health, education and welfare committee~~ and 3 members of the assembly ~~health and social services committee~~, to be appointed as are standing committees in the respective houses. The members appointed from each house shall consist of 2 members from the most predominant political party and one member from the second most predominant political party.

SECTION 189. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 546, is amended to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 546. **State air pollution program implementation.** (1) The department of natural resources and Milwaukee county shall, by February 1, 1974, jointly submit a report to the joint committee on finance indicating the progress being made toward implementing the January 1, 1975, transfer of the Milwaukee county air pollution control program responsibilities to state control. The program for implementation shall ~~include~~ consider the incorporation of present permanent Milwaukee county air pollution program personnel and facilities into a regional control program in southeastern Wisconsin. ~~The committee may require such other reports as it deems necessary to ensure that this transfer is completed in as orderly a manner as possible.~~

SECTION 189b. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 546 (2) is created to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 546 (2) (a) In order to ensure employment opportunity for current employes of the Milwaukee county air pollution program interested in becoming employes of the state, while also ensuring the rights and opportunities of the employes of the department of natural resources, the provisions in the negotiated agreement between the department of natural resources and Milwaukee county shall be subject to section 16.11 (1) of the statutes in regard to the director's determination of appropriate eligibility, pay, employment benefits and status as identified in sections 16.22 and 16.30 of the statutes. Where the state has a negotiated agreement in effect and an employe moves into a classification included in a certified bargaining unit, the benefits available shall be determined by the provisions of the appropriate collective bargaining agreement.

(b) Milwaukee county shall assume the responsibility for payment of any accumulated vacation, compensatory time or other benefits unique to Milwaukee county, for which any individual currently employed in the Milwaukee county air pollution control program may be entitled to at the time of transfer to state service.

(c) On the effective date of this act the county shall cease any recruitment for unfilled or soon to be vacated positions and shall defer any promotions, pay increases, reclassifications and all other personnel actions over which it has control which would incur cost increases to the state or alter the competitive ranking of any employe who may transfer to state service.

(d) On the effective date of this act the county shall, as far as possible and subject to county civil service rules or any negotiated collective bargaining agreement or both, establish preferential appointment lists for affected employes who wish to transfer to other vacant county positions which become available and for which they are qualified.

(e) The cost basis of any air pollution control equipment purchased by the state shall be the county's verified equity in such equipment less depreciation. Before any purchase is made an itemized listing of all equipment to be purchased and the cost of such equipment must be submitted to the board on government operations for its approval.

(f) Subject to the approval of the department of administration a lease agreement may be negotiated between Milwaukee county and the department of natural resources covering use by the department of natural resources of county buildings currently used by the county air pollution control program which may be of use to the state for the operation of the regional air pollution control program and other district functions as are necessary.

(g) The committee may require such other reports as it deems necessary to ensure that this transfer is completed in as orderly a manner as possible.

SECTION 189m. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 546e (title), (1) (intro.) and (2) are amended to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 546e (title) **Special study committee on manufacturing equipment and personal property tax exemptions.** (1) (intro.) There is created a special study committee on the exemption of manufacturing equipment and manufacturers' materials and finished products, merchants' stock in trade and livestock, composed of 7 members, as follows:

(2) The committee shall study and make recommendations to the governor and the legislature regarding the effects of exempting from property taxation manufacturing equipment and manufacturers' materials and finished products, merchants' stock in trade and livestock. The committee shall submit its report to the governor and legislature no later than December 31, 1974.

SECTION 189p. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 550b is repealed.

SECTION 190. Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 561 (10), is amended to read:

(Chapter 90, laws of 1973) Section 561 (10) PURCHASE OF CARE AND SERVICES. The secretary of ~~the department of~~ health and social services may waive such provisions of section 46.036 of the statutes as created by this act, until July 1, 1974 January 1, 1975, where implementation cannot be readily achieved and the services to be provided under the contract are essential to the responsibilities of the department and furthering the purposes of the authority granted to the department.



SECTION 190m. Chapter 157, laws of 1973, section 15 (intro.) is amended to read:

(Chapter 157, laws of 1973) Section 15 (intro.) **Effective date, expiration.** This act, except for the treatment of section 348.27 (9) of the statutes by this act which shall take effect December 30, 1973, and which shall not become void as provided under this section, shall be in effect until the date specified in sub. (1) or (2), whichever occurs first, and after that date is void:

SECTION 191. **Program responsibility citations.** (1) ADMINISTRATION. In the list of program responsibility citations enumerated for the department of administration under section 15.101 (intro.) of the statutes, the reference to section "51.09 (5)" is deleted.

SECTION 192. **Appropriation changes.** (1) ADMINISTRATION. (a) *Office of emergency energy assistance.* The appropriation under section 20.505 (5) (c) of the statutes, as created by chapter 157, laws of 1973, is increased by \$150,000 in 1974-75 to provide second year funding for general program operations of the office of emergency energy assistance.

(b) *Risk management.* The appropriation under section 20.505 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$44,000 in 1974-75 to provide funds for additional positions to implement a statewide risk management coordination function as defined in section 16.865 of the statutes, as created by this act.

(c) *Affirmative action.* The number of authorized positions under section 20.505 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by one additional position for affirmative action.

(d) *State printing management.* The appropriation under section 20.505 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$360,200 in 1974-75 to provide for continued funding from general purpose revenues for 24 positions in the printing management unit.

(2) AGRICULTURE. (a) *Grade A milk inspection.* The appropriation under section 20.115 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$35,400 in 1974-75 to provide a continuation of general purpose revenue funding for positions previously funded under the emergency employment act.

(b) *Animal health laboratory positions.* The number of positions authorized for the department of agriculture through the appropriation under section 20.115 (2) (g) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by two positions to process the increased samples and specimens submitted for analysis.

(c) *State fair park positions.* The number of positions authorized for the department of agriculture through the appropriation under section 20.115 (4) (h) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by 6 positions for state fair park operations.

(d) *Diseased animal indemnity payments.* The appropriation under section 20.115 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$20,000 in 1973-74 and \$250,000 in 1974-75 to provide for increased diseased animal indemnity payments.

(3) AMERICAN REVOLUTION BICENTENNIAL COMMEMORATION. (a) *Administration.* The appropriation under section 20.855 (5) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$76,700 in 1974-75 to continue the state's support of the program's administrative cost.

(4) ARTS BOARD. (a) *Rent*. The appropriation under section 20.215 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$10,800 in 1974-75 to cover the cost of rent.

(5) BOARD ON AGING. (a) *Additional position*. The appropriation under section 20.430 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$6,400 in 1974-75 for an additional one-half position and related expenses necessary for the operation of the board.

(6) BOARD ON GOVERNMENT OPERATIONS. (a) *General program operations emergencies*. The appropriation under section 20.725 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$500,000 in 1973-74 to provide additional funds for general program operations emergencies.

(8) ETHICS BOARD. (a) *General program operations*. The appropriation under section 20.521 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$23,200 in 1974-75 to provide funds for additional administrative expenditures in the areas of salary and fixed overhead costs.

(9) HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. (ag) *Health -- transfer of inspection positions from Medicare to medical assistance*. The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$75,800 in 1974-75 for the transfer of 5.7 positions from federal Medicare to medical assistance funding.

(b) *Health -- medical and professional review positions*. The appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$171,700 in 1974-75 for 15 nurse and social worker positions to conduct patient reviews in intermediate care facilities and skilled nursing facilities.

(e) *Mental health -- food cost increases*. The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$129,600 in 1973-74 and by \$202,500 in 1974-75 to compensate for increased food costs.

(ed) *Mental health -- colony food cost reduction*. The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$85,000 in 1974-75 to reflect decreased populations as a result of placements in family care homes.

(ef) *Mental health -- additional community mental health funding*. The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$741,600 in 1973-74 and by \$10,391,900 in 1974-75 to provide supplemental state aid for local mental health, alcoholism and drug abuse programs.

(em) *Mental health -- additional community mental health funding*. The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$339,300 in 1973-74 and by \$1,371,100 in 1974-75 to provide supplemental state aid for local developmental disabilities programs.

(f) *Mental health -- alcoholism services in the Milwaukee house of corrections*. The appropriation under section 20.435 (2) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$72,200 in 1973-74 and by \$214,100 in 1974-75 to provide for community mental health board contracting for alcoholism services provided in the Milwaukee house of corrections.

(i) *Corrections -- food costs*. The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$216,400 in 1973-74 and by \$338,100 in 1974-75 for increases in food costs.

(ia) *Corrections -- farms.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$275,000 in 1974-75 to restore 15 farm positions for those portions of the division of corrections farms which were not sold as anticipated.

(ja) *Corrections - parole and probation positions.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$1,350,000 in 1973-74 due to unfilled authorized funded positions.

(L) *Family services -- food costs.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$7,800 in 1973-74 and by \$12,200 in 1974-75 for food cost increases at the Wisconsin child center.

(m) *Family services -- accounting staff.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$62,100 in 1974-75 to fund increased workload.

(nm) *Family services - family care.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$434,200 in 1974-75 for family care placements from the colonies and institutes in order to replace federal funding that was anticipated but may not be available.

(r) *Vocational rehabilitation -- federal funding supplementation.* The appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$910,000 in 1973-74 and is increased by \$852,200 in 1974-75; the appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$393,900 in 1974-75; and the appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (o) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$747,100 in 1974-75 to reflect state supplementation of federal funding cutbacks in the vocational rehabilitation program.

(10) HIGHER EDUCATIONAL AIDS BOARD. (a) *Legal fees.* The appropriation under section 20.235 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$20,000 in 1973-74 and by \$30,000 in 1974-75 for the reimbursement of legal costs associated with the collection of defaulted student loans.

(11) INDUSTRY, LABOR AND HUMAN RELATIONS. (a) *Mobile home inspection.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$108,600 in 1974-75 to continue the mobile home inspection activity.

(b) *Workmen's compensation workload.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$13,000 in 1974-75 to handle increased workmen's compensation workload.

(c) *Administrative workload.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$13,000 in 1974-75 to assist in carrying out increased administrative workload.

(d) *Equal rights.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$93,600 in 1974-75 for 4 hearing examiner and 2 court reporter positions to handle the increased volume of equal rights hearings.

(e) *Increased rental costs.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$109,000 in 1974-75 as a result of increased rental costs.

(f) *Affirmative action.* The appropriation under section 20.445 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$18,500 in 1974-75 for one additional position for affirmative action.

(12) INSURANCE. (b) *State life insurance fund position.* The appropriation under section 20.145 (4) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$8,600 in 1974-75 to provide funding for a position which was approved by the board on government operations in 1973-74 to handle the increased insurance application workload.

(13) JUSTICE. (a) *Legal services.* The appropriation under section 20.455 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$144,900 in 1974-75 to provide a continuation of general purpose revenue funding for the established low-income consumer protection program.

(am) *Arson investigations.* The appropriation under section 20.455 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$20,900 in 1974-75 to provide continuing funds for a deputy state fire marshall.

(b) *Criminal investigation.* The appropriation under section 20.455 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$66,200 in 1974-75 to provide matching funds for a federal grant awarded to the department of justice for the purpose of continued staffing of the organized crime task force.

(13m) LEGISLATURE. (a) *Legislative reference bureau.* The number of positions authorized for the legislative reference bureau through the appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (b) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by one position for the purpose of programming and operating the intermediate computer system authorized by section 13.92 (1) (d) of the statutes as affected by this act.

(b) *Legislative fiscal bureau.* The appropriation under section 20.765 (3) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$5,500 in 1973-74 and by \$124,200 in 1974-75 to provide 6 additional professional and 2 clerical positions.

(14) LOCAL AFFAIRS AND DEVELOPMENT. (a) *General program operations.* The appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$52,100 in 1974-75 to provide a continuation of funding for one local government training position previously funded under the federal title VIII education program and to provide funding for local government fiscal training.

(b) *Planning aids.* The appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (f) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$265,000 in 1973-74 to offset a projected reduction in federal 701 comprehensive planning aids for calendar year 1974. Should calendar year 1974 federal 701 comprehensive planning aids for large cities, metropolitan planning agencies and regional planning commissions exceed \$975,000, the general fund shall be reimbursed from such aids by an amount equal to the amount of aids in excess of \$975,000 but such reimbursement shall not exceed \$265,000.

(c) *Bureau of economic opportunity staff.* The appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$17,200 in 1973-74 and increased by \$10,500 in 1974-75 to provide for the administration of community action aids.

(d) *Aids to community action agencies.* The appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (c) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$150,000 in 1974-75 to provide supplemental interim funding for community action agencies.

(15) **MILITARY AFFAIRS.** (a) *General program operations.* The appropriation under section 20.465 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$4,100 in 1974-75 for Sheboygan armory rental costs.

(16) **MISCELLANEOUS APPROPRIATIONS.** (a) *Municipal services.* The appropriation under section 20.855 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, for the payments for municipal services program, is increased by \$500,000 in 1974-75 to reflect a more accurate estimate of payments generated by the program formula under section 70.119 of the statutes.

(17) **NATURAL RESOURCES.** (a) *Fish food.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$47,000 in 1974-75 to provide additional funding necessary to meet the higher cost of fish food used in hatchery operations.

(b) *Pheasant food.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$72,000 in 1974-75 to provide additional funding necessary to meet the higher cost of pheasant food used at the state game farm.

(c) *Anadromous fish.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$200,000 in 1974-75 to provide additional funding necessary to compensate for an anticipated reduction in federal anadromous fish aids.

(d) *Bayfield hatchery operations.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$102,400 in 1974-75 for additional positions, supplies and equipment for the enlarged facility.

(e) *Wolf river preservation.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (fm) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$250,000 in 1974-75 for the purchase of scenic easements along the Wolf river in Menominee county.

(f) *Fuel oil.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (1) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$5,900 in 1974-75 to compensate for increased fuel oil costs.

(i) *Fuel oil.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (2) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$7,400 in 1974-75 to compensate for increased fuel oil costs.

(j) *Fuel oil.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (3) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$4,700 in 1974-75 to compensate for increased fuel oil costs.

(k) *Fuel oil.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$500 in 1974-75 to compensate for increased fuel oil costs.

(L) *Milwaukee air pollution program takeover.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$142,900 in 1974-75 to provide additional personnel and funds for state assumption of Milwaukee county air pollution control program responsibilities.

(m) *Purchase of Milwaukee county air pollution equipment.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (5) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$50,000 in 1974-75 to provide funds for the purchase of air pollution equipment utilized in the Milwaukee county air pollution control program which can

be used in the state program. Such funds may be expended only upon approval by the board on government operations.

(o) *McKenzie environmental center.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (7) (e) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$41,100 in 1974-75 to provide funding for staffing, operating and maintaining the new educational facility at the McKenzie Center.

(p) *Fuel oil.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$4,000 in 1974-75 to compensate for increased fuel oil costs.

(q) *Conservation congress.* The appropriation under section 20.370 (4) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$8,300 in 1974-75 to compensate for increased expenses.

(18) PUBLIC INSTRUCTION. (a) *Unclassified positions.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$44,800 in 1973-74 and by \$48,600 in 1974-75 to reflect the governor's partial veto which eliminated the establishment of 2 additional unclassified positions in the department.

(b) *State support of federal programs.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$746,100 in 1973-74 and by \$74,500 in 1974-75 to adjust the general purpose revenue provided in anticipation of federal aid reductions and the appropriation under section 20.255 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$8,000 in 1973-74 and the appropriation under section 20.255 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$65,200 in 1973-74 in order to adjust the general purpose revenue provided in anticipation of federal aid reductions.

(c) *Driver education -- state operations.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$18,400 in 1974-75 to reflect changes in federal funding.

(d) *Aid to public library systems.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (3) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$1,121,100 in 1974-75 to provide funding for public library systems.

(e) *Workload change.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$6,900 in 1974-75 due to the elimination of a professional position in the special educational needs program and to provide one additional clerical position for the program.

(f) *Affirmative action.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$18,500 in 1974-75 to provide one affirmative action position.

(g) *Cooperative educational service agencies.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (fc) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$7,600 in 1973-74 and by \$1,900 in 1974-75 to provide funding for operational expenses of cooperative educational service agencies.

(h) *Transportation aids.* The appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (fh) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$167,400 in 1974-75 to provide funding for transportation aid formula changes.

(20) REGULATION AND LICENSING. (a) *Continued position funding.* The appropriation under section 20.165 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of

1973, is increased by \$19,100 in 1974-75 to provide funding for a position which was approved by the board on government operations in 1973-74.

(b) *Bingo funding change.* The appropriation under section 20.165 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$45,000 in 1973-74 and \$205,000 in 1974-75 to change the funding for the regulation of bingo from program revenue to general purpose revenue.

(21) REVENUE. (b) *Equalization.* The appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$209,200 in 1974-75 to provide funding for property assessment positions to meet workload requirements and increased rent.

(c) *General program operations.* The appropriation under section 20.566 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$363,000 in 1973-74 due to delayed recruitment of new positions authorized by chapter 90, laws of 1973.

(d) *Data processing.* The appropriation under section 20.566 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$131,800 in 1974-75 to provide funding for positions and supporting expenses for data processing support for incomes analyses, state assessment of manufacturing property equalization, and local fiscal information and analysis.

(23) SECURITIES. (a) *Miscellaneous operating costs under securities regulation.* The appropriation under section 20.185 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$9,100 in 1974-75 to provide funding for continuation of various operating costs approved by the board on government operations in 1973-74.

(b) *Miscellaneous operating costs under franchise investment law.* The appropriation under section 20.185 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$3,400 in 1974-75 to provide funding for continuation of various operating costs approved by the board on government operations in 1973-74.

(24) TRANSPORTATION. (a) *Facilities improvements -- vehicle weight inspection stations.* The appropriation under section 20.395 (2) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$45,000 in 1974-75 to provide funding for toilet facility improvements at six department of transportation weight inspection stations. The department shall designate which facilities are to be improved.

(b) *Business management positions.* The appropriation under section 20.395 (8) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$14,000 in 1974-75 to provide funding for additional positions in the division of business management.

(c) *Planning positions.* The appropriation under section 20.395 (8) (qa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$103,400 in 1974-75 to provide funding for additional positions in the division of planning.

(d) *Bridge projects.* The appropriation under section 20.866 (2) (ug) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$11,849,800 for 1973-74 to provide additional funding for bridges at Fremont and Sturgeon Bay.

(25) UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM. (a) *Enrollment funding changes.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$603,300 in 1973-74 and increased by \$2,206,300 in 1974-75 to account for changes in the statutory enrollment funding formula, funding of increased number of graduate level students at the university cluster, and shifting certain 1973-74 funds to 1974-75.

(b) *Financial aids matching funds.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (ab) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$164,400 in 1973-74 and by \$164,400 in 1974-75 as a result of revised estimates of the requirements of matching federal financial aids.

(c) *Utilities and heating.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$210,200 in 1974-75 to reduce general program operations' share of utilities and heating.

(d) *Wisconsin-Minnesota student reciprocity.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$932,600 in 1973-74 and by \$938,000 in 1974-75 to provide general purpose revenue to fund losses due to the waiver of nonresident tuition for Minnesota students attending universities in Wisconsin.

(e) *State supplement to federally funded programs.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$1,649,300 in 1973-74 to reflect savings of general purpose revenue supplements appropriated for federally supported programs which did not subsequently experience reductions in federal support in 1973-74.

(f) *Educational technology and computing improvement funds.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is reduced by \$840,600 for 1974-75 as a result of no release of educational technology funds set aside in Chapter 90, laws of 1973, Section 549e, and is further reduced by \$129,600 in 1974-75 as a result of release of \$32,000 for computing improvements and no funding of the remaining amount set aside.

(g) *UW system public service.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$1,548,800 in 1974-75 as a result of release of \$350,000 for public service projects, and \$311,500 of funding increases in continuing education, and \$56,000 of funding for degree credit workload, and no funding of the remaining amount set aside in Chapter 90, laws of 1973, Section 556g.

(h) *User fee.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$491,200 in 1974-75 to fully restore the support of noninstructional activities and to remove any ceiling imposed on future increases in general program revenue support to such activities.

(i) *Revised fee estimate.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased in 1973-74 by \$260,800 to encourage further funding of the university of Wisconsin system from the appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (im) of the statutes.

(j) *Funding for law school.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$21,600 in 1974-75 to provide a permanent base funding adjustment to improve the faculty-student ratio at the law school.

(k) *Physician's associate program.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$72,000 in 1974-75 to deny funds for any further planning or implementation of the proposed physician's associate program on the masters level. Funds set aside in chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 546m and chapter 149, laws of 1973, for the implementation of an undergraduate level physician's assistant program are released for expenditure in 1974-75.



(km) *Mental retardation.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$100,000 for 1974-75 to provide additional state funding for the university of Wisconsin-Madison center on mental retardation.

(L) *UW hospitals stipend phaseout.* The appropriation under section 20.285 (1) (fa) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$21,600 in 1973-74 and by \$39,000 in 1974-75 to restore stipends for medical technology students and radiology students who would have received a stipend under the program previously terminated due to lack of program revenue available for this purpose. One-time retroactive payments, not to exceed the stipend amounts that would normally have been paid, may be made to students currently enrolled in these programs.

(26) VETERANS AFFAIRS. (a) *Food.* The appropriation under section 20.485 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$42,700 in 1974-75 to pay for increased food costs.

(27) VOCATIONAL, TECHNICAL AND ADULT EDUCATION. (a) *State aid.* The appropriation under section 20.292 (1) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$515,500 in 1973-74 and \$3,110,400 in 1974-75 to reflect the inclusion of teacher retirement and social security benefits as state-aidable costs, to reflect a projected reduction in enrollment and cost compared to budgeted figures and to reflect the continuation of funding of high-cost programs.

(b) *General purpose revenue supplement for federal aid reductions.* The appropriation under section 20.292 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is decreased by \$322,700 in 1973-74 because federal vocational educational act funds were not reduced as anticipated.

(c) *Affirmative action position.* The appropriation under section 20.292 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$18,500 in 1974-75 to provide funding for one affirmative action position.

Vetoed  
in Part ~~(d) *Private consulting funds.* The appropriation under section 20.292 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, is increased by \$20,000 in 1974-75 to provide private consulting funding for the study committee created by chapter 333, laws of 1973, SECTION 198a.~~

**SECTION 193. Appropriation transfer.** (1) The unencumbered balance in section 20.395 (6) (g) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, on June 30, 1974, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.395 (6) (h) of the statutes.

(2) The unencumbered balance in sections 20.395 (2) (vh), (vj) and (vm), 1971 stats., on June 30, 1973, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.395 (4) (q) of the statutes.

(2m) The unencumbered balance in section 20.395 (2) (vo), 1971 stats., on June 30, 1973, shall be transferred as follows:

(a) \$500,000 to the 1974-75 appropriation under section 20.395 (4) (qe) of the statutes and the remainder of such unencumbered balance to the 1974-75 appropriation under section 20.395 (4) (q) of the statutes.

(3) The unencumbered balance in sections 20.255 (1) (q), 20.265 (1) (u) and 20.292 (1) (u), 1971 stats., on June 30, 1973, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.395 (4) (q) of the statutes.

(4) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.255 (1) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.255 (1)

(r) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, \$1,100 in 1973-74 and \$1,500 in 1974-75.

(5) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dh) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (d) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, \$742,000 in 1973-74 and \$812,000 in 1974-75.

(7) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.435 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, \$373,600 in 1974-75 to transfer funds to the division of health for nursing home review activities.

(13) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.395 (6) (g) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.395 (6) (h) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, \$981,300 in 1974-75 to fund a separate appropriation for state aid to airports.

(14) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.395 (4) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.395 (8) (q) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, \$117,400 in 1974-75 to provide funding for additional positions in the divisions of planning and business management of the department of transportation.

(15) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (o) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (n) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, the unencumbered balance of federal funds for 1973-74 to fund expansion and improvement of sheltered workshops facilities in this state.

(16) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (o) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.435 (5) (n) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, \$367,900 in 1974-75 to fund 25 authorized positions. An additional 40 authorized positions, which are unfilled because federal funding under section 20.435 (5) (n) of the statutes was less than anticipated, are deleted.

(17) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.235 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.235 (1) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, \$6,200 in 1973-74 and \$14,600 in 1974-75 to transfer one authorized administrative position.

(18) The appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (c) of the statutes for 1973-74, as affected by the laws of 1973, is transferred to the appropriation under section 20.545 (1) (c) of the statutes for 1974-75, as affected by the laws of 1973, to provide interim funding for community action agencies.

(19) There is transferred from the appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dh) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, to the appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dn) of the statutes, as created by this act, \$3,531,200 in 1974-75 for institutional child care.

(20) The unencumbered balance in the equipment pool operations account under section 20.370 (1) (u), (2) (u) and (3) (u) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, but not to exceed \$300,000, on June 30, 1974, shall be transferred to the appropriation under section 20.370 (8) (wd) of the statutes.

**SECTION 194. Authorized state building program changes.** In Chapter 90, laws of 1973, section 537m, the following changes shall be made in the authorized state building program for 1973-75, and the appropriate totals in that SECTION shall be adjusted accordingly.

(1) In SECTION 537m (1) (a), the following shall be added to the university of Wisconsin system projects financed by building trust funds:

Green Bay - physical education building	\$3,357,100
---	-------------

(2) In SECTION 537m (1) (a), the following authorizations shall be added for university of Wisconsin system projects financed by general fund supported residual borrowing authority:

Projects financed by borrowing - general fund supported residual authority.

Milwaukee - Lapham hall remodeling	600,000
Platteville - science Building/Remodeling for arts and sciences	4,400,000
Stevens Point - dormitory and campus school remodeling	2,160,000
Stout - Harvey hall remodeling	<u>1,106,000</u>
Total general fund supported borrowing	\$ 8,266,000

(3) In SECTION 537m (1) (c), the authorization under the department of health and social services projects financed by building trust funds for air conditioning at the central colony is amended to read:

Central colony - air conditioning Murphy Hall <del>and</del> , hospital <del>and</del> cottages for nonambulatory patients	\$ 632,000
--	------------

**SECTION 194m. Enrollment funding for the university cluster.** (1) Effective for the 1974-75 fiscal year, graduate level enrollment adjustments for the university cluster shall be funded according to the enrollment formula under section 20.285 (2) (c) of the statutes, except as provided under subsection (2).

(2) For fiscal year 1974-75, the aggregate undergraduate and graduate enrollment increases for the university cluster shall be funded under section 20.285 (2) (c) of the statutes only to the extent that such increases exceed \$842,000 general purpose revenues and student fees appropriated as transitional funds in 1974-75 under chapter 333, laws of 1973, section 192 (25).

**SECTION 195. Program and staffing report for mental health institutes.** The department of health and social services shall report to the governor and the joint committee on finance no later than December 1, 1974, regarding anticipated staffing levels and program operations at the Mendota and Winnebago mental health institutes. The report shall include, but not be limited to the following:

(1) A statement of mission and objectives for the institutes and program objectives for the activities.

(2) Staffing patterns for the types of services to be provided at the institutes including such services as research, community training, tertiary psychiatric care, tertiary alcoholism and children's services.

(3) Timetable for the reduction of inpatient services to a minimum level based on the mission and objectives of the institutes.

(4) Implementation of activities and efforts to develop community programs at the local level.

**SECTION 195e. Mental health institute staff positions.** By June 30, 1975, a total of 90 staff positions at Mendota and Winnebago mental health institutes shall be deleted, in addition to position deletions authorized by chapter 90, laws of 1973, unless the joint committee on finance approves continuation of any of these 90 positions after receipt of the report from the department of health and social services mandated by chapter 333, laws of 1973, section 195. Of the amounts appropriated under section 20.435 (2) (a) of the statutes, as affected by chapter 90, laws of 1973, the \$594,000 to support these positions for the six months beginning January 1, 1975, shall be placed in unallotted reserve and shall not be available for expenditure by the department unless approved by the joint committee on finance.

**SECTION 195m. Staffing at correctional institutions.** (1) The following positions deleted by chapter 90, laws of 1973, may be funded through December 31, 1974, from the appropriation under section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes: 76 positions at the Wisconsin State Reformatory; 24 positions at the Wisconsin State Prison; 12 positions at the Wisconsin Correctional Institution; 4 positions at the Wisconsin Home for Women; 8 positions at the Wisconsin School for Girls; 7 positions at the Wisconsin School for Boys; and 7 positions at the Lincoln Boys School.

(2) Sixty-two unfilled positions at the Kettle Moraine Boys School are deleted effective July 1, 1974.

(3) Sixty positions are authorized to be used solely in fiscal year 1974-75 at the Wisconsin Correctional Institution and the Kettle Moraine Boys School.

**SECTION 196. Patient liability.** Liability for care, services and supplies provided to individuals in or under the supervision of a mental health institute, central state hospital or colony or individuals receiving mental health services in a facility authorized by section 51.24 or 51.25 of the statutes on December 31, 1973, but not admitted under section 51.155 of the statutes, which are provided after that date, shall be the liability of section 51.42 of the statutes or section 51.437 of the statutes board responsible for such care and services for the place of residence of the individual at the time of admission to the institution. The collection of fees, adjustment and settlement with the several counties for their proper share of all money collected under section 46.10 of the statutes shall be governed exclusively by section 46.10 of the statutes.

**SECTION 196b. Care provided at state facilities.** During calendar year 1974, the department of health and social services shall charge \$60 a day for care and treatment at the mental health institutes provided under section 51.42 (9) of the statutes, except for care provided under primary care contracts. By January 1, 1975, the department of health and social services shall establish a rate for specific levels of care at the mental health institutes, central state hospital and the colonies which reflects the reasonable cost of such care. The department shall develop a system for identifying a per case cost and shall implement such system as soon after January 1, 1975, as is administratively feasible.

**SECTION 196c. Primary psychiatric care contracts.** (1) To provide for an orderly reduction of state institutional primary psychiatric services the department of health and social services may approve the institutes entering into contracts with section 51.42 boards for providing primary psychiatric care. If excess capacity exists at state operated mental health institutes, the department shall explore whether such excess facilities may be sold or leased to a section 51.42 board.

(2) No contract may be approved for a period of time greater than one year, and no contract shall be approved for care to be provided after June 30, 1975, except as provided in subsection (3).

(3) The counties where the mental health institutes are located may contract with the institutes for primary psychiatric care on an ongoing basis, which contracts shall be approved by the department and shall be renewed annually.

**SECTION 196g. Rates for child-caring institutions.** (1) **INTERIM RATE.** A child-caring institution may submit a request for an interim rate to be paid for 24-hour residential care given after June 30, 1974, to children under sections 46.22 (5m) and 49.51 (3) of the statutes. The department of health and social services shall approve such interim rate as requested by the institution. If the request is made within 15 days after the effective date of this act, the department shall pay the interim rate for care given after June 30, 1974. If the request is made 16 or more days after the effective date of this act, the department shall pay the interim rate for care given on or after the 1st day of the month following the request. The department shall continue to pay the interim rate until an approved rate is established under subsection (2). If the institution requests an interim rate increase in excess of 25% of its current rate, the department shall audit that institution within 90 days of the request. Any adjustment necessary following the establishment of the approved rate for overpayments or underpayments for care provided during the period of the interim rate shall be made within 90 days after the approved rate is established.

Vetoed  
in Part

(2) **APPROVED RATE.** The department of health and social services shall establish, under section 46.036 of the statutes, the rate to be paid for care which is provided under sections 46.22 (5m) and 49.51 (3) of the statutes. The rate so established shall apply retroactively for services provided during the institution's current fiscal year, except that the rate shall not apply for services provided prior to August 5, 1973. Retroactive payments shall be paid from the appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dn) of the statutes.

Vetoed  
in Part

(3) **FINAL AUDITED RATE.** For fiscal year 1974-75, when a child-caring institution's fiscal period ends after June 30, 1974, the department shall perform a final audit on the preceding fiscal period. This audit shall establish a final audited rate based on the department's allowable cost policy. Adjustments for overpayments and underpayments shall be made by a procedure established by the department.

(4) **RETROACTIVE PAYMENT FOR INSTITUTIONS' FISCAL YEARS ENDING PRIOR TO JULY 1, 1974.** The department shall reimburse a child-caring institution at the rate established under this subsection for care provided on and after August 5, 1973, to the end of the institution's fiscal year, for any period not included in subsection (2). The department shall establish this rate through use of the institution's financial statements for such period. For purposes of this subsection, reduction of an institution's endowment in order to meet operating costs for child care shall be included in determining the retroactive payment. Retroactive payments shall be paid from the appropriation under section 20.435 (4) (dn) of the statutes.

(5) **REPORT TO JOINT COMMITTEE ON FINANCE.** Within 30 days following the effective date of this act, the department of health and social services shall submit a report to the joint committee on finance regarding the department's plan for implementation of this section.

**SECTION 196m. Public utility tax distribution study.** An interim legislative committee, appointed by the cochairmen of the joint committee on finance, shall study and make recommendations to the 1975 legislature concerning the placement of limitations upon public utility tax payments to those municipalities and counties which

currently receive or which expect to receive substantial revenue amounts due to public utility tax payments.

~~SECTION 197m. Union high school and elementary school district study. The chairman of the assembly committee on education and the chairman of the senate committee on health, education and welfare shall direct that a study be conducted relating to the quality, effectiveness and efficiency of the educational programs offered by union high school and elementary school districts.~~ Vetoed in Part

SECTION 198j. **Parole and probation funding.** The \$620,000 appropriated in section 20.435 (3) (a) of the statutes, as affected by the laws of 1973, for fiscal 1974-75 that is intended for parole and probation positions may be released only upon approval of the joint committee on finance. The department of health and social services shall submit a report to the joint committee on finance that demonstrates the need for such funding.

SECTION 198L. **1974-75 VTAE state aid computation and full-time equivalent determinations.** For the purpose of computing 1974-75 state VTAE aids, the board of vocational, technical and adult education shall apply the same definition of full-time equivalent students as was used in calculating state aids paid in 1973-74, except that the calculation of full-time equivalent students shall count a minimum of ten students enrolled in the apprentice, aeronautics and young farmer programs regardless of the actual number of students enrolled. In addition, the board shall study new criteria to be used in the calculation of full-time equivalent students and submit the results of its findings to the governor and the legislature not later than December 1, 1974.

SECTION 198q. **VTAE district boundaries.** Pursuant to section 38.06 of the statutes, as affected by this act, the board of vocational, technical and adult education shall submit, no later than January 1, 1976, its statewide master plan to the assembly committee on education and to the senate committee on health, education and welfare for their review and to the joint committee on finance for its approval. This plan shall be developed by a study committee consisting of six members of the state board, three members selected by the district directors association, three members selected by the district boards association, the chairman of the assembly committee on education and the chairman of the senate committee on health, education and welfare, or their designees. The study committee may contract with a private consultant to assist in the evaluation of the fiscal and educational impact of any intended or proposed changes to existing district boundaries. The study committee shall hold at least one public hearing in each vocational, technical and adult education district in developing the plan. Vetoed in Part

SECTION 199r. **Mileage reimbursement.** (1) A reimbursement factor, in addition to that granted under section 20.916 (4) of the statutes, based on the price of regular gasoline in the city of Milwaukee, as reported in the U.S. department of labor, bureau of labor statistics, "*Regular and premium gasoline indexes for the United States and selected areas*", shall be applied to employes' total mileage of the month as an add-on or deduction from the prevailing formula. Determination of this additional reimbursement factor shall be made on a monthly basis by the department of administration in accordance with the U.S. department of labor gasoline price index applied to the following table:

<u>Conversion Table</u>	
Gas Index range (cents)	Add On Factor
41.1 - 47.3	\$.005
47.4 - 53.5	.010

53.6 - 59.8	.015
59.9 - 66.0	.020
66.1 - 72.3	.025
72.4 - 78.5	.030
78.6 - 84.8	.035
84.9 - 91.0	.040
91.1 - 97.3	.045
97.3 - Above	.050

(2) This additional reimbursement under sub. (1) shall be in effect until July 1, 1975. In any case, no employe may be reimbursed less than the amount specified under section 20.916 (4) (a) of the statutes.

**SECTION 199s. Continuing education programs.** The board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system shall develop and present to the governor and legislature for consideration in 1975-77 biennial budget deliberations alternative means for assessing workload increases in continuing education programs.

**SECTION 199t. UW system early retirement incentives and faculty retraining and professional improvement leaves.** (1) The board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system, in adjusting to workload changes and related staffing requirements, shall place maximum emphasis, within state law and authorized funding, on reassignment, relocation, retraining and voluntary early retirement options as alternatives to involuntary faculty and academic staff terminations and layoffs. Specifically, in addition to continuing current efforts to reassign, relocate and retrain staff, the board may use 1974-75 transitional enrollment funds provided under this act to undertake the actions under subsections (2) to (5) on a one year experimental basis.

(2) The board may grant terminal leaves as early retirement incentives under rules and procedures established by the board. The early retirement terminal leave plan shall be limited to those five university cluster campuses for which transitional funds are provided, or to other university cluster campuses in which terminal leaves are granted in conjunction with appointments of tenured faculty in layoff status during 1973-74 or 1974-75 from one of the five campuses. In the case of the latter, the tandem granting of an appointment to a tenured faculty member in layoff status shall be a condition of the granting of any terminal leaves at that campus. Early retirement prior to age 65 shall be a condition of the terminal leave.

(3) The board may grant professional improvement leaves in tandem with visiting or other temporary appointments granted to former chapter 37 faculty in layoff status during 1973-74 or 1974-75, under rules and procedures adopted by the board. Professional improvement leaves shall be restricted to faculty in those departments or its equivalent which extend visiting or other temporary appointments to faculty in layoff status at another institution of the system. Granting of faculty improvement leaves shall be contingent upon the granting of such a visiting or temporary appointment in the same academic department or its equivalent. Professional improvement leaves shall be supported from base funds available at each institution.

(4) The board may use transitional enrollment funds to provide additional employer contributions, on the condition of early retirement, to teacher retirement accounts under chapter 20, laws of 1973, section 6, only if administrative rules under chapter 20, laws of 1973, section 6 are promulgated.

(5) The authority under this SECTION to grant terminal retirement leaves and tandem professional improvement leaves expires on July 1, 1975.

**SECTION 199u. Regent's statewide university.** The board of regents of the university of Wisconsin system may implement pilot projects and conduct further planning for a regent's statewide university. The cost of this program during fiscal year 1974-75 shall be supported from extramural federal and other program revenues to the extent feasible. The board may reallocate funds from section 20.285 (1) (a) of the statutes, except for any general purpose revenues specifically appropriated for Wisconsin idea programs by this act. The board shall report to the joint committee on finance regarding the nature and source of funding for the regent's statewide university.

**SECTION 200. Collegiate transfer program at Nicolet vocational, technical and adult education district.** (a) For the school years 1973-74 through 1976-77, the Nicolet vocational, technical and adult education district may be permitted on an annual basis by the state board of vocational, technical and adult education to enroll students exceeding the 25% limitation in section 38.04 (4) (c) of the statutes.

(b) According to the aid formula in section 38.28 (2) (b) of the statutes, state aid for the school years 1973-74 through 1976-77 shall be provided for such district's college transfer credit hours not to exceed 25% of the post-secondary credit hours offered with state board approval.

(c) Beyond the 25% limitation, the state board may provide additional state aid for the school years 1973-74 through 1976-77 to cover the entire direct and indirect cost of such district's college transfer program to the extent state aid plus tuition does not exceed 100% of the college transfer credit hour cost as determined by the state board.

**SECTION 200a. Initial implementation of vehicle registrations.** (1) The administrator in establishing registration periods for vehicles under section 341.29 (1) of the statutes, as affected by this act, may extend the annual registration period by the number of months necessary to effect the desired change, but the extension may not exceed 6 months of the previous annual period, except for school bus registration which may be extended for a longer period to coincide with the school year.

(2) For the initial registration period following a change in the annual registration period as provided in section 341.29 (1) of the statutes as affected by this act, any applicant for renewal of a license shall, in addition to the annual fee, remit an additional amount sufficient to cover the number of months by which the registration period has been extended.

**SECTION 200m. Girl's youth camp study.** The department of natural resources shall submit a report to the joint committee on finance not later than November 1, 1974, detailing its plans for the implementation of a girl's youth camp at Wyalusing State Park or other appropriate facilities.

**SECTION 201b. Executive salary schedule.** (1) **ECONOMIC ADJUSTMENT.** Notwithstanding the pay range maximums established by section 20.923 of the statutes, incumbents other than fixed-term or constitutional officers in positions which have been assigned to lower pay ranges as a result of this act and who otherwise would be eligible shall receive one-half of the 5% economic adjustment approved by the joint committee on employment relations under section 16.086 (3) of the statutes, for July 1, 1974. Incumbents of such positions shall not be eligible to receive merit increases if beyond the pay range maximums established by section 20.923 of the statutes, as affected by chapter 333, laws of 1973.

~~(2) DECLARATORY JUDGMENT. As soon as possible following the publication of this act, the attorney general shall commence an action seeking a declaratory judgment~~ Vetoed in Part



Vetoed  
in Part

~~that the secretary of administration, beginning with the next pay period following publication of this act, for every officer serving a fixed term, whose salary is established under sections 13.04 and 20.923 of the statutes as affected by this act and the relationship of this act to section 12 and section 26 of article IV of the constitution, shall adjust the salary of such officer to reflect that portion of the higher rate of compensation shown in the 1973-75 pay plan for the position which constitutes an economic adjustment to preserve the effective rate of compensation or other emoluments for the position within the guidelines of section 16.085 of the statutes. The attorney general shall petition for leave to commence the action as an original action before the Wisconsin supreme court. If the petition is denied, he shall commence the action in the circuit court for Dane county.~~

**SECTION 201c. 1973 Equalized valuation adjustment.** A school district that experiences a reduction in its 1974 equalized valuation due to the exemption specified in section 70.11 (27) of the statutes as provided in chapter 90, laws of 1973, shall have its 1973 equalized valuation reduced in proportion to the 1974 reduction of taxable property for the computation of 1974-75 general state aids.

**SECTION 201e. Regulation and licensing investigation contract.** During the 1973-75 biennium, the department of regulation and licensing may contract for investigation services for the examining boards and the division of nurses. The costs of these services shall be charged against the program revenue accounts of the boards and the division of nurses.

**SECTION 201f. UW merger reconciliation.** (1) If chapter 335, laws of 1973, is enacted into law prior to the effective date of this act, then sections 36.063, 36.16 (1) (d) 1 and 2 and 36.165 of the statutes, as affected by this act, are renumbered sections 36.25 (5), 36.27 (3) (a) and (b) and 36.27 (3) (e) of the statutes, respectively, and the treatment of such sections shall retroactively supercede the treatment of sections 36.25, 36.27 (3) (a) and (b) and 36.27 (3) (e) of the statutes by chapter 335, laws of 1973.

(2) If this act becomes effective before chapter 335, laws of 1973 is enacted into law, then sections 36.063, 36.16 (1) (d) 1 and 2 and 36.165 of the statutes, as affected by this act are renumbered sections 36.25 (5), 36.27 (3) (a) and (b) and 36.27 (3) (e) of the statutes, respectively, and the treatment of such sections by this act shall be effective, and the treatment of sections 36.25 (5), 36.27 (3) (a), (b) and (e) of the statutes by chapter 335, laws of 1973 shall be void.

(3) If chapter 335, laws of 1973 is not enacted into law the treatment of sections 36.063, 36.16 (1) (d), 36.165 and 36.33 of the statutes by this act shall be effective on the day after publication of this act.

**SECTION 201m. Grand army home name change.** (1) Wherever in the following sections of the statutes the term "Grand Army home" is used, the term "Wisconsin veterans home" is substituted: 16.31 (1) and (3) (a) (intro.), 20.485 (1) (a), (c) and (d) and 45.37 (12) (a).

(2) Wherever in sections 45.365 (title) and 70.11 (3a) (title) of the statutes the term "Grand Army Home" is used, the term "Wisconsin Veterans Home" is substituted.

(3) Wherever in the following sections of the statutes the term "Grand Army home for veterans" is used, the term "Wisconsin veterans home" is substituted: 20.485 (1) (m), 41.02 (11) (a), 45.365 (1), 227.01 (5) (h), 851.09, 880.33 (4) and 880.60 (4).

**SECTION 201w. Cross reference changes.** In the sections listed below in column A, the cross references shown in column B are changed to the cross references shown in column C:

A	B	C
Statute Sections	Old Cross References	New Cross References
20.725 (9)(c)	20.395 (2)	20.395 (1), (3), (4) and (5)
49.45 (3)(a)	49.52 (1)(b) and (2)	49.52
59.965 (11)	20.395 (2)(wb)	20.395 (1)(qa)
79.20 (1)	165.85 (2)(c), as affected by ch. 243, laws of 1973	165.85 (4)(b)
83.10 (1)	20.395 (2)(wb)	20.395 (1)(qa)
(2)	20.395 (2)	20.395 (1)
84.04 (3)	20.395 (2)(vx)	20.395 (4)(q)
84.105 (5)	20.395 (2)	20.395 (4)
84.20	20.395 (2)(vf), (vr), (vt), (zb) and (zh)	20.395 (4)(q), (qf), (w) and (y)
86.31 (1)(intro.)	20.395 (2)(wb)	20.395 (1)(qa)
86.31 (2)(a)	20.395 (2)(wb) 2 and 3	20.395 (1)(qb)
86.315 (intro.)	20.395 (2)(wb)	20.395 (1)(qa)
86.32	20.395 (2)(wb)	20.395 (1)(qa)
86.33	20.395 (2)(wb)	20.395 (1)(qa)
86.34 (2)	20.395 (2)(wb) 2 and 3	20.395 (1)(qb)
86.34 (4)	20.395 (2)(wb)	20.395 (1)(qa)
110.99 (1)	20.395 (3)(u)	20.395 (8)(q)

**SECTION 202. Effective dates and expirations.** (2) The treatment of sections 15.101 (intro.) and 51.09 (5) by this act shall take effect January 1, 1974 but sections 15.101 (intro.) and 51.09 (5), 1971 stats., shall apply to care furnished prior to January 1, 1974.

(3) The treatment of section 48.55 of the statutes shall take effect for care furnished on or after January 1, 1975.

(4) The treatment of sections 20.225 (1) (d), 20.285 (1) (fb), 39.11 (6) and 39.14 of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1975.

(5) The treatment of sections 60.175, 61.46 (3), 62.12 (4m), 65.07 (2), 66.021 (8) (a), 66.033, 70.62 (4) and 73.11 of the statutes by this act shall take effect January 1, 1975.

(6) The treatment of section 20.370 (5) (f) and (8) (wc) and (wd) of the statutes by this act shall take effect July 1, 1974.

(7) The treatment of section 49.19 (10) (d) of the statutes by this act shall take effect January 1, 1975.

(8) The treatment of sections 200.26 (6) and 204.321 (2) (d) of the statutes by this act shall apply to all nonprofit service plan contracts and all group accident and sickness policies issued or renewed on or after the first day of the third month commencing after publication of this act.

(9) The treatment of sections 49.45 (3) (a) and 49.52 of the statutes by this act shall take effect January 1, 1975.

(10) The treatment of section 49.01 (11) and 49.47 (6) of the statutes by this act shall take effect January 1, 1974.

(11) The treatment of section 70.995 of the statutes by this act shall take effect January 1, 1974.

(12) The treatment of sections 192.56 (7) and 346.60 (2) of the statutes by this act shall be in effect until the date specified in paragraph (a) or (b), whichever occurs first, and after that date is void:

(a) The date on which the governor by executive order declares that there is no longer an energy emergency as defined under section 340.01 (15s) of the statutes; or

(b) July 1, 1975.

(13) The treatment of section 49.30 of the statutes by this act shall take effect January 1, 1974.

(14) The treatment of sections 76.16 and 76.24 (1) (a) and (3) of the statutes by this act shall take effect with the May 1, 1974 assessment.

---